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INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement is furnished in connection with the issuance by the City of Fruita, 
Colorado (the "City"), of its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A (the "Series 2009A 
Bonds"), in the aggregate principal amount of $2,440,000 and its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds 
(Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds), Series 2009B (the "Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds"), in the aggregate principal amount of $10,125,000. Except as otherwise indicated, as used in the 
remainder of this Official Statement, the term "Bonds" includes the Series 2009A Bonds and the Taxable 
Series 2009B Bonds, and the term "interest on the Bonds" includes the interest on the Series 2009A 
Bonds which is payable to the owners of the Series 2009A Bonds and the interest on the Taxable Series 
2009B Bonds which is payable to the owners of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The offering of the 
Bonds is made only by way of this Official Statement, which supersedes any other information or 
materials used in connection with the offer or sale of the Bonds. The information set forth in this Official 
Statement has been obtained from the City and from other sources believed to be reliable but is not 
guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. This Official Statement contains, in part, estimates and 
matters of opinion which are not intended as statements of fact, and no representation or warranty is made 
as to the correctness of such estimates and opinions, or that they will be realized. 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject 
to change. 

The following introductory material is only a brief description of, and is qualified by, the more 
complete information contained throughout this Official Statement. A full review should be made of the 
entire Official Statement and the documents summarized or described herein. 

Issuer..................................... The City is located along Interstate 70 in the northwest portion of Mesa 
County (the "County") in west central Colorado (the "State"), and is 
approximately 13 miles west of Grand Junction, Colorado. The local 
economy is based primarily on tourism, recreation, ranching and 
farming. The City is a home-rule municipality that is governed pursuant 
to the Colorado Constitution and a home rule Charter (the "Charter"). 
The City encompasses approximately 4,468 acres (approximately seven 
square miles) and has a current estimated population of 10,947. See 
"THE CITY," and the preceding "VICINITY MAP." 

Security ................................. The Bonds are special, limited revenue obligations of the City payable 
solely from a 1% increase in the City's sales and use tax (the "Pledged 
Sales and Use Tax"), which was approved by the City's electors pursuant 
to an election held on November 4, 2008, and commenced January 1, 
2009. The City is required to deposit all revenues from the Pledged 
Sales and Use Tax to the "Community Center Fund" established solely 
for payment of the Bonds. Such Pledged Sales and Use Tax is reduced 
from a rate of 1.0% to a rate of 0.4% on January 1 st following the date on 
which the Bonds are paid in full (but in no event is such reduction to 
occur later than January 1, 2039) to provide for the constructing, 
improving, equipping, operating and maintaining of the Proj ect (defined 
hereafter). 

The Bonds are secured by a first lien (but not necessarily an exclusive 
first lien) on: (i) the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, (ii) all moneys on 
deposit from time-to-time in the Community Center Fund, and (iii) the 



cash subsidy payments received from the United States Treasury with 
respect to interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds (the "Federal 
Direct Payments")(collectively, the "Pledged Revenues"). The Bonds 
are additionally secured by a reserve account of the Community Center 
Fund (the "Reserve Account") and a supplemental reserve account of the 
Community Center Fund (the "Supplemental Reserve Account"). The 
Reserve Account is to be initially established from Bond proceeds in the 
amount of $1,256,500 and maintained in the amount of the Reserve 
Account Requirement (as defined in "THE BONDS-Security for the 
Bonds"). The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be initially 
established in the amount of $500,000 from moneys currently on deposit 
in the Community Center Fund (the "Supplemental Reserve Account 
Requirement"). The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be maintained 
until no later than December 1,2019. See "THE BONDS-Security for 
the Bonds." Draws on or shortfalls within the Reserve Account and the 
Supplemental Reserve Account are to be replenished from available 
Pledged Revenues, however, the City has, in addition to such 
replenishment requirement, made a moral obligation pledge, subject to 
annual appropriation, to replenish the required amounts. See "THE 
BONDS-Flow of Funds-City Replenishment Consideration and 
Moral Obligation". 

Upon the date of issuance of the Bonds, no obligations other than the 
Bonds will be payable from the Community Center Fund or the Pledged 
Revenues; however, subject to express conditions, the Ordinance adopted 
by the City Council of the City (the "Council"), as amended by an 
amending ordinance adopted by the Council (collectively, the "Bond 
Ordinance") provides that the City may issue bonds or other obligations 
having a lien on the Pledged Revenues and moneys on deposit in the 
Community Center Fund which is on a parity with the lien of the Bonds 
(the "Parity Lien Bonds"). See "THE BONDS-Security for the 
Bonds." See "DEBT STRUCTURE-Revenue and Other Financial 
Obligations. " 

Purpose ................................. The Bonds are being issued to (i) finance construction and equipping of a 
community center (the "Project"); (ii) fund the Reserve Account; and 
(iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds, as described in "THE 
BONDS-Application of Bond Proceeds" herein. 

Bond Insurance..................... Assured Guaranty Corp. (the "Bond Insurer" or "Assured Guaranty") has 
committed to issue, effective as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, a 
policy of insurance (the "Bond Insurance Policy") guaranteeing the 
payment, when due, of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The 
insurance extends over the life of the issue and cannot be canceled by the 
Bond Insurer. Payment under the Bond Insurance Policy is subject to the 
conditions described in "BOND INSURANCE." A specimen of the 
Bond Insurance Policy is attached as APPENDIX F to this Official 
Statement. 

Payment Provisions .............. The Bonds mature and bear interest at the rates (computed on the basis of 
a 360 day year of twelve 30 day months) as set forth on the cover page 
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Book-Entry-

hereof. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on April 1 and 
October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2010. Principal of the 
Bonds is payable to the registered owner thereof (initially Cede & Co.) at 
the principal operations office of the Paying Agent. Payments to 
Beneficial Owners will be made as described under the caption 
"APPEND IX D-Book -Entry-Only System." 

Only Registration ................. The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and will be registered 
initially in the name of "Cede & Co." as nominee for The Depository 
Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), a securities depository. 
Beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be acquired through 
Participants in the DTC system. Such beneficial ownership interests will 
be recorded in the records of the Participants. So long as DTC or its 
nominee is the Owner of the Bonds, payments of principal of and interest 
on the Bonds, as well as notices and other communications made by or 
on behalf of the City pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, will be made to 
DTC or its nominee only. Disbursement of such payments, notices, and 
other communications by DTC to Participants, and by Participants to the 
Beneficial Owners, is the responsibility of DTC and the Participants 
pursuant to rules and procedures established by such entities. See 
"APPENDIX D-Book-Entry-Only System" for a discussion of the 
operating procedures of the DTC system with respect to payments, 
registration, transfers, notices, and other matters. 

Registration 
and Denominations............... The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in denominations of $5,000 

each or integral multiples thereof. 

Tax Matters .......................... Interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is included in gross income 
for federal income tax purposes. In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, 
Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial 
decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain covenants, 
interest on the Series 2009A Bonds is excluded from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item for 
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. The Series 2009A 
Bonds have been designated by the City as "qualified tax exempt 
obligations" under Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. In Bond Counsel's 
further opinion, under State of Colorado existing statutes, the Series 
2009A Bonds and the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds and the income 
therefrom are exempt from taxation in the State of Colorado, except 
inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. In addition, interest See "TAX 
MATTERS" herein. 

Prior Redemption................. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in 
"THE BONDS-Prior Redemption." 

Risk Factors .......................... The purchase of the Bonds involves certain investment risks which are 
discussed throughout this Official Statement. Investors must read this 
entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of 
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an infonned investment decision and should consider carefully the 
information contained under "RISK FACTORS." 

Authority for Issuance.......... The Bonds are issued in confonnity with the Charter and the constitution 
and laws of the State, and pursuant to the Bond Ordinance. The issuance 
of the Bonds, not to exceed the aggregate principal amount of 
$15,000,000, was approved by a majority of the City's electors at an 
election held on November 4, 2008. Such Bonds are to be paid solely 
from the Community Center Fund. Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the 
City will have authorization to issue an additional $2,435,000 of revenue 
bonds for the financing of the Project. See "THE BONDS-Security for 
the Bonds." 

Delivery Information............ The Bonds are offered when, as, and if issued by the City and accepted 
by George K. Baum & Company (the "Underwriter"), subject to prior 
sale, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, and celiain other 
conditions. It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery 
through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about 
November 12, 2009, against payment therefor. 

Exchange and Transfer ........ While the Bonds remain in book-entry-only fonn, transfer and ownership 
by Beneficial Owners may be made as described under the caption 
"APPENDIX D-Book-Entry-Only System." 

Financial Statements ............ Appended hereto are the audited basic financial statements of the City as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which are the most recent 
audited financial statements available for the City. 

ALL OF THE SUMMARIES OF THE STATUTES, ORDINANCES, OPINIONS, 
CONTRACTS, AND AGREEMENTS DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE 
SUBJECT TO THE ACTUAL PROVISIONS OF SUCH DOCUMENTS. The summaries do not purport 
to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents, copies of which 
are either publicly available or available upon request and the payment of a reasonable copying, mailing, 
and handling charge from: City of Fruita, 325 East Aspen Avenue, Fruita, Colorado 81521, Telephone: 
(970) 858-3663; or George K. Baum & Company, 1400 Wewatta Street, Suite 800, Denver, Colorado 
80202, Telephone: (303) 292-1600. 

RISK FACTORS 

The purchase of the Bonds involves certain investment risks which are discussed throughout this 
Official Statement, and each prospective investor should make an independent evaluation of all 
infonnation presented in this Official Statement in order to make an infonned investment decision. 
Particular attention should be given to the factors described below which, among others, could affect the 
payment of debt service on the Bonds. 

Limited Obligations 

The Bonds do not constitute a lien upon any real or personal property of the City. Rather, the 
Bonds constitute an irrevocable but nonexclusive first lien upon the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, the 
moneys on deposit from time to time in the Community Center Fund (which deposits include the Reserve 
Account and the Supplemental Reserve Account), and Federal Direct Payments. See also "THE 
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BONDS-Flow of Funds-Ciry Replenishment Consideration and Moral Obligation" for a description of 
the City's moral obligation pledge, subject to annual appropriation, to replenish the required reserves in 
the Reserve Account and the Supplemental Reserve Account. Therefore, the payment of the principal of, 
premium if any, and interest on the Bonds and any Parity Lien Bonds is dependent on the City's receipt of 
the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, which no later than January 1,2039, is to be reduced from a rate of 1.0% 
to a rate of 0.4% on January 1 sl following the date on which the Bonds are paid in full to provide for the 
constructing, improving, equipping, operating and maintaining of the Project. Bondholders may not look 
to any general or other revenues of the City, including without limitation the proceeds of ad valorem 
property taxes, for the payment of the principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds, and the 
Bonds do not constitute a debt or an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutory provision or limitation; nor shall they be considered or held to be general obligations of the City. 
See "DEBT STRUCTURE." 

Issuance of Parity Lien Bonds 

Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the City will have authorization to issue an additional 
$2,435,000 of revenue bonds for the financing ofthe Project, pursuant to an election held on November 4, 
2008. The City may not issue more than $2,435,000 in additional bonds secured by the Pledged 
Revenues without obtaining further authorization from the City's electors and satisfying the requirements 
of the Parity Lien Bond test set forth in the Bond Ordinance. Although the City has the authority to issue 
Parity Lien Bonds, the City currently does not anticipate the issuance of additional bonds or other 
obligations secured by a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the lien ofthe Bonds. 

Economic Conditions 

The Bonds are payable from Pledged Sales and Use Tax and the money on deposit from 
time-to-time in the Community Center Fund. Collections of sales and use taxes are subject to the elastic 
nature of consumer spending. This causes sales and use tax revenues to increase along with higher prices 
brought about by inflation, but also causes receipts to be vulnerable to adverse economic conditions and 
reduced consumer confidence which may result in reduced spending. Additionally, the economy in the 
City is based primarily on tourism and its secondary effects. A downturn in such industry could have a 
material effect on the level of sales and use tax receipts received by the City. Future sales and use tax 
receipts may fluctuate from historical levels and therefore may affect the level of debt service coverage. 
Collections of the City's sales and use taxes for the first twelve-month period ending August 31, 2009 are 
down 17.5% from the preceding twelve-month period. Finally, the level of City sales and use taxes may 
be affected in the future by Internet and mail order commerce as discussed in the following paragraph. 

Effect of Internet Sales on e-Commerce Taxable Sales 

The City's sales and use tax is not imposed on internet sales of retailers that do not have a 
physical presence in the State. The future level of taxable retail sales which occurs within the City may 
be affected by the level of internet sales (also known as e-commerce). Such e-commerce vendors may 
compete with local retail businesses and may reduce the taxable retail sales which otherwise would occur 
within the City. The ultimate impact of internet sales on the level of taxable retail sales which occurs 
within the City cannot be determined at this time but such impact could be material. 

Federal Subsidy Payment on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds 

The City intends to elect to designate the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as Build America Bonds 
for the purposes of the Recovery Act and to receive a cash subsidy payment (also referred to herein as the 
Federal Direct Payments) from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the 
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Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The interest subsidy payments from the U.S. Treasury will be made 
directly to the City and, in accordance with the Bond Ordinance, the City is required to deposit the same 
directly into the Community Center Fund. 

IRS Notice 2009-26 states: "In general, for fixed rate bonds, upon receipt of a timely Form 8038-
CP requesting payment of the credit, such amount i.e., the Federal Direct Payment will be paid on a 
contemporaneous basis by the applicable interest payment date." According to the U.S. Treasury 
Department, its priority of making the cash subsidy payment is the same as the United States Treasury 
refunding overpayments of tax. In the event that the City does not receive the Federal Direct Payments in 
a timely fashion to pay 35% of the stated interest on each Interest Payment Date for the Taxable Series 
2009B Bonds, then the City is obligated to pay such amounts from other Pledged Revenues. The Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 imposes requirements on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds that the City must 
continue to meet after the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are issued in order to receive the Federal Direct 
Payments. These requirements generally involve the way that Taxable Series 2009B Bond proceeds must 
be invested and ultimately used, and the periodic requests for payment. If the City does not meet these 
requirements, it is possible that the City may not receive the Federal Direct Payments. Although the City 
will covenant in a certificate delivered on the date of issuance of the Bonds to take the actions necessary 
to ensure receipt of the Federal Direct Payments, failure to comply with such covenant does not constitute 
an Event of Default under the Bond Ordinance. As a result, in the event that the City fails to comply with 
such covenant, no assurance is given that the Federal Direct Payments will be received. 

Furthermore, in certain circumstances, the cash subsidy payments to be made to the City may be 
reduced (offset) by amounts determined to be applicable under the Code and regulations promulgated 
thereunder. For example, offsets may occur by reason of any past-due legally enforceable debt of the 
City to any Federal agency. The amount of any such offsets is not predictable, and the City does not 
currently expect that any such offsets will apply to the credits the City expects to receive. 

Enforceability of Bondholders' Remedies Upon Default 

In the event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, there is no 
provision for acceleration of maturity of the principal of the Bonds. Consequently, remedies available to 
registered owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may have to be enforced from year to year. 
Moreover, there is no bond trustee or similar person or entity to monitor or enforce the provisions of the 
Bond Ordinance on behalf of the registered owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, and therefore 
such registered owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds should be prepared to enforce such 
provisions themselves if the need to do so ever arises. 

The remedies available to the owners of the Bonds upon a default are in many respects dependent 
upon judicial action, which is often subject to discretion and delay under existing constitutional law, 
statutory law and judicial decisions, including specifically the federal Bankruptcy Code. The legal 
opinions to be delivered concurrently with delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to enforceability of 
the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization and insolvency or 
other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, now or hereafter in effect; to usual principles 
of equity which may limit the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies; to the exercise by 
the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the federal Constitution; and to the 
reasonable and necessary exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police power inherent in the 
sovereignty of the State and its governmental bodies in the interest of serving an important public 
purpose. 
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Legal Constraints on City Operations 

Various Colorado statutory provisions apply to the imposition and collection of the City's sales 
and use tax and generally regulate the financing of City operations. There can be no assurance that there 
will not be changes in interpretation of, or additions to, the applicable laws and regulations which would 
have a material adverse effect, directly or indirectly, on the affairs of the City. 

THE BONDS 

Description 

The Bonds are issued in the principal amount, dated as of the dated date, mature on the dates and 
bear interest at the rates set forth on the cover page hereof. Certain matters relating to the Bonds are 
described in detail in "INTRODUCTION" and are not restated under this caption. These include 
provisions regarding redemption of the Bonds, registration and denominations of the Bonds, exchange 
and transfer of the Bonds; payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds; a 
description of the authority for issuance of the Bonds; and information regarding the delivery of the 
Bonds. 

Designation of Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as "Build America Bonds" 

The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are being issued as "Build America Bonds" for purposes of the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 signed into law on February 17, 2009 (the "Recovery 
Act"). Pursuant to the Recovery Act, the City expects to receive a cash subsidy payment from the United 
States Treasury (referred to herein as the Federal Direct Payments) equal to 35% of the interest payable 
on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds on or prior to each Interest Payment Date, assuming submittal by the 
City of the appropriate requests for payment in a timely manner. The cash payment does not constitute a 
full faith and credit guarantee of the United States Government, but is required to be paid by the United 
States Treasury under the Recovery Act. Federal Direct Payments received by the City are to be 
deposited into the Community Center Fund. 

Prior Redemption 

Optional Redemption of the Bonds. The Bonds maturing on and after October 1, 2020 are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, in whole or in part in integral multiples 
of $5,000, and if in part in such order of maturities as the City shall determine and by lot within a 
maturity, on October 1, 2019 and on any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the principal 
amount of the redeemed Bonds, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, and without redemption 
premlum. 

Extraordinary Event Redemption - Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities, at the option of the City, in whole but not 
in part, upon the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in the following sentence), from any 
source of available funds, on the dates and at the price, including premium not to exceed three percent of 
the principal amount so redeemed. An "Extraordinary Event" will have occurred if a material adverse 
change has occurred to Section 54AA or 6431 of the Tax Code pursuant to which the City's 35% cash 
subsidy payment from the United States Treasury, defined herein as the Federal Direct Payments, is 
reduced or eliminated. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption - Series 2009A Bonds. The Series 2009A Bonds 
maturing on October 1, 2039, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by lot on October 1 of 
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the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a redemption price equal to the principal 
amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the redemption date: 

Years 

2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 1 

1 Maturity date. 

Principal Amount 

$410,000 
395,000 
385,000 
370,000 
370,000 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption - Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The Taxable Series 
2009B Bonds maturing on October 1,2029, are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by lot on 
October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a redemption price equal to the 
principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the redemption date: 

Years 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 1 

1 Maturity date. 

Principal Amount 

$160,000 
190,000 
220,000 
255,000 
290,000 
330,000 
370,000 
415,000 
460,000 
510,000 

The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds maturing on October 1,2034, are subject to mandatory sinking 
fund redemption by lot on October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued 
interest to the redemption date: 

Years 

2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 1 

1 Maturity date. 

Principal Amount 

$565,000 
620,000 
680,000 
745,000 
815,000 

The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds maturing on October 1,2039, are subject to mandatory sinking 
fund redemption by lot on October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued 
interest to the redemption date: 
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Years 

2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 1 

I Maturity date. 

Principal Amount 

$ 450,000 
550,000 
650,000 
750,000 

1,100,000 

Redemption Procedures. Notice of any redemption of Bonds will be given by the Paying Agent 
in the name of the City by sending a copy of such notice by first class, postage prepaid mail, not less than 
30 days prior to the redemption date, to the Owner of each Bond being redeemed. Such notice is to 
specify the number or numbers of the Bonds so to be redeemed (if redemption is in part) and the 
redemption date. If any Bond shall have been duly called for redemption and if, on or before the 
redemption date, there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent in accordance with the Bond 
Ordinance funds sufficient to pay the redemption price of such Bond on the redemption date, then such 
Bond shall become due and payable at such redemption date, and from and after such date interest will 
cease to accrue thereon. Failure to deliver any redemption notice or any defect in any redemption notice 
shall not affect the validity of the proceeding for the redemption of Bonds with respect to which such 
failure or defect did not occur. Any Bond redeemed prior to its maturity by prior redemption or otherwise 
shall not be reissued and shall be cancelled. 

Application of Bond Proceeds 

The Project. The net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to finance the construction 
and equipping of an approximate 47,000 square foot community center. The Project is expected to 
include, among others, aquatics facilities, pool party rooms, a gymnasium, a senior meeting room, multi­
use meeting rooms, a group exercise studio, fitness/wellness areas, child care facilities, locker rooms, 
family changing rooms, updating of the existing City outdoor pool, lobby spaces and staff office spaces, 
all as more particularly described below. 

The approximate 14,153 square foot aquatics facilities is expected have a large warm water pool 
with many features including: easy walk-in access, a large 18-inch depth toddler section, an adjacent 
climbing wall, a slide with an eight-foot drop, several lap lanes, a diving board, a lazy river for resistance 
walking or floating, and a hot tub. 

An approximate 1,596 square foot senior center is also expected be constructed within the 
community center. The senior center is expected to be free of charge and provide much needed services 
to the senior community, including a senior lunch program and senior fitness programs. In addition, the 
community center is expected to include, among others, an approximate 11,424 square foot gymnasium, 
an approximate 2,688 square foot indoor running track, an approximate 844 square foot child sitting 
room, an approximate 3,063 square feet of multipurpose meeting room space, an approximate 500 square 
foot catering kitchen, an approximate 4,188 square foot fitness/wellness area, an approximate 
1,911 square foot aerobics/dance room, an approximate 3,125 square feet of locker room space and an 
approximate 3,388 square feet of lobby and staff offices. 

The anticipated life of the Project is approximately 35 years, exceeding the weighted average 
maturity of the Bonds. Construction is expected to begin in November 2009 and is expected to be 
complete by January 2011. According to City officials, the City is employing a "Construction 
Management/General Contractor" model for delivery of design and construction services. The model is 
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to allow the City for more accurate estimates of cost throughout the Project. The City is expected to hire 
a contractor during the schematic design process and ask for a "Guaranteed Maximum Price" after design 
documentation is complete. If costs of the Project exceed funds available, program and facility 
expenditures are expected to be adjusted or cut from the overall Project to be within budget. In addition, 
contingency funds are to be included within all budgeting. Contingency funds are to be reduced as the 
Project moves forward and as risk of cost fluctuation and overruns are reduced. 

The City expects to hire five new full-time staff in its Parks and Recreation Department, 
including a facility manager, a programs coordinator, a front desk/marketing coordinator, an aquatics 
coordinator and a building maintenance worker. In addition, part -time staff expected to be hired include 
lifeguards and water safety instructors, front desk attendants, child care attendants, program instructors 
and custodial staff. 

Application of Bond Proceeds. The estimated application of the proceeds of the Bonds is as 
follows: 

SOURCES 
Series 2009A Bond Proceeds 
Taxable Series 2009B Bond Proceeds ........................................... .. 
Original Issue Premium on Series 2009A Bonds ................................................ . 
City Contribution .............................................................................................. . 

Total .............................................................................................................. . 

USES 
Deposit to Project Account ................................................................................ . 
Deposit to Reserve Account. .............................................................................. . 
Costs of issuance, including underwriting discount, 1 bond insurance premium, 2 

professional fees and printing costs ................................................................. . 
Total .............................................................................................................. . 

I See "MISCELLANEOUS-Underwriting." 

$ 2,440,000.00 
10,125,000.00 

42,310.50 
145,166.48 

$12,752.476.98 

$10,918,750.04 
1,256,500.00 

577,226.94 
$12,752.476.98 

2 A portion of the bond insurance premium will be paid from the City's Contribution in the amount specified above. 

Security for the Bonds 

Special Limited Obligations. The Bonds are special, limited revenue obligations of the City. 
The City has pledged a first lien, but not necessarily an exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues for 
the payment of the principal of, premium, ifany, and interest on the Bonds, and any Parity Lien Bonds at 
any time Outstanding. The Pledged Revenues include all of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax and all 
moneys on deposit from time-to-time in the Community Center Fund. 

The City has covenanted in the Bond Ordinance that it will not pledge or create any other lien on 
the Pledged Revenues that is superior to the lien thereon of the Bonds. The City is not prohibited from 
issuing additional parity obligations, subordinate lien obligations and pledging or creating a subordinate 
lien on the Pledged Revenues, provided that no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing. 
See "-Parity Lien Bonds" below for a discussion of the requirements that must be satisfied prior to the 
issuance of Parity Lien Bonds. 

Flow of Funds 

Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, immediately upon receipt of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, all 
revenues therefrom will be deposited to the Community Center Fund in the following order of priority: 
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(i) to the credit of the Interest Sub-Account, the amounts discussed in "-Bond Account" below and to 
the credit of any other bond account established for the payment of interest on any Parity Lien Bonds; (ii) 
to the credit of the Principal Sub-Account, the amounts discussed in "-Bond Account" below and to the 
credit of any other bond account established for the payment of principal on any Parity Lien Bonds; (iii) 
to the credit of the Reserve Account the amounts discussed in "-Reserve Account" below and to the 
credit of any other account established as a reserve account for any Parity Lien Bonds; (iv) to the credit of 
the Supplemental Reserve Account the amounts discussed in "-Supplemental Reserve Account" below; 
(v) to the credit of any other fund or account thereafter established for the payment of the principal of, 
premium if any, and interest on subordinate lien obligations, including any sinking fund, reserve fund, or 
similar fund or account established therefor, the amounts required by the ordinance or other enactment 
authorizing issuance of said subordinate lien obligations; and (vi) for any other purpose permitted under 
the City's Municipal Code (the "Municipal Code") for the Community Center Fund. 

Bond Account. Moneys deposited in the Bond Account will be used solely for the purpose of 
paying the principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds. The Principal Sub-Account will be 
used to pay the principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds, and the Interest Sub-Account will be used 
to pay the interest on the Bonds. 

On or before the last day of each month, commencing in the month next succeeding the date of 
issuance of the Bonds, the City will credit to the Interest Sub-Account, from the Pledged Revenues and 
any interest income to be deposited in the Interest Sub-Account pursuant to the terms of the Bond 
Ordinance, an amount equal to the Pro Rata Portion of the interest to come due on the Bonds on the next 
succeeding Interest Payment Date. 

On or before the last day of each month, commencing in the month next succeeding the date of 
issuance of the Bonds, the City will credit to the Principal Sub-Account, from the Pledged Revenues and 
any interest income to be deposited in the Principal Sub-Account pursuant to the terms of the Bond 
Ordinance, an amount equal to the Pro Rata Portion of the principal coming due on the Bonds on the next 
succeeding Principal Payment Date. 

Moneys deposited in the Bond Account may be invested or deposited in securities or obligations 
which are lawful investments permitted for the investment of fund of the City by the laws of the State of 
Colorado ("Permitted Investments"). The investment of moneys deposited in the Bond Account will, 
however, be subject to the covenants and provisions of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled 
"Covenants Regarding Exclusion of Interest on Bonds from Gross Income for Federal Income Tax 
Purposes." Except to the extent otherwise required by such section, all interest income from the 
investment or reinvestment of moneys deposited in any sub-account of the Bond Account will remain in 
and become part of such sub-account. 

Reserve Account. The Reserve Account will initially be funded from Bond proceeds in the 
amount of $1,256,500, initially equal to the Reserve Account Requirement (as defined below). Moneys 
in the Reserve Account will be used, if necessary, only to prevent a default in the payment of the principal 
of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds when due. Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account, 
proceeds of the liquidation of Permitted Investments on deposit in the Reserve Account or moneys 
available from a Reserve Account Contract will be transferred to the Bond Account on any date'on which 
a payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds is due to the extent the amount on 
deposit in the Bond Account is insufficient to make such payment. 

The "Reserve Account Requirement" as of any date on which it is calculated, is equal to the least 
of (a) 10% of the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, (b) the maximum annual debt service in any 
calendar year on the Outstanding Bonds, or (c) 125% of the average annual debt service on the 
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Outstanding Bonds; provided, however, at no time is the amount of the Reserve Account Requirement, 
when combined with moneys, if any, on deposit in the Supplemental Reserve Account, be less than the 
Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements (generally defined as the maximum annual 
amount required to be paid in any calendar year as the principal of and interest on the Bonds and any 
outstanding Parity Lien Bonds) required to be paid in any calendar year in connection with the 
Outstanding Bonds including in the required amount that portion of the interest obligation which is 
expected to be paid from Federal Direct Payments, the intent being that such required amount not be net 
of the Federal Direct Payments. 

The Reserve Account Requirement will be funded and maintained by anyone of or any 
combination of (i) cash; (ii) Permitted Investments; and (iii) with the prior written consent of the Bond 
Insurer, if any, a Reserve Account Contract which provides for payments when and as required for 
purposes of the Reserve Account. The Reserve Account Contract must be issued by an obligor whose 
obligations such as the Reserve Account Contract are either (A) rated by a Rating Agency as investment 
grade, or (B) if a rating has been obtained on the Bonds, whose obligations are rated by each Rating 
Agency that then maintains a rating on the Bonds in a category (or comparable classification) equal to or 
higher than the category, if any, in which the Bonds are rated, or will not impact the rating on the Bonds; 
provided, however, if the Reserve Account Contract is issued by the Bond Insurer, if any, then no rating 
standard shall apply to the obligor for such Reserve Account Contract. 

Cash will satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement by the amount of cash on deposit. Permitted 
Investments will satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement by the value of such investments. The value 
of each Permitted Investment on deposit in the Reserve Account will be its purchase price from the date 
of purchase and thereafter its fair market value determined as of each calculation date. A Reserve 
Account Contract will satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement by the amount payable to the City 
pursuant to such contract. 

The Reserve Account Requirement will be calculated not less than annually. If at any time the 
calculated amount of the Reserve Account is less than the Reserve Account Requirement or transfers are 
made from the Reserve Account as provided in the Bond Ordinance, then the City will deposit to the 
Reserve Account from the Pledged Revenues, amounts sufficient to bring the amount deposited in the 
Reserve Account to the Reserve Account Requirement. If at any time the calculated amount of the 
Reserve Account is more than the Reserve Account Requirement, then the City will transfer to the Bond 
Account such amount which is in excess of the Reserve Account Requirement. Such deposits will be 
made as soon as possible after such use or calculation, but in accordance with and subject to the 
limitations of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled "Deposit of Pledged Revenues." 

The investment of moneys deposited in the Reserve Account will be subject to the covenants and 
provisions of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled "Covenants Regarding Exclusion of Interest on 
Bonds from Gross Income for Federal Income Tax Purposes." Except to the extent otherwise required by 
such section, interest income from the investment or reinvestment of moneys deposited in the Reserve 
Account will be transferred to the Bond Account. 

Supplemental Reserve Account. The Supplemental Reserve Account will be funded from 
moneys on deposit in the Community Center Fund on the date of the issuance of and delivery of the 
Bonds in the amount of $500,000 (the "Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement"). Moneys in the 
Supplemental Reserve Account will be used, if necessary, only to prevent a default in the payment of the 
principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds when due and prior to the use of any moneys in 
the Reserve Account for such purpose. Moneys on deposit in the Supplemental Reserve Account, 
proceeds of the liquidation of Permitted Investments on deposit in the Reserve Account will be 
transferred to the Bond Account on any date on which a payment of principal of, premium, if any, or 
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interest on the Bonds is due to the extent the amount on deposit in the Bond Account is insufficient to 
make such payment. The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be maintained within the Community 
Center Fund until the earlier of December 1, 2019 or such time as the Sales and Use Tax for two 
consecutive calendar years has been equal to at least 150% of the sum of the Combined Maximum 
Principal and Interest Requirements (as defined below) due or to become due on the Bonds and any 
outstanding Parity Lien Bonds. 

The Supplemental Reserve Account is to be maintained, until terminated as provided above, by 
anyone of or any combination of cash or Permitted Investments. The investment of moneys deposited in 
the Supplemental Reserve Account will be subject to the covenants and provisions of the section of the 
Bond Ordinance entitled "Covenants Regarding Build America Bonds". 

Cash shall satisfy the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement by the amount of cash on 
deposit. Permitted Investments shall satisfy the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement by the value 
of such investments. The value of each Permitted Investment on deposit in the Supplemental Reserve 
Account shall be its purchase price from the date of purchase and thereafter its fair market value 
determined as of each calculation date required pursuant to paragraph (d) of this section. 

The Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement is to be calculated not less than annually. If at 
any time the calculated amount of the Supplemental Reserve Account is less than the Supplemental 
Reserve Account Requirement or transfers are made from the Supplemental Reserve Account, then the 
City is to deposit to the Supplemental Reserve Account from the Pledged Revenues, amounts sufficient to 
bring the amount deposited in the Supplemental Reserve Account to the Supplemental Reserve Account 
Requirement. Such deposits are to be made as soon as possible after such use or calculation, but in 
accordance with and subject to the limitations of the Bond Ordinance. If at any time the calculated 
amount of the Supplemental Reserve Account is more than the Supplemental Reserve Account 
Requirement, then the City shall apply such excess amount to any lawful use of moneys in the 
Community Center Fund in accordance with the Municipal Code. 

City Replenishment Consideration and Moral Obligation. If, at any time, the Supplemental 
Reserve Account is not funded at the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement on a date which is 90 
days prior to an Interest Payment Date or a Principal Payment Date, the Manager of the City is to prepare 
and submit to the Council a request for an appropriation of a sufficient amount to replenish the 
Supplemental Reserve Account to the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement. The Council may 
determine in its sole discretion, but is not required, to make the appropriations so requested. All sums 
appropriated by the Council for such purpose will be considered a loan of legally available moneys of the 
City to the Community Center Fund, may draw interest until repaid at rate determined by the Council at 
the time the appropriation is made, and shall be deposited in the Supplemental Reserve Account. The 
repayment obligation for any loan shall be subordinate to the payment of the Bonds. While the Council 
has agreed to consider funding the Supplemental Reserve Account pursuant to the terms of Bond 
Ordinance to provide additional assurance that the Supplemental Reserve Account will annually be 
funded at the Supplemental Reserve Account Requirement, the Council's decision not to so fund the 
Supplemental Reserve Account will not constitute an Event of Default under the Bond Ordinance. 

Following the date on which the Supplement Reserve is not required to be maintained pursuant to 
the terms of the Bond Ordinance, if, at any time, the Reserve Account is not funded at the Reserve 
Account Requirement on a date which is 90 days prior to an Interest Payment Date or a Principal Payment 
Date, the Manager of the City is to prepare and submit to the Council a request for an appropriation of a 
sufficient amount to replenish the Reserve Account to the Reserve Account Requirement. The Council 
may determine in its sale discretion, but is not required, to make the appropriations so requested. All 
sums appropriated by the Council for such purpose are to be considered a loan of legally available 
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moneys of the City to the Community Center Fund, may draw interest until repaid at rate determined by 
the Council at the time the appropriation is made, and is to be deposited in the Reserve Account. The 
repayment obligation for any loan will be subordinate to the payment of the Bonds. While the Council 
has agreed to consider funding the Reserve Account pursuant to the terms of the Bond Ordinance to 
provide additional assurance that the Reserve Account will annually be funded at the Reserve Account 
Requirement, the Council's decision not to so fund the Reserve Account shall not constitute an Event of 
Default under the Bond Ordinance. 

Project Account. All moneys deposited in the Project Account shall be applied solely to the 
payment of the costs of the Project. Upon the determination of the Council that all Project costs have 
been paid or are determinable, any balance remaining in the Project Account (less any amounts necessary 
to pay Project costs not then due and owing) shall be transferred to the Bond Account. 

Moneys deposited in the Project Account may be invested or deposited in securities or obligations 
that are Permitted Investments. The investment of moneys deposited in the Project Account shall, 
however, be subject to the covenants and provisions of the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled 
"Covenants Regarding Exclusion of Interest on Bonds from Gross Income for Federal Income Tax 
Purposes." Except to the extent otherwise required by such section, interest income from the investment 
or reinvestment of moneys deposited in the Project Account shall remain in and become part of the 
Project Account. 

Events of Default and Remedies. The Bond Ordinance provides that the occurrence or existence 
of anyone or more of the following events will be an "Event of Default" thereunder: (a) failure to make 
any payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds when due under the Bond 
Ordinance; (b) breach by the City of any material covenant set forth in the Bond Ordinance or failure by 
the City to perform any material duty imposed on it under the Bond Ordinance and continuation of such 
breach or failure for a period of 60 days after receipt by the City Attorney of the City of written notice 
thereof from the Paying Agent or from the Owners of at least 10% in principal amount of the Outstanding 
Bonds, provided that such 60 day period will be extended so long as the City has commenced and 
continues a good faith effort to remedy such breach or failure; or (c) an order or decree is entered by a 
court of competent jurisdiction appointing a receiver for all or any portion of the revenues and moneys 
pledged for the payment of the Bonds pursuant to the Bond Ordinance is entered with the consent or 
acquiescence of the City or is entered without the consent or acquiescence of the City but is not vacated, 
discharged or stayed within 30 days after it is entered. Each Owner of any Bond will be entitled to all of 
the privileges, rights and remedies provided or permitted in the Bond Ordinance and as otherwise 
provided or permitted by law or in equity. 

Upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default, the Owners of not less than 25% 
in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, including, without limitation, a trustee or trustees 
therefor, may proceed against the City to protect and to enforce the rights of any Owner of Bonds under 
the Bond Ordinance by mandamus, injunction or by other suit, action or special proceedings in equity or 
at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction: (i) for the payment of interest on any installment of 
principal of any Bond that was not paid when due at the interest rate borne by such bond, (ii) for the 
appointment of a receiver or an operating trustee, (iii) for the specific performance of any covenant 
contained in the Bond Ordinance, (iv) to enjoin any act that may be unlawful or in violation of any right 
of any Owner of any Bond, (v) to require the City to act as if it were the trustee of an express trust, (vi) 
for any other proper legal or equitable remedy as such Owner may deem most effectual to protect their 
rights, or (vii) any combination of such remedies or as otherwise may be authorized by any statute or 
other provision of law; provided, however, that acceleration of any amount not yet due on the Bonds 
according to their terms shall not be an available remedy. All such proceedings at law or in equity shall 
be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then Outstanding. Any 

14 



receiver or operating trustee appointed in any proceedings to protect the rights of Owners of Bonds under 
the Bond Ordinance may collect, receive and apply all revenues and moneys pledged for the payment of 
the Bonds pursuant to the Bond Ordinance arising after the appointment of such receiver or operating 
trustee in the same manner as the City itself might do. The failure of any Owner of any Bond then 
Outstanding to proceed in any manner provided in the Bond Ordinance shall not relieve the City of any 
liability for failure to perform or carry out its duties under the Bond Ordinance. Each right or privilege of 
any such Owner (or trustee therefor) is in addition and is cumulative to any other right or privilege, and 
the exercise of any right or privilege by or on behalf of any Owner shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other right or privilege thereof. 

Additional Covenants of the City. Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, the City covenants for the 
benefit of Owners of the Bonds that: 

• The City will not reduce the percentage of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax deposited to the 
Community Center Fund pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, will not reduce the rate of the Pledged 
Sales and Use Tax, and will not alter, exempt or modify the transactions, properties or items 
subject to the Pledged Sales and Use Tax in any manner that the City expects will materially 
reduce the amounts available for deposit into the Community Center Fund. 

• The City will manage the collection and enforcement of the Pledged Sales and Use Tax in the 
most efficient and economical manner practicable. 

• The City will keep or cause to be kept such books and records showing the proceeds of the 
Pledged Sales and Use Tax, in which complete entries shall be made in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, as applicable to governmental entities, and the Owner of any 
Bond will have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all non confidential records, accounts, 
actions and data of the City relating to the Bonds, the Pledged Sales and Use Tax and the 
Community Center Fund. 

• The City will cause an annual audit to be made of the books relating to the Pledged Sales and Use 
Tax each year by a certified public or registered accountant and shall furnish a copy thereof to the 
Underwriter at its request and to any Owner who so requests and agrees to pay the cost of 
reproduction and mailing. The annual audit of the City's general purpose financial statements 
shall be deemed to satisfy this covenant. 

Parity Lien Bonds. The Bond Ordinance provides that the City shall not issue Parity Lien Bonds 
unless all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

• In the event that the Bonds are not issued in the principal amount of $15,000,000, for whatever 
reason, the City shall be permitted to issue the remaining unissued principal amount authorized by 
the Bond Ordinance without meeting the condition set forth in (i) or (ii) below, but with the 
consent of the Bond Insurer. For all other proposed Parity Lien Bonds, the City is required to 
obtain a written certification from a Certified Public Accountant that either: 

(i) the Pledged Sales and Use Tax for any 24 consecutive months in the 36 
months immediately preceding the month in which such certification is delivered 
(referred to in this paragraph as the "test period") have been equal to at least 150% of the 
sum of the Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements due or to become 
due on the Bonds, any Outstanding Parity Lien Bonds, and the proposed Parity Lien 
Bonds during each calendar year following the date of issuance of the proposed Parity 
Lien Bonds; or 
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(ii) the proceeds of the proposed Parity Lien Bonds will be used to refund 
the Bonds or Outstanding Parity Lien Bonds and the aggregate principal of and interest 
due on the proposed Parity Lien Bonds is not greater than the aggregate principal of and 
interest due on the bonds that will be refunded. 

For purposes of the above test, the "Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements" 
means the maximum annual amount required to be paid in any calendar year as the principal of 
(including any mandatory sinking fund requirements) and interest on the Bonds, any outstanding 
Parity Lien Bonds and proposed Parity Lien Bonds, excluding any such bonds which have been 
defeased pursuant to the terms of the authorizing documents. For purposes of calculating the 
Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements in any calendar year in which any issue 
of Bonds and Parity Lien Bonds finally mature, there is to be subtracted from the final payment 
for said bonds any cash or the present value of any investments deposited in a reserve fund or 
account established pursuant to the authorizing documents which are properly allocable to said 
bonds. Further, in calculating Combined Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements due or to 
become due on the Bonds, any outstanding Parity Lien Bonds, and the proposed Parity Lien 
Bonds in any calendar year, that portion of the interest obligation which is expected to be paid 
from Federal Direct Payments are to be excluded from the calculation of the amounts required to 
be paid, the intent being that such amounts be net of the Federal Direct Payments. 

• The ordinance, indenture or other document providing for the issuance of the Parity Lien Bonds 
must provide for a reserve account, which is established in the amount calculated in a manner and 
on the same basis as the Reserve Account Requirement, and a bond account for the Parity Lien 
Bonds; such accounts must be established and maintained on substantially the same terms and 
contain substantially the same provisions as set forth in the Bond Ordinance for the Reserve 
Account and the Bond Account, respectively. 

• The Mayor certifies in writing that no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. 

Amendments to Bond Ordinance. The Bond Ordinance provides that the City may, with prior 
written notice to the Bond Insurer, if any, and without the consent of or notice to the Owners of the 
Bonds, adopt one or more ordinances amending or supplementing the Bond Ordinance (which ordinances 
shall thereafter become a part of the Bond Ordinance) for anyone or more or all of the following 
purposes: (i) to cure any ambiguity or to cure, correct or supplement any defect or inconsistent provision 
of the Bond Ordinance; (ii) to subject to the Bond Ordinance additional revenues, properties or collateral 
or provide for a pledge of State or County sales taxes as permitted by the section of the Bond Ordinance 
entitled "Additional General Covenants"; (iii) to facilitate the designation of a substitute securities 
depository or to terminate the book entry registration system for the Bonds in accordance with the section 
of the Bond Ordinance entitled "Bond Details"; (iv) to facilitate the issuance of Parity Lien Bonds 
permitted to be issued pursuant to the section of the Bond Ordinance entitled "Conditions to Issuance of 
Parity Lien Bonds"; (v) to facilitate the funding of the Reserve Account or the substitution of one source 
of funding of the Reserve Account for another permitted source in accordance with the section of the 
Bond Ordinance entitled "Reserve Account"; (vi) to maintain the then existing or to secure a higher rating 
of the Bonds by any nationally recognized securities rating agency; or (vii) to make any other change that 
does not materially adversely affect the Owners of the Bonds. 

Except for amendments permitted by the immediately preceding paragraph, the Bond Ordinance 
may only be amended (i) by an ordinance of the City amending or supplementing the Bond Ordinance 
(which, after the consents required therefor, shall become a part thereof), and (ii) with the written consent 
of the Bond Insurer, if any, and the Owners of at least 66 2/3% in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding; provided that any amendment that makes any of the following changes with 
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respect to any Bond shall not be effective without the written consent of the Owner of such bond: (A) a 
change in the maturity of such bond; (B) a reduction of the interest rate on such bond; (C) a change in the 
terms of redemption of such bond; (D) a delay in the payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest 
on such bond; (E) the creation of any pledge of or lien upon any revenues or moneys pledged for the 
payment of such bond under the Bond Ordinance that is superior to the pledge and lien for the payment of 
such bond under the Bond Ordinance; (F) a relaxation of the conditions to the issuance of Parity Lien 
Bonds or to the creation of any pledge of or lien upon any revenues or moneys pledged for the payment of 
such bond under the Bond Ordinance that is equal to or on a parity with the pledge and lien for the 
payment of such bond under the Bond Ordinance; (G) a reduction of the principal amount or percentage 
of Bonds whose consent is required for an amendment to the Bond Ordinance; or (H) the establishment of 
a priority or preference for the payment of any amount due with respect to any other Bond over such 
bond. 

Debt Service Requirements 

Set forth in the following table are the combined debt service requirements for the Series 2009A 
Bonds and the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. See the cover of this Official Statement for the actual 
interest rates for each maturity of such Bonds. 

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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TABLE I 
Debt Service Requirements 1 

Series 2009A Bonds Taxable Series 2009B Bonds 2 Total Gross Subsidy 3 Total Net of Subsidy 
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2010 $ $ 116,081 $ $ 674,951 $ 791,032 $ (236,233) $ 554,799 
2011 25,000 131,000 761,700 917,700 (266,595) 651,105 
2012 25,000 130,250 761,700 916,950 (266,595) 650,355 
2013 25,000 129,500 761,700 916,200 (266,595) 649,605 
2014 25,000 128,688 761,700 915,388 (266,595) 648,793 
2015 50,000 127,812 761,700 939,512 (266,595) 672,917 
2016 60,000 125,937 761,700 947,637 (266,595) 681,042 
2017 75,000 123,538 761,700 960,238 (266,595) 693,643 
2018 100,000 120,537 761,700 982,237 (266,595) 715,642 
2019 125,000 116,288 761,700 1,002,988 (266,595) 736,393 
2020 110,975 160,000 761,700 1,032,675 (266,595) 766,080 
2021 110,975 190,000 749,828 1,050,803 (262,440) 788,363 
2022 110,975 220,000 735,730 1,066,705 (257,506) 809,199 
2023 110,975 255,000 719,406 1,085,381 (251,792) 833,589 
2024 110,975 290,000 700,485 1,101,460 (245,170) 856,290 
2025 110,975 330,000 678,967 1,119,942 (237,638) 882,304 
2026 110,975 370,000 654,481 1,135,456 (229,068) 906,388 
2027 110,975 415,000 627,027 1,153,002 (219,459) 933,543 
2028 110,975 460,000 596,234 1,167,209 (208,682) 958,527 
2029 110,975 510,000 562,102 1,183,077 (196,736) 986,341 
2030 110,975 565,000 524,260 1,200,235 (183,491) 1,016,744 
2031 110,975 620,000 481,772 1,212,747 (168,620) 1,044,127 
2032 110,975 680,000 435,148 1,226,123 (152,302) 1,073,821 
2033 110,975 745,000 384,012 1,239,987 (134,404) 1,105,583 
2034 110,975 815,000 327,988 1,253,963 (114,796) 1,139,167 
2035 410,000 110,975 450,000 266,700 1,237,675 (93,345) 1,144,330 
2036 395,000 87,400 550,000 232,410 1,264,810 (81,344) 1,183,466 
2037 385,000 64,687 650,000 190,500 1,290,187 (66,675) 1,223,512 
2038 370,000 42,550 750,000 140,970 1,303,520 (49,339) 1,254,181 
2039 4 370,000 21,275 1,100,000 83,820 1,575,095 (29,337) 1,545,758 
Total $2,4402000 $3,241.143 $10,125,000 $17,383,791 $33,189,934 $(6,084.327) $27,105,607 

I Assumes no redemptions, other than mandatory sinking fund redemption payments, Figures have been rounded, 
2 The City expects to receive payments from the United States Government equal to 35% of the interest on the Taxable 
Series 2009B Bonds (the Federal Direct Payments) as reimbursement for a portion of the interest payments made with 
respect thereto by the City, 
3 Federal Direct Payments, 
4 The Pledged Sales and Use Tax is reduced from I % to 0.4% on January 1, 2039; however, the payments in calendar year 
2039 are expected to be made from moneys available in the Reserve Account. 
Source: The Underwriter 

Debt Service Coverage 

The following table sets forth the estimated annual debt service coverage which would have been 
provided by the Pledged Revenues and Federal Direct Payments for the average annual debt service on 
the Bonds for the periods shown below, had the City been collecting 1 % of the Sales and Use Tax for 
payment of the Bonds, if then outstanding, See "THE SALES AND USE TAX-Sales and Use Tax 
Data," The debt service requirements for the Bonds are set forth in "-Debt Service Requirements" 
above. 
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TABLE II 
Estimated Historical Debt Service Coverage 1,2,3 

Estimated Historical Pledged Revenues 
Average Annual Federal Direct Payments 

Total Available Revenues 

Average Annual Debt Service on the Bonds 
maturing December 1, 2010 to December 1, 2019 4 

Average Annual Coverage Factor (with Federal 
Direct Payments) on the Bonds maturing 
December 1,2010 to December 1,2019 

Average Annual Debt Service on the Bonds 

2004 

$ 860,073 
202,811 

$1.062,884 

$928,988 

1.14x 

2005 

$ 944,500 
202,811 

$IJ47,311 

$928,988 

1.24x 

2006 2007 2008 

$ 984,190 $1,224,985 $1,114,285 
202,811 202,811 202,811 

$1,187,001 $1.427,796 $1,317,096 

$928,988 $928,988 $928,988 

1.28x 1.54x 1.42x 

maturing December 1, 2020 to December 1,2029 4 $1,109,571 $1,109,571 $1,109,571 $1,109,571 $1,109,571 

Average Annual Coverage Factor (with Federal 
Direct Payments) on the Bonds maturing 
December 1,2020 to December 1,2029 

Average Annual Debt Service on the Bonds 

.96x 1.03x 1.07x 1.29x 1.19x 

maturing December 1, 2030 to December 1, 2039 4 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 $1,280,434 

Average Annual Coverage Factor (with Federal 
Direct Payments) on the Bonds maturing 
December 1,2030 to December 1,2039 0 .. 83x 0.90x 0.93x 1.12x 1.03x 

I As indicated in "TABLE IV -Monthly Comparison of Collections of Base Sales and Use Tax" for the last twelve month period as 
compared to the preceding month period, the City has collected 17.5% less in sales and use tax collections. 
2 The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 imposes requirements on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds that the City must continue to meet 
after the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are issued in order to receive the Federal Direct Payments. Although the City will covenant in 
a certificate delivered on the date of issuance of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds to take the actions necessary to ensure receipt of 
the Federal Direct Payments, failure to comply with such covenant does not constitute an Event of Default under the Bond 
Ordinance. The amount of Federal Direct Payments will be based on the interest payable on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds and, 
as a result, will vary over the term of such Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. 
3 Figures have been rounded. 
4 Averages are based on Total Gross Annual Debt Service, prior to any Federal Direct Payments subsidy. 
Source: City Finance Department and Underwriter 

The receipt of sales tax revenue is subject to the elastic nature of consumer spending. This causes 
Sales and Use Tax revenue to increase along with the higher prices brought about by inflation, but also 
causes collections to be vulnerable to adverse economic conditions and reduced consumer confidence 
which would result in reduced spending. The estimated historical Pledged Revenues of the City set forth 
in the table above may not be consistent with future Pledged Revenues of the City as a result of such 
changes in economic conditions. 

BOND INSURANCE 

The following information is not complete and reference is made to APPENDIX F for a specimen 
of the Bond Insurance Policy of Assured Guaranty. 
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The Insurance Policy 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Assured Guaranty will issue the Policy for the 
Bonds. The Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due 
as set forth in the form of the Policy included as APPENDIX F to this Official Statement. 

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New 
York, California, Connecticut or Florida insurance law. 

The Insurer 

Assured Guaranty is a Maryland-domiciled insurance company regulated by the Maryland 
Insurance Administration and licensed to conduct financial guaranty insurance business in all fifty states 
of the United States, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. Assured Guaranty commenced operations 
in 1988. Assured Guaranty is a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of Assured Guaranty Ltd. ("AGL"), a 
Bermuda-based holding company whose shares are publicly traded and are listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the symbol "AGO." AGL, through its operating subsidiaries, provides credit 
enhancement products to the U.S. and global public finance, structured finance and mortgage markets. 
Neither AGL nor any of its shareholders is obligated to pay any debts of Assured Guaranty or any claims 
under any insurance policy issued by Assured Guaranty. 

Assured Guaranty's financial strength is rated "AAA" (negative outlook) by Standard & Poor's, a 
division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("S&P"), "Aa2" (on review for possible downgrade) by 
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's") and "AA-" (negative outlook) by Fitch, Inc. ("Fitch"). 
Each rating of Assured Guaranty should be evaluated independently. An explanation of the significance 
of the above ratings may be obtained from the applicable rating agency. The above ratings are not 
recommendations to buy, sell or hold any security, and such ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal 
at any time by the rating agencies. Any downward revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings 
may have an adverse effect on the market price of any security guaranteed by Assured Guaranty. Assured 
Guaranty does not guaranty the market price of the securities it guarantees, nor does it guaranty that the 
ratings on such securities will not be revised or withdrawn. 

Recent Developments 

Ratings 

On July 1,2009, S&P published a Research Update in which it affirmed its "AAA" counterparty 
credit and financial strength ratings on Assured Guaranty. At the same time, S&P revised its outlook on 
Assured Guaranty to negative from stable. Reference is made to the Research Update, a copy of which is 
available at www.standardandpoors.com. for the complete text of S&P's comments. 

On May 20, 2009, Moody's issued a press release stating that it had placed the "Aa2" insurance 
financial strength rating of Assured Guaranty on review for possible downgrade. Subsequently, in an 
announcement dated July 24, 2009 entitled "Moody's Comments on Assured's Alillouncement to 
Guarantee and Delist FSA Debt", Moody's announced that it expected to conclude its review by mid­
August 2009. Reference is made to the press release and the announcement, copies of which are available 
at www.moodys.com. for the complete text of Moody's comments. 

In a press release dated October 12, 2009, Fitch announced that it had downgraded the insurer 
financial strength rating of Assured Guaranty to "AA-" (negative outlook) from "AA" (ratings watch 
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negative). Reference is made to the press release, a copy of which is available at www.fitchratings.com. 
for the complete text of Fitch's comments. 

There can be no assurance as to the outcome of Moody's review, or as to the further action that 
Fitch or S&P may take with respect to Assured Guaranty. 

For more information regarding Assured Guaranty's financial strength ratings and the risks 
relating thereto, see AGL's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2008, 
which was filed by AGL with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on February 26,2009, 
AGL's Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009, which was filed 
by AGL with the SEC on May 11, 2009, and AGL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly 
period ended June 30, 2009, which was filed by AGL with the SEC on August 10,2009. 

Acquisition ofFSA 

On July 1,2009, AGL acquired the financial guaranty operations of Financial Security Assurance 
Holdings Ltd. ("FSA"), the parent of financial guaranty insurance company Financial Security Assurance 
Inc. For more information regarding the acquisition by AGL ofFSA, see Item 1.01 of the Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed by AGL with the SEC on July 8, 2009. 

Capitalization of Assured Guaranty Corp. 

As of June 30, 2009, Assured Guaranty had total admitted assets of $1,950,949,811 (unaudited), 
total liabilities of $1,653,306,246 (unaudited), total surplus of $297,643,565 (unaudited) and total 
statutory capital (surplus plus contingency reserves) of $1,084,906,800 (unaudited) determined in 
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory 
authorities. 

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference 

The portions of the following documents relating to Assured Guaranty are hereby incorporated by 
reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part hereof: 

the Annual Report on Form lO-K of AGL for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 
(which was filed by AGL with the SEC on February 26, 2009); 

the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009 
(which was filed by AGL with the SEC on May 11,2009); 

the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2009 (which 
was filed by AGL with the SEC on August 10, 2009); and 

the Current Reports on Form 8-K filed by AGL with the SEC relating to the periods 
following the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. 

All consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty and all other information relating to 
Assured Guaranty included in documents filed by AGL with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13 (c), 14 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, subsequent to the date of this Official 
Statement and prior to the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall be deemed to be incorporated by 
reference into this Official Statement and to be a part hereof from the respective dates of filing such 
consolidated financial statements. 
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Any statement contained in a document incorporated herein by reference or contained herein 
under the heading "BOND INSURANCE-The Insurer" shall be modified or superseded for purposes of 
this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any subsequently filed 
document which is incorporated by reference herein also modifies or supersedes such statement. Any 
statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to 
constitute a part of this Official Statement. 

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty incorporated by reference 
herein and of the statutory financial statements filed by Assured Guaranty with the Maryland Insurance 
Administration are available upon request by contacting Assured Guaranty at 31 West 52nd Street, New 
York, New York 10019 or by calling Assured Guaranty at (212) 974-0100. In addition, the information 
regarding Assured Guaranty that is incorporated by reference in this Official Statement that has been filed 
by AGL with the SEC is available to the public over the Internet at the SEC's web site at 
http://www.sec.gov and at AGL's web site at http://www.assuredguaranty.com, from the SEC's Public 
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549, and at the office ofthe 
New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005. 

Assured Guaranty makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in 
the Bonds. In addition, Assured Guaranty has not independently verified, makes no representation 
regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official 
Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect 
to the accuracy of the information regarding Assured Guaranty supplied by Assured Guaranty and 
presented under the heading "BOND INSURANCE". 

THE SALES AND USE TAX 

The Pledged Revenues for the payment of the debt service on the Bonds consists of the revenue 
derived from a 1.0% tax comprising a portion of the City's 3.0% Sales and Use Tax and interest earnings 
on moneys deposited in the Community Center Fund. The following information includes a description 
of the collection, administration, and enforcement procedures for the City's Sales and Use Tax. 

Authority for the Imposition of the Sales and Use Tax 

The Sales and Use Tax is imposed pursuant to Title 3 of the City Municipal Code (the "Sales and 
Use Tax Code"). The City cunently imposes a voter-approved sales and use tax at the rate of 3.0%, 
which commenced January 1,2009, which is an increase of 1 % pursuant to an election held November 4, 
2008. The 1 % increase, the Pledged Sales and Use Tax, is required to be deposited to the Community 
Center Fund established solely for payment of the Bonds and the Parity Lien Bonds, if any. Such Pledged 
Sales and Use Tax shall be reduced from a rate of 1.0% to a rate of 0.4% on January 1st following the 
date on which the Bonds are paid in full (but in no event shall such reduction occur later than January 1, 
2039) to provide for the constructing, improving, equipping, operating and maintaining of the Project. 

The City also has a separate 3.0% accommodations tax which is imposed in addition to the Sales 
and Use Tax. 

The Sales Tax. Pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax Code, the City's sales tax is imposed upon: 
the purchase price paid or charged upon all sales and purchases of tangible personal property at retail in 
the City; the purchase price paid or charged upon propeliy exchanged; the price paid for telephone or 
telegraph services, the price paid for gas and electric service, the price paid for all meals and cover 
charges sold to the public, the price charged for rooms or accommodations, and the full purchase price of 
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articles sold after manufacture or having been made to order (with the sales price being the gross value of 
all the materials, labor, service and the profit thereon, included in the price charged to the consumer). 

The Sales and Use Tax Code provides that the following classes of tangible personal property and 
the following sales transactions, among others as more particularly described therein, are exempt from 
taxation: food and prescription drugs; occasional sales by a charitable organization; farm equipment used 
for agricultural purposes; and the sales and purchase of pesticides used for agricultural purposes. 

The Sales and Use Tax Code additionally designates exemptions for: (A) all sales of personal 
property on which a specific ownership tax has been paid or is payable are to be exempt from sales tax 
when such sales meet both the following conditions: (i) the purchaser is a nonresident of, or has its 
principal place of business outside of, the City; and (ii) such personal property is registered or required to 
be registered outside the City limits of the City under the laws of the State. Further, every vendor 
vending individual items of personal property through coin-operated vending machines are to be exempt 
from the provisions of the Sales and Use Tax Code, but nevertheless such vender is to pay sales tax of 3% 
on the personal property sold in excess of ten cents so bended in the coin-operated machines unless the 
sales it otherwise exempt under the provisions of the Sales and Use Tax Code. 

The Use Tax. The Use Tax is levied and collected for using or consuming in the City any 
construction or building materials, or storing, using and consuming in the City, motor vehicles, other 
vehicles on which registration is required, and mobile homes on which ad valorem property taxes have 
not been paid. 

The Sales and Use Tax Code also provides that the following classes of tangible personal 
property and the following transactions are exempt from use tax: the storage, use or consumption of any 
tangible personal property, the sale of which is subject to the City retail sales tax as provided in the Sales 
and Use Tax Code; the storage, use or consumption of any tangible personal property purchased for resale 
in the City, either in its original form or as an ingredient of a manufactured or compounded product, in the 
regular course of a business; the storage, use or consumption of tangible personal property brought into 
the City by a nonresident thereof for his own storage, use or consumption while temporarily within the 
City, the storage, use of consumption of tangible personal property of the United States or the State or its 
institutions or its political subdivisions, in their governmental capacities only or by religious or charitable 
corporations, in the conduct of their regular religious or charitable functions; the storage, use or 
consumption of tangible personal property for use in the business of manufacturing or compounding for 
sale, profit or use, any article, substance or commodity which tangible personal property enters into the 
processing of or becomes an ingredient or component part of the product or service which is 
manufactured, compounded or furnished and the container, label or the furnished shipping case thereof; 
the storage, use or consumption of tangible personal property and household effect acquired outside the 
City and brought into it by a nonresident acquiring residency; the storage or use of a motor vehicle, other 
vehicle on which registration is required, or mobile home if the owner is or was, at the time of purchase, a 
nonresident of the City and he purchased the vehicle outside of the City for use outside the City and 
actually so used it for the primary purpose for which it was acquired and he registered, titled and licensed 
the motor vehicle, other vehicle on which registration is required, or mobile home outside the City; the 
use or consumption of any construction and building materials, and the storage, use and consumption of 
motor and other vehicles on which registration is required, and mobile home if a written contract for 
purchase thereof was entered into prior to November 10, 1980; the use or consumption of any 
construction and building materials required or made necessary in the performance of any construction 
contract bid, let or entered into at any time prior to November 10, 1980; the purchase by tax-exempt 
entities which would be otherwise taxable the Sales and Use Tax Code; for transactions consummated on 
or after January 1, 1986 the storage of construction and building material; and for transactions 
consummated on or after January 1, 1986, the City's use tax is not to be imposed with respect to the use 
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or consumption of tangible personal property within the City which occurs more than three years after the 
most recent sale of the property if, within the three years following such sale, the property has been 
significantly used within the State for the principal purpose for which it was purchased. In addition, the 
Use Tax does not apply to the storage, use, or consumption of any article of tangible personal property the 
sale or use of which has already been subject to a sales or use tax of another statutory or home rule 
municipality. 

Manner of Collection ofthe Sales and Use Tax 

The collection, administration and enforcement of the Sales and Use Tax is performed by the City 
"Director of Revenue", who is to prescribe forms and reasonable rules and regulation for making of 
returns, for the ascertainment, assessment, and collection of the taxes imposed under the Sales and Use 
Tax Code, and for the proper administration and enforcement of the Sales and Use Tax Code. All money 
collected by the Director of Revenue is to be remitted monthly to the City Clerk by the Director of 
Revenue. 

Sales Tax. Every retailer or vendor is, irrespective of the provisions as provided by the Sales and 
Use Tax Code, liable and responsible for the payment of an amount equivalent to 3% of all sales made by 
him of commodities or services as provided by the Sales and Use Tax Code (see "-Authority for the 
Imposition of the Sales and Use Tax" above), and before the fifteenth day of each calendar month make a 
return to the Director of Revenue for the preceding calendar month and remit an amount equivalent to 
said 3% on such sales to said director, less 3.3% of the sum so remitted to cover the vendor's expense in 
the collection and remittance of said tax. If any part of the payment if deficient due to negligence or 
intentional disregard of authorized rules and regulations with the knowledge thereof, but without the 
intent to defraud, there is to be added 10% of the total amount of the deficiency, and interest in such cast 
is to be collected at a rate of 0.5% per month, in addition to the interest provided by State statute, on the 
amount of such deficiency from the time the return was due, from the person required to file the return, 
which interest and addition is to become due and payable ten day after written notice and demand to him 
by the Director of Revenue. Penalties and interest are increased for cases of deliberate fraud as set forth 
in the Sales and Use Tax Code. 

Use Tax. If any amount of Use Tax is not paid on or before the last date prescribed for payment, 
there is to be added 10% of the total amount of the deficiency and interest is to be collected at an annual 
rate established by the State commissioner of banking pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax Code. Penalties 
and interest are increased for cases of deliberate fraud as set forth in the Sales and Use Tax Code. 

Notice of Deficiency. If taxes, penalty or interest imposed by the Sales and Use Tax Code are not 
paid within five days on Sales Tax, and ten days on Use Tax, after the same date due, the Director of 
Revenue is to issue a notice setting forth, among others, the name of the taxpayer and amounts due, and 
that the City claims a first and prior lien therefor on the real and tangible personal property. After said 
notice has been filed, the Director of Revenue may issue warrant directed to any duly authorized revenue 
collector, demanding him to levy upon, seize and sell sufficient for payment of amounts due, together 
with interest, penalties and costs, as may be provided by law. 

Sales and Use Tax Data 

History of City Sales and Use Tax Collections. The following table sets forth historical City 
Sales and Use Tax collections for the pre-existing 2% Sales and Use Tax (the "Base Sales and Use Tax") 
and the 1 % Pledged Sales and Use Tax which went into effect on January I, 2009. According to City 
officials, as of the date of this Official Statement, approximately 438 of the 621 Sales and Use Tax 
licenses issued are remitting sales tax to the City. 
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TABLE III 
History of City Sales and Use Tax Collections 1 

Total Base Sales Pledged Sales 
Base Sales Tax Base Use Tax and Use Tax Percent and Use Tax 

Year Collections Collections Collections Change Collections 

2004 $ 737,308 $ 982,838 $1,720,146 $ 
2005 882,593 1,006,407 1,889,000 9.8% 
2006 1,001,887 966,812 1,968,699 4.2 
2007 1,201,264 1,248,706 2,449,970 24.5 
2008 1,384,355 844,216 2,228,571 (9.0) 
2009 2 796,787 314,678 1,111,465 546,568 

I The City's Sales and Use Tax rate was 2.0% through December 31,2008 (the "Base Sales and Use Tax"). The 
additional voter approved 1% Pledged Sales and Use Tax went into effect on January 1, 2009, increasing the total 
City Sales and Use Tax to 3.0%. 
2 Collections through August 31,2009. 
Source: City Finance Department 

Monthly Comparison of Collections of Base Sales and Use Tax. The following table presents a 
comparison of monthly Base Sales and Use Tax receipts for the 12-month periods ended August 31, 2008 
and 2009. Sales and Use Tax receipts generally lag retail sales by one month. 

TABLE IV 
Monthly Comparison of Collections of Base Sales and Use Tax 1 

12-Month Period Ended 12-Month Period Ended 
August 30, 2008 August 30, 2009 

Current Period Current Period 
Month Month To Date Month To Date 

September $212,541 $ 212,541 $205,162 $ 205,162 
October 166,999 379,540 196,775 401,937 
November 160,288 539,828 155,152 557,089 
December 181,027 720,855 166,610 723,699 
January 166,961 887,816 121,235 844,934 
February 149,849 1,037,665 120,144 965,078 
March 178,553 1,216,218 136,594 1,101,672 
April 204,379 1,420,597 154,522 1,256,194 
May 217,103 1,637,700 147,841 1,404,035 
June 198,535 1,836,235 147,482 1,551,517 
July 187,010 2,023,245 135,109 1,686,626 
August 202,481 2,225,726 148,537 1,835,163 

I The City's Base Sales and Use Tax rate was 2.0% through December 31, 2008 with the 
additional voter approved 1 % Pledged Sales and Use Tax going into effect on January 1, 2009, 
increasing the total City Sales and Use Tax to 3.0%. The figures presented in this table include 
only the revenue received from the 2% Base Sales and Use Tax. 
Source: City Finance Department 
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Top 10 Generators of Base Sales and Use Tax. Set forth in the following table are the City's 
principal Base Sales and Use Tax generators for 2008. Because of the confidential nature of the gross 
sales of the individual entities, the identity of vendors cannot be divulged by state law. 

TABLE V 
Top 10 Generators of 2008 Base Sales and Use Tax 1 

Business Type 

Utility 
Food and Beverage Store 
Wholesale Trade 
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealer 
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealer 
Food and Beverage Store 
T elecommunications/Broadcasting 
Food Services and Beverage Establishment 
Accommodation 
Accommodation 

Total 

Base Sales and Use 
Tax Receipts 

$168,489 
93,846 
77,482 
51,231 
48,817 
44,125 
37,935 
29,268 
28,930 
26,297 

$606.420 

Percent of Total 
Collections 2 

7.5% 
4.2 
3.5 
2.3 
2.2 
2.0 
1.7 
1.3 
1.3 

-.-U. 
27.2% 

I The City's Base Sales and Use Tax rate was 2.0% through December 3 1,2008 with the additional voter approved 
I % Pledged Sales and Use Tax going into effect on January 1,2009, increasing the total City Sales and Use Tax to 
3.0%. The figures presented in this table include only the revenue received from the 2% Base Sales and Use Tax. 
2Based on total 2008 Sales and Use Tax collections of$2,228,571. 
Source: City Finance Department 

THE CITY 

Description 

The City is located along Interstate 70 in the northwest portion of the County in the west central 
portion ofthe State, and is approximately 13 miles west of Grand Junction. The area's economy is based 
primarily on tourism, recreation, ranching and farming. The City encompasses approximately seven 
square miles and has a current estimated population of 10,947. The City was established in 1884, and 
upon voter approval of the Charter in 1981, became a home rule City form of government. 

Governing Body 

The City operates under a council-manager form of government whereby, except as otherwise 
provided by the Charter or statute, the Council exercises all powers conferred upon or possessed by the 
City and has the power and authority to adopt such laws, ordinances and resolutions as it deems proper in 
the exercise thereof. The City Manager serves as the chief administrative officer of the City government. 
The Council consists of six members, all of whom are elected at large by the registered voters of the City. 
The terms of all Council members are to be four years. At each regular election, three council members 
are elected. The Mayor, who is chosen by regular election for a term of two years, is the presiding officer 
of the Council, with voting powers only in the event of a tie vote of the Council. The Council elects from 
its membership a Mayor Pro-Tem to serve during the Mayor's absence or disability, also to serve a two 
year term. Pursuant to statute, with certain exceptions, no nonjudicial elected official of any political 
subdivision of the State can serve more than two consecutive terms in office; however, such term 
limitation may be lengthened, shOliened or eliminated pursuant to voter approval. 
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The current Mayor and members of the Council, their principal occupations, length of service on 
the Council, and terms of office are set forth in the following table. 

Principal Years of Term Expires 
Name Occupation Service (April) 

H. Kenneth Henry, Mayor Real Estate 2.5 2010 
Lori Buck, Mayor Pro-Tern Small Business Owner 2.5 2010 
R. Bruce Bonar Chemist 0.5 2010 
Nick Kohls Retired Teacher 6.5 2010 
Stacey Mascarenas County-Real Estate 0.5 2012 
Terry Moss Medical Office Administrator 0.5 2012 
Mel Mulder Craftsman 6.5 2012 

The Council effects its decisions through the passage of ordinances, resolutions, and motions. All 
legislative enactments must be in the form of an ordinance. Legislative enactments include, but are not 
limited to, adopting or amending an administrative code or establishing, altering or abolishing any 
department, office or agency; providing for a fine or other penalty or establishing a rule or regulation, for 
which a fine or other penalty may be imposed; levying a tax; conveying or authorizing the conveyance of 
any real property of the City and the lease of any real estate for a period of more than one year; and 
granting a franchise. 

Administration 

The council-manager form of government vests responsibility for day-to-day City operations in 
the City Manager and his staff. The Charter provides that, all the powers of the City are to be exercised 
by direction of the Council, with the City Manager being the chief administrative officer and the Mayor 
having separate powers and duties, as set forth therein. The City Manager and the City Attorney serve at 
the pleasure of the Council, with the City Manager responsible for appointing the City Clerk. 

City Manager. The City Manager is the chief executive officer of the City. The City Manager is 
responsible to the Council for all City affairs placed in its charge by the Charter, the Council, or by law, 
including the oversight of all departments, offices and agencies of the City and directing the preparation 
of the City's annual budget. Clinton M. Kinney was appointed City Manager in 2002. His prior 
experience includes servicing in Durango, Colorado and Lenexa, Kansas in various management 
positions. Mr. Kinney holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Administration and a minor in 
Economics from Fort Lewis College in Durango, Colorado, and a masters degree in Public administration 
from the University of Kansas. Mr. Kinney is an active member of the International City Managers 
Association and is currently serving as the president of the Colorado City and County Management 
Association. 

City Clerk and Finance Director. The City Clerk is the custodian of the City's records, issues 
City licenses, conducts elections and performs such other duties as directed by the Charter, the Councilor 
the City Manager. The Finance Director is responsible for providing accurate financial data for use in 
making informed decisions on the management of the City, and is responsible for preparation of the 
City's financial statements, investment of public funds and assisting the City Manager in preparation of 
the City's annual budget. The Finance Department provides general accounting services for the City, 
including accounts payable, payroll and utility billing. 

Margaret Steelman was appointed City Clerk in 1984. She received certification as a city clerk 
from the University of Colorado. She also attended Mesa College in Grand Junction. Ms. Steelman was 
appointed as acting Finance Director in 1985, becoming the Finance Director in 1992. She attended Mesa 
College in Grand Junction. She has also served as Acting City Manager on numerous occasions. Ms. 
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Steelman is a member of the Colorado Government Finance Officers Association, the Government 
Finance Officers Association, the Colorado Municipal Clerks Association and the International Institute 
of Municipal Clerks Association. 

City Attorney. Edward P. Sands was appointed as the City Attorney in 1994. He received his 
Artium Baccalaureatus (A.B.) degree in Political Science and History from Duke University and received 
her Juris Doctorate from the University of Nebraska. Mr. Sands has practiced law in the State of 
Colorado since 1977, specializing in real estate, commercial, probate and local government law. 
Mr. Sands carries memberships in the Colorado Municipal League and the Colorado Bar Association. 

City Employees and Benefits 

The City has 59 permanent full time employees, 9 part-time employees and 33 seasonal 
employees. According to City officials, the City has experienced significant growth in population in the 
last several years, requiring additional staff to provide service. Specifically, the City has expanded its 
park maintenance operations with the addition of trails and the 18 acre Little Salt Wash Park, resulting in 
the need for additional seasonal employees for parks maintenance. The police department has also 
increased part time staff to assist with clerical and records management functions of the department. 
Engineering staff has increased to provide project management and inspections for both capital projects 
and new residential and commercial development in the community. Recreation programs have expanded 
to provide more opportunities for the community, requiring additional instructors and staff to oversee the 
programs. 

The City has worked to develop a comprehensive compensation package for its staff members. 
Full time employees earn vacation at rates which increase as the length of the employees service increases 
and receive sick leave at the rate of one day per month. City employees have 11 paid holidays each year. 
The City provides health insurance for employees. City employees also receive workers compensation, 
unemployment and social security benefits. None of the employees are unionized, and City management 
believes employee relations to be good. 

Services Available to City Residents 

The City provides a broad range of municipal services to the community including police; 
sidewalk repair services; wastewater collection and treatment; irrigation water; parks and recreation; and 
trash and recycling services. Fire protection is provided by the Lower Valley Fire Protection District. 
Utilities not provided by the City, including gas and phone service, are provided by public and private 
entities. 

In addition, the City owns the Devils Canyon Center, a 22,000 square foot facility, which is 
leased to the Museum of Western Colorado for the operation of a dinosaur museum. The Devils Canyon 
Center is operated as an Enterprise Fund and is not supported through the General Fund. 

Capital Improvements Plan 

The City maintains a five year capital improvement plan. Projects over the next five years and 
the funding sources for such projects are included within different funds of the City. In addition the City 
anticipates issuing $30 million in new debt in 2009 or 2010 for the construction of a new wastewater 
facility. The City has also been approved for a loan through the Colorado Water Resources and Power 
Development Authority, which is expected to be repaid through monthly sewer charges and tap fee 
revenues of the sewer fund. 
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Current Capital Projects. 

A portion of the net proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance the Project as more particularly 
described in "THE BONDS-Application of Bond Proceeds-The Project. The purpose of this Project is 
to construct a community related facility that will house a multitude of recreation programs and activities, 
and to prove adequate spaces to meet the recreational needs of the community. Construction is expected 
to begin in November 2009 and is expected to be complete by January 2011. 

CITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Accounting Policies 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups. Such funds are 
segregated for the purpose of accounting for the operation of specific activities or attaining certain 
objectives. For a description of the various funds and account groups, see the City's audited financial 
statements attached hereto. Financial operations are accounted for by the City's finance department. 
State law and the Charter require an annual audit to be made of the City's financial statements at the end 
of the fiscal year. The audited financial statements must be filed with the Council within six months after 
the end of the fiscal year and with the state auditor 30 days thereafter. Failure to file an audit report may 
result in the withholding of the City's property tax revenues by the county treasurer pending compliance. 

The City's fiscal year 2008 financial statements, appended hereto, were audited by Dalby, 
Wendland & Co., P.C., Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, Grand Junction, Colorado. Such 
financial statements are the most current audited financial information available for the City. 

Historical and Budgeted General Fund Financial Information 

The governmental fund utilized for the general administration and operation of the City is the 
General Fund. Set forth hereafter is a five-year comparative statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the City's General Fund. The following information should be read together 
with the City's financial statements and accompanying notes appended hereto. Preceding years' financial 
statements may be obtained from the sources noted in "MISCELLANEOUS-Additional Information." 

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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TABLE VI 
History of General Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Revenues: 
Taxes 

Property 
City Sales 
County Sales 
Use Tax 
Other 

Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Fines, Forfeitures and Assessments 
Development Impact Fees 
Investment Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 
Donations 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
General Government 
Administration 
Engineering 
Community Development 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Recreation 
Non-Departmental 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 
Sale of Capital Assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balance - Beginning 
Fund Balance Ending 

2004 

$ 405,713 
737,308 

1,527,268 
982,838 
273,630 
29,026 

465,778 
259,004 

55,394 
238,475 
42,066 
25,019 
25,336 
22,317 

5,089,172 

219,205 
361,674 
213,039 
236,418 

1,091,066 
873,290 
277,582 
136,120 

3,408,394 

1,680,778 

113,200 
(1,167,382) 

3,905 
(1,050,277) 

630,501 

2,680,308 
$3.310,809 

Source: City Audited Basic Financial Statements, 2004-2008 

2005 

$ 442,114 
882,593 

1,699,073 
1,006,407 

313,750 
31,238 

479,193 
309,748 

62,374 
44,039 
77,045 
18,726 
17,593 
8,876 

5,392,769 

225,090 
347,339 
246,773 
280,554 

1,253,473 
1,031,259 

288,530 
166,846 

3,839,684 

1,552,905 

139,700 
(1,069,684) 

24,313 
(905,671) 

647,234 

3,310,809 
$3,958,043 

2006 

$ 611,632 
1,001,569 
1,964,908 

966,812 
410,989 

37,685 
1,240,718 

398,583 
58,631 
54,626 

178,710 
24,162 
10,683 
9,131 

6,968,839 

320,742 
469,432 
241,869 
283,780 

1,334,202 
1,230,093 

316,095 
143,430 

4,339,643 

2,629,196 

165,400 
(1,386,811) 

44,952 
3,245 

(1,173,214) 

1,455,982 

3,958,043 
$5,414,025 

2007 

$ 652,317 
1,201,264 
2,196,927 
1,248,706 

440,567 
36,506 

1,107,803 
294,449 

67,207 
103,415 
283,680 
34,788 

8,485 
24,315 

7,700,429 

346,748 
495,085 
322,577 
430,108 

1,579,546 
1,467,926 

431,208 
161,694 

5,234,892 

2,465,537 

165,600 
(1,066,986) 

(901,386) 

1,564,151 

5,414,025 
$6,978.176 

2008 

$ 949,023 
1,384,355 
2,246,799 

844,216 
546,493 
34,675 

1,852,812 
363,616 

63,476 
79,924 

189,287 
31,085 
11,469 
7,740 

8,604,970 

351,338 
497,440 
313,372 
406,033 

1,748,015 
1,490,319 

526,218 
204,718 
483,524 

6,020,977 

2,583,993 

162,400 
(1,511,870) 

5,512 
(1,343,958) 

1,240,035 

6,978,176 
$8,218.211 

Budget and Appropriation Procedure, All City spending is in accordance with its annual 
budget, adopted pursuant to the procedure prescribed in the Charter. The City'S fiscal year runs from 
January 1 through December 31. Pursuant to the Charter, on or before October 1 of each year, the City 
Manager must submit to the Council a complete City budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget must 
be a complete financial plan, including: (a) anticipated revenue from all sources other than the tax levy for 
the ensuing year, (b) general fund surplus or deficit at the end of the current fiscal year, (c) proposed 
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expenditures for the operation of the City, (d) debt service requirements, (e) proposed capital projects and 
financing thereof for the ensuing year and five years thereafter, and (f) a balance between the proposed 
expenditures and the proposed available capital. The Council sets a public hearing on the budget, 
providing notice by publication ten days prior to such hearing. After the hearing, and on or before the 
first regular meeting in November, the Council adopts the budget by resolution, and on or before the first 
regular meeting in December, the Council adopts the tax levy. Subsequent to the adoption of the budget 
and on or before their first regular meeting in November, the Council passes the annual appropriation 
ordinance for the next fiscal year. 

The Council, may, by ordinance, make additional appropnatlOns during the fiscal year for 
unforeseen expenditures; however, such appropriations may not exceed the amount by which actual 
revenues are surpassing revenues proposed in the budget, except in emergency situations. By an 
affirmative vote of five or more, the Council may transfer unencumbered funds from one department to 
another; however, they may not transfer funds from any sinking fund, encumbered fund, or the capital 
project fund. The Council timely adopted the City's 2009 budget and appropriation resolution pursuant to 
the above described procedure and timely filed such budget with the State division of local government. 

2008 and 2009 General Fund Budget Summary and Comparison. Set forth hereafter is a 
comparison of the City's 2008 and 2009 General Fund budgets, as amended, as compared to the 2009 
actual year-to-date unaudited figures. 

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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TABLE VII 
General Fund Budget Summary and Comparison 

2009 Actual 
2008 Budget 2009 Budget Year-to-Date 

(as amended) (as amended) (unaudited) 1 

REVENUE 
Taxes 

Property $ 951,350 $1,024,750 $ 988,318 
City Sales 1,210,000 1,315,000 841,426 
County Sales 2,300,000 1,840,000 1,257,509 
Use Tax 950,800 426,000 324,972 
Other 425,500 518,150 323,696 

Permits and Licenses 34,500 34,000 13,940 
Intergovernmental 992,292 1,195,313 239,529 
Charges for Services 269,350 227,500 204,923 
Fines, Forfeitures and Assessments 63,000 58,500 40,390 
Development Impact Fees 80,000 100,000 71,256 
Investment Earnings 200,000 45,000 44,788 
Rents and Royalties 29,700 31,200 21,005 
Donations 5,000 5,000 2,086 
Miscellaneous 7,500 6,200 18,757 

Total Revenues 7,518,992 6,826,613 4,392,595 

EXPENDITURES 
Administration 591,100 651,525 426,412 
Community Development 462,450 371,700 230,406 
Culture and Recreation 619,450 1,139,775 846,350 
Engineering 362,195 392,700 267,763 
General Government 420,000 418,400 261,545 
Public Safety 2,075,500 2,081,330 1,404,064 
Public Works 1,895,350 1,766,700 1,321,144 
Non-Departmental 262,000 226,400 179,492 
Contingency 88,893 181,250 

Total Expenditures 6,776,938 7,229,780 4,937,176 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 742,054 (403,167) (544,581) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers In 164,400 164,600 82,300 
Transfers Out (2,542,495) (1,967,804) (125,926) 
Sale of Capital Assets 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,378,095) (1,803,204) (43,626) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,636,041) (2,206,371 ) (588,207) 

Fund Balance - Beginning 6,978,176 8,218,211 8,218,211 
Fund Balance - Ending $5,342.135 $6,01 1.840 $7,630,004 

I Unaudited actual figures through August 31, 2009. 
Source: City 2008 and 2009 Budgets and the City 
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Retirement Matters 

See Note 6 to the City's financial statements appended hereto for a discussion of the City's 
retirement plans. 

Insurance Coverage 

In the opinion of the City's management, the City's present insurance coverage is adequate. 
However, there can be no assurance that the City will maintain its present level of coverage. See also 
Note 7 to the City's financial statements appended hereto. 

Deposit and Investment of City Funds 

State statutes set forth requirements for the deposit of City funds in eligible depositaries and for 
the collateralization of such deposited funds. See also Note 4 to the City's financial statements appended 
hereto. The City also may invest available funds in accordance with applicable State statutes. 

Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending 

On November 3, 1992, Colorado voters approved an amendment to the Colorado Constitution, 
which is commonly referred to as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights, or TABOR, and now constitutes 
Section 20 of Article X of the Colorado Constitution. TABOR imposes various limits and new 
requirements on the State of Colorado and all Colorado local governments which do not qualify as 
"enterprises" under TABOR (each of which is referred to in this section as a "governmental unit"). Any 
of the following actions, for example, now requires voter approval in advance: (a) any increase in a 
governmental unit's spending from one year to the next in excess of the rate of inflation plus a "growth 
factor" based on (i) for the State, the percentage change in State population, (ii) for a school district, the 
percentage change in student enrollment, and (iii) for any other local government, the net percentage 
change in actual value of all real property from construction of taxable real property improvements, minus 
destruction of similar improvements, and additions to, minus deletions from, taxable real property; 
(b) any increase in the real property tax revenues of a local governmental unit (not including the state) 
from one year to the next in excess of inflation plus the appropriate "growth factor" referred to in 
clause (a) above; (c) any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior year, valuation for 
assessment ratio increase for a property class, extension of an expiring tax or a tax policy change directly 
causing a net tax revenue gain; and (d) except for refinancing bonded indebtedness at a lower interest rate 
or adding new employees to existing pension plans, creation of any multiple fiscal year direct or indirect 
debt or other financial obligation whatsoever without adequate present cash reserves pledged irrevocably 
and held for payments in all future fiscal years. Elections on such matters may only be held on the same 
day as a state general election, at the governmental unit's regular biennial election or on the first Tuesday 
in November of odd numbered years, and must be conducted in accordance with procedures described in 
TABOR. 

Revenue collected, kept or spent in violation of the provisions of TABOR must be refunded, with 
interest. TABOR requires a governmental unit to create an emergency reserve of 3% of its fiscal year 
spending in 1995 and subsequent years. TABOR provides that "[ w ]hen [a governmental unit's] 
annual ... revenue is less than annual payments on general obligation bonds, pensions, and final court 
judgments, the [voter approval requirement for mill levy and other tax increases referred to in clause (c) 
of the preceding paragraph and the voter approval requirement for spending and real property tax revenue 
increases referred to in clauses (a) and (b) of the preceding paragraph] shall be suspended to provide for 
the deficiency." The preferred interpretation of TABOR shall, by its terms, be the one that reasonably 
restrains most the growth of government. 
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De-Brucing. At the election held on April 4, 2006, for the purpose of implementing the City's 
capital improvements, including the maintenance of capital improvements, voters of the City approved an 
election question allowing the City, without increasing existing tax rates or adding new taxes of any kind, 
from January 1, 2006 through December 31,2012, to receive and expend all State grants and to collect, 
retain and expend all revenues generated, without regard to any limitations under TABOR. 

DEBT STRUCTURE 

The following is a discussion of the City's authority to incur general obligation indebtedness and 
other financial obligations and the amount of such obligations presently outstanding. 

Required Elections 

Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution requires that, except for refinancing bonded 
debt at a lower interest rate, the City must have voter approval in advance for the creation of any 
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect City debt or other financial obligation whatsoever without adequate 
present cash reserves pledged irrevocable and held for payments in all future fiscal years. Enterprises, as 
defined in Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, are excluded from the application of said 
Section and the voter approval requirements established therein. For a discussion of Article X, Section 20 
of the Colorado Constitution, see the caption "CITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION-Constitutional 
Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending." 

Revenue and Other Financial Obligations 

The City has the power to issue revenue obligations, subject to the election requirements 
described above, payable from the net revenue of City facilities, or payable in whole or in part from the 
proceeds of sales taxes. The City provides for the operation of certain of its services, such as irrigation 
water, sewer collection and treatment, trash collection and lease of the Devils Canyon Center, as 
enterprises which are not subject to the provisions of TABOR, see "CITY FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION-Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending." Upon the issuance of the 
Bonds, the City will have authorization to issue an additional $2,435,000 of revenue bonds for the 
financing of the Project. 

Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority Loan ("CWRPDA "). In 1995, the 
CWRPDA loaned the City $155,435 for the construction ofa sewer line extension (the "CWRPDA 1995 
Loan"). As of December 31, 2008, the outstanding principal balance on the CWRPDA 1995 Loan was 
$39,478. The City anticipates borrowing additional moneys from CWRPDA in an amount not to exceed 
27,000,000 in December 2009 for the construction of a new wastewater treatment facility, approximately 
two miles of interceptor sewer lines, a new lift station, and other system appurtenances ("CWRPDA 2009 
Loan"). The City is to repay the CWRPDA 1995 Loan and the CWRPDA 2009 Loan from income and 
revenues earned by the City from or attributable to the ownership of the City's sewer system less all 
actual maintenance and operations costs of the City's sewer system. 

Colorado Department of Local Affairs Loan. In 2002, the City entered into a loan agreement 
with the Colorado Department of Local Affairs Loan ("DOLA") for a loan from the Local Government 
Severance Tax Fund to fund the construction of the Greenway Business Park sewer line and sewer facility 
improvements. The original principal balance was $123,000 with annual payments of principal and 
interest of $15,929 through September 1,2012, with such payments to be paid from the Sewer Fund. As 
of December 31,2008 the current principal balance is $56,484. 
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Capital Leases. The Council has the authority to enter into installment or lease option contracts, 
subject to annual appropriation, for the purchase of property or capital equipment without prior electoral 
approval as described above in "-Required Elections." The City has one capital leases relating to 
vehicles with a current principal balance of $68,962. 

General Obligation Debt 

Debt Limit and Outstanding General Obligation Debt. Pursuant to the Charter, there is to be no 
limitation on the amount of bonds or other securities the City may issue, except as may be stated in the 
documents pertaining thereto. The City currently has no authorized but unissued general obligation 
indebtedness. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Sovereign Immunity 

The Governmental Immunity Act, Title 24, Article 10, of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as 
amended (the "Immunity Act"), provides that, with certain specified exceptions, sovereign immunity acts 
as a bar to any action against a public entity, such as the City, for injuries which lie in tort or could lie in 
tort. 

The Immunity Act provides that sovereign immunity does not apply to injuries occurring as a 
result of certain specified actions or conditions. In such instances, the public entity may be liable for 
injuries arising from an act or omission of the public entity, or an act or omission of its public employees, 
which are not willful and wanton, and which occur during the performance of their duties and within the 
scope of their employment. The maximum amounts that may be recovered under the Immunity Act, 
whether from one or more public entities and public employees, are as follows: (a) for any injury to one 
person in any single occurrence, $150,000; and (b) for an injury to two or more persons in any single 
occurrence, $150,000 per person not to exceed the sum of $600,000. Suits against both the City and a 
public employee do not increase such maximum amounts which may be recovered. The City may not be 
held liable either directly or by indemnification for punitive or exemplary damages. In the event that the 
City is required to levy an ad valorem property tax to discharge a settlement or judgment, such tax may 
not exceed a total often mills per annum for all outstanding settlements or judgments. 

The City may be subject to civil liability and may not be able to claim sovereign immunity for 
actions founded upon various federal laws. Examples of such civil liability include, but are not limited to, 
suits filed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 alleging the deprivation of federal constitutional or statutory 
rights of an individual. In addition, the City may be enjoined from engaging in anti-competitive practices 
which violate the antitrust laws. However, the Immunity Act provides that it applies to any action 
brought against a public entity or a public employee in any Colorado state court having jurisdiction over 
any claim brought pursuant to any federal law, if such action lies in tort or could lie in tort. 

Pending and Threatened Litigation 

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City Attorney will deliver a certificate stating 
that, as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, to the best of its knowledge, there is no action, suit, 
proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board or body 
pending or threatened against or affecting the City, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding 
would have a material adverse affect upon the City's ability to comply with its obligations under the Bond 
Ordinance. 
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Approval of Legality 

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to approval by 
Kutak Rock LLP, Denver, Colorado, Bond Counsel. In addition to acting as Bond Counsel, 
Kutak Rock LLP has been retained to advise the City concerning, and has assisted the City in the 
preparation of, this Official Statement. 

The legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the 
professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinions as to legal issues expressly addressed 
therein. By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of the 
result indicated by that expression of professional judgment, or of the transaction on which the opinion is 
rendered, or of the future perfOlmance of parties to the transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion 
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction. 

No Litigation Certificate 

The Underwriter's purchase of the Bonds is conditioned on, among other things, receipt from the 
City Attorney and/or certain City officials of certification at closing that, other than as described herein, 
there is no litigation then pending, or to their knowledge threatened, affecting the validity of or security 
for the Bonds. 

TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of certain material federal income tax consequences of the purchase, 
ownership and disposition of the Bonds for the investors described below and is based on the advice of 
Kutak Rock LLP, as Bond Counsel. This summary is based upon laws, regulations, rulings and decisions 
currently in effect, all of which are subject to change. The discussion does not deal with all federal tax 
consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which may be subject to special rules, 
including but not limited to, partnerships or entities treated as partnerships for federal income tax 
purposes, pension plans and foreign investors, except as otherwise indicated. In addition, this summary is 
generally limited to investors that are "U.S. holders" (as defined below) who will hold the Bonds as 
"capital assets" (generally, property held for investment) within the meaning of Section 1221 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Investors should consult their own tax 
advisors to determine the federal, state, local and other tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and 
disposition of Bonds. Prospective investors should note that no rulings have been or will be sought from 
the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service") with respect to any of the federal income tax consequences 
discussed below, and no assurance can be given that the Service will not take contrary positions. 

As used herein, a "U.S. holder" is a "U.S. person" that is a beneficial owner of a Bond. A "non 
U.S. holder" is a holder (or beneficial owner) of a Bond that is not a U.S. person. For these purposes, a 
"U.S. person" is a citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation or partnership created or 
organized in or under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof (except, in the case 
of a partnership, to the extent otherwise provided in the Treasury Regulations), an estate the income of 
which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source or a trust if (i) a United 
States court is able to exercise primalY supervision over the trust's administration and (ii) one or more 
United States persons have the authority to control all of the trust's substantial decisions. 

Series 2009A Bonds 

General. In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, to be delivered at the time of 
original issuance of the Bonds, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on 
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the Series 2009A Bonds (referred to herein as the "Tax-Exempt Bonds") (a) is excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes and (b) is not a specific item of tax preference nor included in 
adjusted current earnings for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and 
corporations. 

The City has covenanted to comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in order for the 
interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be excludible from gross income for federal tax purposes. The 
opinions set forth above are subject to continuing compliance by the City and others with such covenants. 
Failure to comply with such covenants could cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be included in 
gross income retroactive to the date of issue of such Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

The accrual or receipt of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds may otherwise affect the federal 
income tax liability of certain recipients such as banks, thrift institutions, property and casualty insurance 
companies, corporations (including S corporations and foreign corporations operating branches in the 
United States), Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefit recipients, taxpayers otherwise entitled to 
claim the earned income credit or taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued 
indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, among others. The extent of these other tax 
consequences will depend upon the recipients' particular tax status or other items of income or deduction. 
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such consequences and investors should consult their 
own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of purchasing or holding the Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

Original Issue Premium. Certain of the 2009A Bonds are being sold at a premium (each a 
"Premium 2009A Bond"). An amount equal to the excess of the issue price of a Premium 2009A Bond 
over its stated redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium 2009A Bond. An 
initial purchaser of a Premium 2009A Bond must amortize any premium over such Premium 2009A 
Bond's term using constant yield principles, based on the purchaser's yield to maturity (or, in the case of 
Premium 2009A Bonds callable prior to their maturity, by amortizing the premium to the call date, based 
on the purchaser's yield to the call date and giving effect to the call premium). As premium is amortized, 
the amount of the amortization offsets a corresponding amount of interest for the period and the 
purchaser's basis in such Premium 2009A Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount resulting in an 
increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale 
or disposition of such Premium 2009A Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser's basis may 
be reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of the Premium 2009A Bonds should 
consult with their tax advisors with respect to the determination and treatment of premium for federal 
income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning a Premium 
2009ABond. 

Bank Qualified. The City has represented that it does not reasonably anticipate issuing greater 
than $30,000,000 of tax exempt obligations (excluding certain private activity and refunding bonds) in 
calendar year 2009 and that it has properly designated the Series 2009A Bonds as "qualified tax exempt 
obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b )(3) of the Code. Accordingly, Bond Counsel is of the 
opinion that in the case of certain banks, thrift institutions or other financial institutions owning the Series 
2009A Bonds, a deduction is allowed for 80% of that portion of such institutions' interest expense 
allocable to interest on the Series 2009A Bonds. Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion with respect to 
any deduction for federal tax law purposes of interest on indebtedness incurred or continued by a holder 
of the Series 2009A Bonds or a related person to purchase or carry the Series 2009A Bonds. 

Backup Withholding. Certain purchasers may be subject to backup withholding at the 
application rate determined by statute with respect to interest paid with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
if the purchasers, upon issuance, fail to supply the indenture trustee or their brokers with their taxpayer 
identification numbers, furnish incorrect taxpayer identification numbers, fail to report interest, dividends 
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or other "reportable payments" (as defined in the Code) properly, or, under certain circumstances, fail to 
provide the indenture trustee with a certified statement, under penalty of perjury, that they are not subject 
to backup withholding. Information returns will be sent annually to the Service and to each purchaser 
setting forth the amount of interest paid with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds and the amount of tax 
withheld thereon. 

Taxable Series 2009B Bonds 

In General. The City intends to elect to designate the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as taxable 
"Build America Bonds" pursuant to Section 54AA of the Code. Although the Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds are issued by the City, interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is not excludable from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. Interest on the Taxable Series 
2009B Bonds will be fully subject to federal income taxation. Thus, owners of the Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds generally must include interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 

To ensure compliance with Treasury Circular 230, holders of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds 
should be aware and are hereby put on notice that: (a) the discussion in this Official Statement with 
respect to U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is not 
intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties 
that may be imposed on the taxpayer; (b) such discussion was written in connection with the promotion or 
marketing (within the meaning of Treasury Circular 230) of the transactions or matters addressed by such 
discussion; and (c) each taxpayer should seek advice based on its patiicular circumstances from an 
independent tax advisor. 

Because Build America Bonds are a relatively new product, and the investors and future investors 
therein may be different than the typical investors in tax-exempt bonds which have a more developed 
market, our discussion of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds may be more detailed than our discussion of 
the Series 2009A Bonds. 

Build America Bonds. The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are expected to be issued as taxable, 
Build America Bonds as authorized by the Recovery Act. Pursuant to the Recovery Act, the City will 
receive cash subsidy payments from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on 
the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 imposes requirements on the 
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds that the City must continue to meet after the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds 
are issued in order to receive the cash subsidy payments. These requirements generally involve the way 
that Taxable Series 2009B Bonds proceeds must be invested and ultimately used, and the periodic 
submission of requests for payments. If the City does not meet these requirements, it is possible that the 
City may not receive the cash subsidy payments. 

Characterization of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. Kutak Rock LLP will render on the 
closing date, with respect to the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, its opinion to the effect that the Taxable 
Series 2009B Bonds will be treated as debt (and not equity) of City for federal tax purposes. 

If, alternatively, it were determined that the Taxable Series 2009B Bond transaction created an 
entity which was classified as a corporation or a publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation, such 
entity would be subject to federal income tax at corporate income tax rates on the income it derives from 
the revenues derived from City operations, which would reduce the amounts available for payment to the 
Bondholders. Cash payments to the holders of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds who are treated as equity 
owners generally would be treated as dividends for tax purposes to the extent of such corporation's 
accumulated and current earnings and profits. A similar result would apply if the holders of the Taxable 

38 



Series 2009B Bonds were deemed to have acquired stock or other equity interests. However, as noted 
above, City has been advised that the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will be treated as debt of City for 
federal income tax purposes and that the transaction will not be characterized as an association or publicly 
traded partnership taxable as a corporation. 

Characterization of the Bonds as Indebtedness. The City intends that, for federal income tax 
purposes, the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will be indebtedness (as opposed to equity) created by the 
Bond Ordinance secured by the Pledged Revenues. The owners of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, by 
accepting such Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, have agreed to treat the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as 
indebtedness of the City for federal income tax purposes. The City intends to treat the Taxable Series 
2009B Bond transaction as a financing reflecting the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds as its indebtedness for 
tax and financial accounting purposes. 

In general, the characterization of a transaction as a sale of property or a secured loan, for federal 
income tax, is a question of fact, the resolution of which is based upon the economic substance of the 
transaction, rather than its form or the manner in which it is characterized for state law or other purposes. 
While the Service and the courts have set forth several factors to be taken into account in determining 
whether the substance of a transaction is a sale of property or a secured indebtedness, the primary factor 
in making this determination is whether the transferee has assumed the risk of loss or other economic 
burdens relating to the property and has obtained the benefits of ownership thereof. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, in some instances, courts have held that a taxpayer is bound by the particular form it has 
chosen for a transaction, even if the substance of the transaction does not accord with its form. 

The City believes that it has retained the preponderance of the primary benefits and burdens 
associated with ownership of the Project and that as a result, the owners of the Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds should not be treated as the owners of the Project for federal income tax purposes. If, however, the 
Service were successfully to assert that the Taxable Series 2009B Bond transaction should be treated as a 
sale of the Project, the Service could further assert that the entity created pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, 
as the owner of the Project for federal income tax purposes, should be deemed engaged in a business and, 
therefore, characterized as a publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation. 

Taxation of Interest Income of the Bonds. Payments of interest with regard to the Taxable 
Series 2009B Bonds will be includible as ordinary income when received or accrued by the holders 
thereof in accordance with their respective methods of accounting and applicable provisions of the Code. 

Payments of interest received with respect to the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will also constitute 
investment income for purposes of certain limitations of the Code concerning the deductibility of 
investment interest expense. Potential holders of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds should consult their 
own tax advisors concerning the treatment of interest payments with regard to the Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds. 

A purchaser (other than a person who purchases a Taxable Series 2009B Bond upon issuance at 
the issue price) who buys a Taxable Series 2009B Bond at a discount from its principal amount will be 
subject to the market discount rules of the Code. In general, the market discount rules of the Code treat 
principal payments and gain on disposition of a debt instrument as ordinary income to the extent of 
accrued market discount. Each potential investor should consult his tax advisor concerning the 
application of the market discount rules to the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. 

Sale or Exchange of Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. If a Bondholder sells a Taxable Series 
2009B Bond, such person will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized 
on such sale and the Bondholder's basis in such Bond. Ordinarily, such gain or loss will be treated as a 
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capital gain or loss. At the present time, the maximum capital gain rate for certain assets held for more 
than twelve months is 15%. In February of2009, President Barack Obama proposed increasing the long­
term capital gains rate to 20%. the City and Bond Counsel cannot predict whether this increase will 
receive Congressional approval. 

If the term of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond was materially modified, in certain circumstances, a 
new debt obligation would be deemed created and exchanged for the prior obligation in a taxable 
transaction. Among the modifications which may be treated as material are those which relate to 
redemption provisions and, in the case of a nonrecourse obligation, those which involve the substitution 
of collateral. Each potential holder of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond should consult its own tax advisor 
concerning the circumstances in which the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds would be deemed reissued and 
the likely effects, if any, of such reissuance. 

Backup Withholding. Certain purchasers may be subject to backup withholding at the 
application rate determined by statute with respect to interest paid with respect to the Taxable Series 
2009B Bonds if the purchasers, upon issuance, fail to supply the applicable party or their brokers with 
their taxpayer identification numbers, furnish incorrect taxpayer identification numbers, fail to report 
interest, dividends or other "reportable payments" (as defined in the Code) properly, or, under certain 
circumstances, fail to provide the applicable party with a certified statement, under penalty of perjury, that 
they are not subject to backup withholding. Information returns will be sent annually to the Service and 
to each purchaser setting fOlih the amount of interest paid with respect to the Taxable Series 2009B 
Bonds and the amount of tax withheld thereon. 

State, Local or Foreign Taxation. The City makes no representations regarding the tax 
consequences of purchase, ownership or disposition of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds under the tax 
laws of any other state, locality or foreign jurisdiction (except as provided in "Exemption Under State 
Law" below). Investors considering an investment in the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds should consult 
their own tax advisors regarding such tax consequences. 

Tax-Exempt Investors. In general, an entity which is exempt from federal income tax under the 
provisions of Section 501 of the Code is subject to tax on its unrelated business taxable income. An 
unrelated trade or business is any trade or business which is not substantially related to the purpose which 
forms the basis for such entity's exemption. However, under the provisions of Section 512 of the Code, 
interest may be excluded from the calculation of unrelated business taxable income unless the obligation 
which gave rise to such interest is subject to acquisition indebtedness. Therefore, except to the extent any 
holder of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond incurs acquisition indebtedness with respect to a Taxable Series 
2009B Bond, interest paid or accrued with respect to such Bondholder may be excluded by such tax 
exempt Bondholder from the calculation of unrelated business taxable income. Each potential tax exempt 
holder of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond is urged to consult its own tax advisor regarding the application 
of these provisions. 

Certain ERISA Considerations. The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as 
amended ("ERISA"), imposes certain requirements on "employee benefit plans" (as defined in Section 
3(3) of ERISA) subject to ERISA, including entities such as collective investment funds and separate 
accounts whose underlying assets include the assets of such plans (collectively, "ERISA Plans") and on 
those persons who are fiduciaries with respect to ERISA Plans. Investments by ERISA Plans are subject 
to ERISA's general fiduciary requirements, including the requirement of investment prudence and 
diversification and the requirement that an ERISA Plan's investments be made in accordance with the 
documents governing the ERISA Plan. The prudence of any investment by an ERISA Plan in the Bonds 
must be determined by the responsible fiduciary of the ERISA Plan by taking into account the ERISA 
Plan's particular circumstances and all of the facts and circumstances of the investment. Government and 
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non-electing church plans are generally not subject to ERlSA. However, such plans may be subject to 
similar or other restrictions under state or local law. 

In addition, ERlSA and the Code generally prohibit certain transactions between an ERlSA Plan 
or a qualified employee benefit plan under the Code and persons who, with respect to that plan, are 
fiduciaries or other "parties in interest" within the meaning of ERlSA or "disqualified persons" within the 
meaning of the Code. In the absence of an applicable statutory, class or administrative exemption, 
transactions between an ERlSA Plan and a party in interest with respect to an ERlSA Plan, including the 
acquisition by one from the other of a Taxable Series 2009B Bond could be viewed as violating those 
prohibitions. In addition, Code Section 4975 prohibits transactions between certain tax-favored vehicles 
such as Individual Retirement Accounts and disqualified persons. Code Section 503 includes similar 
restrictions with respect to governmental and church plans. In this regard, the City or any Dealer of the 
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds might be considered or might become a "party in interest" within the 
meaning of ERlSA or a "disqualified person" within the meaning of the Code, with respect to an ERlSA 
Plan or a plan or arrangement subject to Code Sections 4975 or 503. Prohibited transactions within the 
meaning of ERISA and the Code may arise if Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are acquired by such plans or 
arrangements with respect to which the City or any Dealer is a party in interest or disqualified person. 

In all events, fiduciaries of ERlSA Plans and plans or arrangements subject to the above Code 
Sections, in consultation with their advisors, should carefully consider the impact of ERlSA and the Code 
on an investment in the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. The sale of the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds to a 
plan is in no respect a representation by the City or the Underwriter that such an investment meets the 
relevant legal requirements with respect to benefit plans generally or any particular plan. Any plan 
proposing to invest in the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds should consult with its counsel to confirm that 
such investment is permitted under the plan documents and will not result in a non-exempt prohibited 
transaction and will satisfy the other requirements ofERlSA, the Code and other applicable law. 

Exemption Under State Tax Law 

In Bond Counsel is further opinion, under State of Colorado existing statutes, the Series 2009A 
Bonds and the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds and the income therefrom are exempt from taxation in the 
State of Colorado, except inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. 

Changes in Federal and State Tax Law 

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress and in the states that, if enacted, 
could alter or amend the federal and state tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market 
value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted 
or whether if enacted it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. In addition, regulatory actions 
are from time to time announced or proposed and litigation is threatened or commenced which, if 
implemented or concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect the market value of the Bonds. 
It cannot be predicted whether any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any particular 
litigation or judicial action will be resolved, or whether the Bonds or the market value thereof would be 
impacted thereby. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending or 
proposed legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation. The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are 
based upon existing legislation and regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory 
authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds and Bond Counsel has expressed no 
opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any pending legislation, regulatory initiatives 
or litigation. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

Ratings 

S&P is expected to assign the rating to the Bonds as shown on the cover page hereof, with the 
understanding that, upon delivery of the Bonds, the Bond Insurance Policy will be issued by Assured 
Guaranty. Such ratings reflect only the view of such rating agencies. Any explanations of the 
significance of such rating should be obtained from S&P at 55 Water Street, New York, New York 
10041. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on 
investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There is no assurance such rating will continue for 
any given period of time or that such rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the 
applicable rating agency if in the judgment of such rating agency circumstances so warrant. Any 
downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the 
Bonds. 

S&P has also assigned the underlying rating shown on the cover page, which is reflective of the 
capacity of the City to fulfill its payment obligations for the Bonds without giving effect to Bond 
Insurance Policy. 

Underwriting 

The Bonds are being sold by the City to the Underwriter at a discount of $92,352.75 pursuant to a 
bond purchase agreement entered into between the Underwriter and the City. Expenses associated with 
the issuance of the Bonds are being paid by the City from proceeds of the Bonds. The right of the 
Underwriter to receive compensation in connection with the Bonds is contingent upon the actual sale and 
delivery of the Bonds. The Underwriter has initially offered the Bonds to the public at the prices or yields 
set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, plus accrued interest from the date of the Bonds. 
Such prices or yields may subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice. The Underwriter 
reserves the right to join with dealers and other investment banking firms in offering the Bonds to the 
public. 

Registration of Bonds 

Registration or qualification of the offer and sale of the Bonds (as distinguished from registration 
of the ownership of the Bonds) is not required under the federal Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or 
the Colorado Securities Act, as amended. THE CITY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
QUALIFICATION OR REGISTRATION OF THE BONDS FOR SALE UNDER THE SECURITIES 
LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE BONDS MAY BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED, 
HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED. 

Undertaking To Provide Ongoing Disclosure 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 (17 CFR 
Part 240, § 240.15c2-12) ("Rule 15c2-12"), the City has covenanted, for the benefit of the holders of the 
Bonds, to provide certain financial information and other operating data and notices of material events 
after the Bonds are issued. The form of the City's Continuing Disclosure Undertaking for the Bonds is 
attached as APPENDIX A to this Official Statement. The City has not failed to comply with any of its 
previous undertakings. 
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Interest of Certain Persons Named in this Official Statement 

The legal fees to be paid to Kutak Rock LLP are contingent upon the sale and delivery of the 
Bonds. 

Independent Auditors 

The basic financial statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 2008, which are 
appended hereto, have been audited by independent auditor, Dalby, Wendland & Co., P.C., Certified 
Public Accountants and Consultants, Grand Junction, Colorado as stated in their report appearing therein. 
Such audit has been included without the review and consent of the auditor. 

Additional Information 

Copies of constitutional provislOns, statutes, resolutions, agreements, contracts, financial 
statements, reports, publications and other documents or compilations of data or information summarized 
or referred to herein are available as described in "INTRODUCTION." 

Official Statement Certification 

The preparation of this Official Statement and its distribution have been authorized by the Board. 
This Official Statement is not to be construed as an agreement or contract between the City and any 
purchaser, owner or holder of any Bond. 

CITY OF FRUITA, COLORADO 

By: /s/ H. Kenneth Henry 
Mayor 
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APPENDIX A 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") is executed and delivered as of 
November 12,2009, by the City of Fruita, Colorado (the "City"). 

Section 1. Purpose. This Undertaking is being executed and delivered by the City in connection 
with that certain issue of Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A in the aggregate principal 
amount of $2,440,000 and Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds (Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy­
B~ild America Bonds), Series 2009B in the aggregate principal amount of $10,125,000 (collectively, the 
"B'onds"). The Bonds are issued pursuant to an approving ordinance of the City finally adopted by the 
Council of the City prior to the date of issuance ofthe Bonds (the "Bond Ordinance"). This Undertaking 
is intended to facilitate compliance with Section (b)(5) of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"), 
and to assist the Underwriter, as a Participating Underwriter under the Rule, to comply with the Rule. 

Section 2. Definitions. Capitalized terms in this Section and elsewhere in this Undertaking shall 
have the meanings set forth herein. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings 
set forth in the Bond Ordinance. The following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings for 
purposes of this Undertaking: 

"Annual Financial Information" means the financial information or operating data with respect to 
the City, provided at least annually, of the type included in the following tables in the Final Official 
Statement: Tables II, III, IV, V, VI, and VII. Any financial statements included in the Annual Financial 
Information shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and 
the Govermnental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). Such financial statements may, but are not 
required to be, Audited Financial Statements. 

"Audited Financial Statements" means the City's annual financial statements, prepared in 
accordance with GAAP for govermnental units as prescribed by GASB, which financial statements shall 
have been audited by such auditor as shall be then required or permitted by the laws of the State of 
Colorado. 

"EMMA" means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access System, with a portal at 
http://emma.msrb.org. 

"Final Official Statement" means the Official Statement with respect to the Bonds dated the date 
of adoption of the Bond Ordinance. 

"Material Event" means any ofthe following events, if material, with respect to the Bonds: 

(a) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(b) nonpayment related defaults; 

(c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(d) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 



( e) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perfonn; 

(f) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax exempt status of the Bonds; 

(g) modifications to rights of holders of Bonds; 

(h) bond calls (other than mandatory sinking fund redemptions); 

(i) defeasances; 

(j) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and 

(k) rating changes. 

"Material Event Notice" means written or electronic notice of a Material Event. 

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The current address of the MSRB is 
Suite 600,1900 Duke Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314; Facsimile: (703) 797-6700. 

Section 3. Information To Be Provided. The City undertakes to provide the following 
infonnation as provided herein: 

(a) Annual Financial Infonnation, which infonnation may, at the option of the City, 
be included in the Audited Financial Statements provided pursuant to clause (b) below or be 
provided separately therefrom; 

(b) Audited Financial Statements, if any; and 

(c) Material Event Notices. 

Section 4. Procedures for Providing Information. 

(a) Annual Financial Information. While any Bonds are Outstanding, the City 
shall provide the Annual Financial Infonnation on or before July 31, 2010 and July 31 of each 
subsequent year (the "Report Date") to EMMA. If the City changes its fiscal year, it may change 
the Report Date to any date within 210 days of the end of the City's new fiscal year by written 
notice of the change of fiscal year and change in Report Date to EMMA. It shall be sufficient if 
the City provides to EMMA any or all of the City's Annual Financial Infonnation by specific 
reference to (i) documents previously provided to EMMA; or (ii) documents filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission or, if such a document is a final official statement within 
the meaning of the Rule, available from the MSRB. 

(b) Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of the Annual Financial 
Information provided pursuant to "-Annual Financial Infonnation" above, the City shall provide 
the Audited Financial Statements to EMMA, when and if such Audited Financial Statements are 
available while any Bonds are Outstanding. 

(c) Material Events. If a Material Event occurs while any Bonds are Outstanding, 
the City shall, in a timely manner, provide a Material Event Notice to EMMA, which Material 
Event Notice shall be captioned "Material Event Notice," shall prominently state the date, title 
and CUSIP numbers of the Bonds and shall describe the Material Event. 
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(d) Notices of Failure To Provide Annual Financial Information. The City shall 
provide in a timely manner to EMMA, notice of any failure by the City while any Bonds are 
Outstanding to provide to EMMA, City's Annual Financial Information on or before the Report 
Date. 

(e) Means of Transmitting Information. Unless otherwise required by law and 
subject to technical and economic feasibility, the City shall employ such methods of information 
transmission as shall be requested or recommended by the designated recipients of the 
information to be received pursuant to this Undertaking. 

Section 5. Termination. The obligations of the City under this Undertaking shall terminate 
immediately once the Bonds no longer are Outstanding. This Undertaking, or any provision hereof, shall 
be null and void in the event that the City delivers to EMMA, an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect 
that those portions of the Rule which require this Undertaking, or any such provision, are invalid, have 
been repealed retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Bonds; provided that the City shall have 
provided notice of such delivery and the cancellation of this Undertaking or any provision hereof to 
EMMA. 

Section 6. Amendment. Notwithstanding any other provlSlon of this Undertaking, this 
Undertaking may be amended by the City, without the consent of the holders of the Bonds, but only upon 
the delivery by the City to EMMA, of the proposed amendment and an opinion of Bond Counsel to the 
effect that such amendment, and giving effect thereto, will not adversely affect the compliance of this 
Undertaking and by the City with the Rule and that such amendment complies with this Section. Any 
such am~ndment shall satisfy, unless otherwise permitted by the Rule, the following conditions: 

(a) The amendment may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances 
that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law or change in the identity, nature or 
status of the City, or type of business conducted. 

(b) This Undertaking, as amended, would have complied with the requirements of 
the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or 
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances. 

(c) The amendment does not materially impair the interest of holders of the Bonds, 
as determined by Bond Counsel, or by approving vote of holders of the Bonds pursuant to the 
terms of the Bond Ordinance at the time of the amendment. 

The initial Annual Financial Information provided by the City hereto after the amendment shall 
explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the effect of the change in the type of 
operating data or financial infonnation being provided. 

Section 7. No Event of Default. Any failure by the City to perform in accordance with this 
Undertaking shall not constitute an Event of Default under the Bond Ordinance, and the rights and 
remedies provided by the Bond Ordinance upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not apply to 
any such failure. If the City fails to comply with this Undertaking, any Owner of a Bond may take such 
actions as may be necessaty and appropriate, including seeking specific performance by court order, to 
cause the City to comply with its obligations hereunder. 

Section 8. Governing Law. This Undertaking shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Colorado; provided that to the extent this Undertaking addresses matters of 
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federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Undertaking shall be construed in accordance with such 
federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof. 

Section 9. Beneficiaries. This Undertaking shall inure solely to the benefit of the Underwriter 
and the holders from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
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APPENDIXB 

AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
CITY AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 



DALBY, WENDLAND & CO., P.c. !We 
464 MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 430 • GRAND JUNCTION, COLORADO 81502-0430 

TELEPHONE 970/243-1921 • FAX 970/243-9214 • www.dalbycpacom 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Fruita 
Fruita, Colorado 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Fruita (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic fmancial statements as listed in the table of contents. These fmancial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express 
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. The summarized comparative 
information for the year ended December 31, 2007 was audited by other auditors whose report 
dated September 30, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the information. 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective fmancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fruita, as of December 
31, 2008, and the respective changes in fmancial position and cash flows, where applicable, for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Management's discussion and analysis and on pages I through 28 is not a required part of the 
basic fmancial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison 
information for the General Fund and other major funds on pages 77 and 78 is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements 
and supplementary schedules, and the Local Highway Finance Report are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The required 
supplementary information. other than management's discussion and analysis, and the 
combining and individual non-major fund fmancial statements and supplementary schedules, and 
the Local Highway Finance Report have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion. are fairly stated in all material respects 
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

DALBY, WENDLAND & CO., P.C. 
Grand Junction, Colorado 

July 7,2009 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

This discussion and analysis of the City of Fruita's financial performance provides an overview of the 
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. Please read this in 
conjunction with the financial statements which begin on page 31. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

At the end of 2008, the City of Fruita remains in good financial condition and is well positioned to 
address any future declines in the economy. The City is in good condition primarily due to recent 
growth in population, new commercial development in the City and a strong regional economy as 
compared to much of the nation. While local revenues have increased significantly due to this strong 
economy, the City of Fruita has focused on tightly managing and controlling on-going operational 
expenses and has invested heavily in critical infrastructure and other capital projects. This 
conservative approach has created an efficient, sustainable on-going operating budget and has 
allowed for fhe accumulation of significant cash reserves. This model will continue to allow the City 
of Fruita to endure dynamic economic conditions. 

Significant events occurring in 2008 include: 

• Completion of the first two phases of construction and development of the Little Salt Wash 
Park, 

• Acquisition of 40 acres of vacant land at 16 and L Road for future development as a park 
and school site with the City owning 27 acres and School District #51 owning the remaining 
13 acres, 

• Acquisition of 80 acres of vacant land at 1 5 Road north of the Colorado River as the site for 
the future wastewater treatment plant, 

• Approval by voters of a sales and use tax increase, along wifh issuance of debt, for the 
construction of a new community recreation center, 

• Completion of sewer and street improvements on East OHley, 

• Completion of sewer improvements on Coulson and Mulberry Streets, 

• Completion of the roundabouts by COOT at SH 340 and the 1-70 interchange, 

• Construction of a new hospital in Fruita which is anticipated to be completed in 2009, 

• Construction and opening of Walgreens which has added to the sales tax base for the City, 

• Continued public and private activity on the development of the Greenway Business Park, 

• Continued implementation of the 2008 Community Plan with a significant amount of time 



devoted to updating the Fruita Land Use Code 

The City of Fruita's assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2008 by $56.6 million (net assets), 
an increase of $11.4 million (25% ) from the close of 2007. This compares to a similar increase of 
$10.0 million (29%) in net assets from 2006 to 2007. Of the $56.6 million of net assets, 24% ($13.7 
million) is unrestricted and may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. Unrestricted assets increased 1 COlo ($1.26 million) from the prior year. 

At the end of 2008, the unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $7.4 
million or 98% of the total 2008 General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of 19% ($1.1 
million) from 2007. 

The City's cumulative cash and investments for all funds increased by $250,000 (2%) from $15.37 
to $15.62 million. Of the total cash and investments of $15.62 million, approximately $1.88 million 
(12%) is restricted primarily for capital improvements for governmental activities, $5.7 million (37%) 
has been accumulated In the Sewer Fund to help offset costs that will be incurred with construction 
of a new waste water treatment facility including engineering and land acquisition and $8.16 million 
(52%) has been accumulated in the General Fund •• 

The City acquired $10.57 million of capital assets in 2008 which includes equipment, buildings, and 
infrastructure assets such as streets, storm water drainage, sidewalks, and sewer lines. Of the $1 0.57 
million increase in capital assets, $2.47 million (24%) consisted of contributions of infrastructure assets 
as a result of new development and donated assets. An additional $1.29 million (12%) of the 
increase is for construction In progress for the Grand Valley Transit (GVT) transfer station and when 
completed, the asset will be transferred to GVT. Capital assets acquired or constructed by the City 
accounted for the remaining $6.81 million (64%) of the increase in capital assets. 

The City's long term debt decreased by $701,126 in 2008. Total outstanding debt at the end of 
2008 was $142,990. 

The City's General Fund revenues increased 12% over the prior year. City sales tax revenues 
increased 15% from $1.20 million to $1.38 million. County sales tax revenues increased 2% over the 
prior year from $2.20 million to $2.25 million. Use tax revenues decreased 32% from $1.248,706 
to $844,21 6 in 2008. Use tax on motor vehicles was down 3% and use tax on building materials 
was down 57% from the prior yeor. Severance tax and minerai lease revenues received by the City 
were up 128% from $650,589 to $1,486,250. Due to the unpredictable nature of this revenue 
source, the City uses it to fund capital expenditures versus on-going operational expenses. 

Unrestricted assets in the Sewer Fund of $5.75 million reflect a decrease of 13% from the prior year. 
This is primarily due to the use of unrestricted assets for final engineering and design of a new waste 
water treatment facility and a reduction in revenue from the sale of sewer tap fees for new 
construction. Though not legally restricted or designated, the accumulation of unrestricted assets Is 
necessary for the construction of a new sewer treatment plant which is tentatively scheduled to begin 
construction in 2009. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Fruita's basic 
financial statements. The City of Fruita's basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to 
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Fruita's finances, in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 

• The statement 01 net assels presents information on all of the City of Fruita's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases 
or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the City of Fruita is improving or deteriorating. 

• The statement 01 activ;';es presents Information showing how the government's net assets 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon 
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related 
cosh flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 
vocation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Fruita that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Fruita include general 
government, public safety (police), public works, storm water management, parks and recreation, and 
marketing and promotion. The business-type activities of the City of Fruita include the provision of 
irrigation water, sewer collection and treatment, trash collection and lease of the Devils Canyon 
Center. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31 and 32 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that heve been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Fruita, like 
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Fruita can be divided into three 
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

• Govemmentollunds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities In the government-wide financial statements. However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
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on near-term inflows ond outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because 1he focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental adivifies in the government-wide financial 
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's 
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet ond the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

The City maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and capital projects fund 
which are considered to be major funds. In addition, information is presented separately for 
the Debt Service Fund (which is not considered a malor fund) in order to provide consistency 
from year to year. Data from the other two special revenue governmental funds 
(Conservation Trust Fund and Marketing and Promotion Fund) are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Fruita adopts an annual appropriated budget for Its general fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance 
with the budget •• 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 through 35 of 
this report. 

• Proprietary funds. The City of Fruita maintains two different types of proprietary funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. The City of Fruita uses enterprise funds to account 
for its Sewer, Irrigation Water, Trash and Devils Canyon Center activities. Internal service 
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the 
City of Fruita's various functions. The City of Fruita uses an internal service fund to account 
for maintenance of its fleet of vehicles. Because this service predominantly benefits 
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for Sewer and Trash operations which are considered to be major funds of the 
City of Fruita. Irrigation Water and Devils Canyon Center operations are non-maior funds but 
are set forth in detail to provide consistency in reporting. 
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The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36 through 45 of this 
report. 

• Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City 
of Fruita's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for 
proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 46 through 47 of this 
report. 

• Notes to the Rnancial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 51 through 73 of this 
report. 

• Other inlonnation. In addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents required and other supplementary information including budget 
comparison schedules, combining statements and the annual financial report for the use of 
revenues from the state highway user's tax fund. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net Assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the City of Fruita, assets exceeded liabilities by $56.6 million at the 
close of 2008. Net assets increased 25% from $45.15 millron ot the end of 2007 to $56.6 million 
at the end of 2008. 

By far the largest portion (74%) of the City of Fruita's net assets reflect its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire 
those assets. The City of Fruita uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Fruita's investment in its 
capital assets Is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. Investments in capital assets increased by 34% from 2007 ($31.01 million) 
to 2008 ($41.56 million). 

CITY OF FRUITA NET ASSm 

~overnmental As!iviliel B!U1n!!1:!x1!! Astlville. To1a' 

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 

ASSETS 

Current and other 
ossets $ 12,265,820 $ 11,272,336 $ 6,.438,923 $ 7,044,879 $ 1 8,704,743 $18,317,215 

Copitol assets 30,065,698 22,.423,490 11,641,703 8,813,979 41,707,401 31,237,.469 

Total assets 42,331,518 33,695,826 18,080,626 15,858,858 60,412,144 49,554,684 

LlABILmES 

Long-term debt 12,029 656,037 86,088 188,679 98,117 844,716 

Other liobilltles 3,300,882 3,358,887 408,340 199,999 3,709,222 3,558,886 

Totol liabilities 3,312,911 4,014,924 494,428 388,678 3,807,339 4,403,602 

NETAS5m 

Invested in capital 
assets, net of related 
debt 30,042,184 22,389,010 11,522,227 8,625,301 41 ,564,.411 31,014,311 

Restricted 1,298,538 1,686,757 1,298,538 1,686,757 

Unrestricted 7,6n,885 5,605,135 6,063,972 6,844,879 13l.41,857 1 2,450,01 4 

Total net asset. $39,018,607 $ 29,680,902 $17,586,199 $ 15,470,180 $ 56,604,806 $ 45,151,082 
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An additional portion of the City 
of Fruita's net assets in the amount 
of $1.3 million (2% of the total net 
assets) represents resources that 
are sublect to restrictions on how 
they may be used. Restricted 
assets decreased by 23% from 
2007 ($1.69 million) to 2008 
($1.3 million). This decrease is due 
to the elimination of the reserve 
for a note receivable which was 
paid in full in 2008. 

The remaining 24% ($13.74 
million) of net assets is the amount 
of unrestricted net assets which may 
be used to meet the government's 

Net Assests - $56.6 million 

Invested 
fixed assets 

74% 

Restricted 

24% 

ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Unrestricted net assets increased 1 0% from $1 2.45 
million at the end of 2007 to $13.74 mUlion at the end of 2008. Of this amount, $7.65 million is 
available for governmental activities and the remaining $6.06 million is available for business-type 
activities. The unrestricted net assets of business-type activitIes Includes $5.75 million In the sewer 
fund. It is anticipated that the malority of these funds will be used to offset a portion of the cost of 
a new sewer treatment facility which will be needed within the next several years. The sewer 
treatment facility is estimated to cost between $25 and $30 million. 

Chang" in Ne! Anti •• The Cty's total revenues of $19.29 million exceeded program expenses 

I I 50,000,000 

Changes in Net Assets 

40,000,000 -t-------------------__ ==-------j 

30,000,000 +-~----------

20,000,000 

10,000,000 

o 
2006 2007 2008 

\- Governmental r!I Business I 

of $7.83 million for an increase in net assets of $11.45 million. 
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CITY OF FRUITA'S CHANGE~ IN NET ASSET~ 
Governmental adivities Business-type activities Total 

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 
Revenues: 
Program revenues 

Charges for services $ 1,082,947 $ 561,239 $ 2,022,372 $ 1,642,047 $ 3,105,319 $ 2,203,286 
Operating grants and 
contributions 102,484 193,471 102,484 193,471 
Capital grants and 
contributions 5,231,946 5,046,770 1,577,784 2,359,471 6,809,730 7,406,241 

S;Z!l!!!e[al revenues: 
Property taxes 1,066,736 732,941 1,066,736 732,941 
Sales and use taxes 4,475,370 4,646,896 4,475,370 4,646,896 
Other taxes 2,459,624 1,496,918 2,459,624 1,496,918 
Other 1,128,282 394,628 142,894 271,113 1,271,176 665,741 

Total revenues 15247,389 13,072,863 3l43,050 4,272,631 19,290,439 17,345,494 
Expenses: 

General government 1,900,694 2,223,283 1,900,694 2,223,283 
CD Marking and promotion 102,212 106,444 102,212 106,444 

Parks and recreation 915,094 795,742 915,094 795,742 
Public works 1,582,689 1,325,366 1,582,689 1,325,366 
Public safety 1,851,213 1,505,183 1,851,213 1,505,183 
Stormwater management 0 
Interest on long-term debt 20,182 30,678 20,182 30,678 
Devils Canyon Center 42,493 37,367 42,493 37,367 
Irrigation water 89,989 89,685 89,989 89,685 
Sewer 834,644 758,515 834,644 758,515 
Trash 497,505 447,232 497,505 447,232 

Total expenses 6,372,084 5,986,696 1~64,631 1,332l99 7,836l15 7,319,495 
Increase in net assets before 
transfers 9,175,305 7,086,167 2,278,419 2,939,832 11,453,724 10,025,999 
Transfers 162,400 290,200 {162,4oo1 !290,2OO1 
Increase in net assets 9,337,705 7,376,367 2,116,019 2,649,632 11,453,724 10,025,999 

Net assets - 1/01/2008 29,680,902 22,304,535 15,470,180 12,820,548 45,151,082 35,125,083 

Net assets - 1 2/31/2008 $ 39,018,607 $ 29,680,902 $ 17,586,1 99 $ 15,470,180 $ 56,604,806 $45,151,082 



Governmental activitie •• Governmental activities increased the City of Fruita's net assets by $9.33 
millron thereby accounting for 82% of the total growth in the net assets of the City of Fruita. The 
following graph illustrates the program revenues and expenses for governmental activities. 

Revenues were $15.7 million in 2008, representing an 18% increase ($2.47 million) over 2007 
revenues of $13.36 million. 

El2008 

.2007 
Inves1ment eamlngs 

Severance and other tax 

Sales and use taxes 

Property taxes 

Capital grants 

Gain on sole of assets 

Operating grants 

Charges for services 

Governmental Adivities .. Revenues 
2007 .. 2008 .-

.. -
2 3 

MiUions 

I 
! 

4 

I 

5 6 

Cgpital grgnts gnd contributions of $5.23 million were the largest source of revenues for 
governmental activities and Increased by 4% from 2007 revenues of $5 million. Many of these 
revenues sources are related to specific profects and are non-recurring revenue sources. Capital 
grants and contributions include developer contributions of capital assets of $1.97 million, grants and 
contributions from other agencies of $2.88 million and development Impact fees used In construction 
of capital assets of $369,613. 

Sales gnd Use tax revenues were the second largest source of revenue at $4.47 million. This 
represents a decrease of 3.7% from 2007 revenues of $4.65 million. The decrease is a result of 
declining use tax revenues for building materials and motor vehicles. 

Severgnce gnd other tgxe; of $2.46 million increased by 64% from 2007 revenues of $1.5 million. 
Severance and mineral lease taxes, a component of this category Increase by 128%. These revenues 
are distributed by the State of Colorado based on formulas which take into account the amount of 
federally owned land leased for minerai extraction In the region and the number of energy related 
employees living In the city limits. Other taxes include franchise fees and cigarette taxes. 

PropertY taxes increased by 45.5%. The assessed valuation of property in the City of Fruita Increased 
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7.8% from $93.7 million in 2007 to $101 million in 2008. The valuation of new construction and 
annexations accounts for 76% of the increase. 
Expenses for governmental activities were $6.37 million in 2008, an Increase of 6.4% ($385,388) 

Governmental Activities 
Revenues by Source 

Sales and use taxes 
28% 

Investment earnings 
2% 

7% 

from 2007 expenses of $5.99 million. 

Charges for services 
Transfers 7O/c 

1% 0 GaIn on sale of 
assets 

6% 

Severance and other 
tax 

Capltl::!1 grants 
32% 

16% 

OperatIng grants 
1% 

General government expenses represent 30% of the total expenses of governmental activities and 

~ 
~ 

Interest on long term debt 

Public safety 

Public works 

Parks and recreation 

Marketing and Promotion 

General Government 

J 

Governmental Adivities - Expenses 
2007 - 2008 comparison 

i 
i 

iiiiiii .. 
I 

Millions 2 3 

decreased 1 5% from 2007 expenses. General government activities include administration, general 

10 



government, engineering, and community development related expenses. 

Public safety expenses represent 29% of the total governmental activity expenses. Public safety 
expenses increased by 230/0. 

Public works expenses are the third largest area of expense at 25% of the total expense of 
govemmental activities. Public works expenses increased 19% in 2008. 

Business.type activiti... Business-type activities increased the City of Fruita's net assets by $2.1 
million from $12.82 millton to $15.47 million thereby accounting for 1 8% of the total growth in the 
net assets of the City of Fruita. The following graph illustrates the program revenues and expenses 
for business-type activities. 
RevenyeJ for business-type activities were $3.74 million in 2008. This Is a decrease of 1 2% from 

2008 Busine"-type activities - Revenues and Expenses 

Trash 

Sewer 

Irrigation Water 

Devils Canyon Center 

1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 

2007 revenues of $4.27 million and is largely due to a decrease in revenue from sewer tap fees. 

2,500,000 

2,000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

o 

Business Type Activities - Revenues 

2008·2007 

I 

1m 2007 
la2008 

Charges for services Capital grants Investment earnings 
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Charges for services were the largest 
source of revenue for business-type 
activities at $2.0 million representing 
54% of the total revenues. Charges for 
services increased 23% over the prior 
year (from $1 .64 million to $2.02 
million). This was a result of both an 
Increase of 5% in the number of users of 
sewer and trash services (4,181 In 2007 
to 4,400 In 2008) and an Increase in 
monthly rates. Sewer rates Increased by 
25%, Irrigation system maintenance rates 
increased 24% and trash rates increased 
by 20/0. In addition, a variable fuel 
surcharge was added to the trash charge 
to offset increased fuel costs. 

Revenue by Source 

Business Type Activities 

Capital 

grants and 

contrlbutlons Investment 
eaml!1QS 

4% 

services 

54% 

Capital grants gnd contributions of $1.57 million were the second largest source of revenue for 
business-type activities at 42% of the total revenue. Capital grants and contributions decreased by 
33% from the prior year. This decrease Is primarily due to a slower rate of new construction and a 
54% reduction in revenues from sewer tap fees. Capital grants and contributions Include: 

• Tap fees of $722,720 ($1,572,215 in 2007), 
• Developer contributions of capitol assets of $474,888 ($443,676 in 2007), and 
• Grants and contributions from other agencies of $380,176 ($274,480 in 2007). 

ExptfHI for total business-type activities were unchanged from the prior year at $1 .62 million. 
However, operating expenses (excluding transfers) Increased by 10% and transfers to other funds 
decreased by 10%. Increases in operating expenses are a result of the Increased number of 
customers served and reflect higher costs including personnel services and fuel costs. 

Expense. of Busin .... typo Adlvitl •• 
2007 • 2008 Comparison .2008 

I El2007, Transfers iilii~;;;--I----I----l---1 

Trash 

Sewer 

Irrigation Water 

Devils Canyon Center 

o 200,000 400,000 600,000 800,000 1,000,000 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City of Fruita uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Fruita's governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. 

Such information Is useful In assessing Governmental Funds 
the City of Fruita's financing Chana" in Fund Balanc. 
requirements. In particular, I 

unreserved fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a 2008 

government's net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal 2007 
year. 

2006 

At the end of the year, the City's 
governmental funds (general, special 2005 

revenue, capital projects and debt 
200.4 

service) reported a combined ending 
fund balance of $9.04 million, an 
increase of 1 3% ($1.06 million) from 
the prior year fund balance of 
$7.98 million. Of this $9.04 million 

• Reserved 

EJ Unreserved 

2 ~illion. 6 
8 10 

in fund balance, $7.74 million (85%) constiMes unreMlYed fund balance, which Is available for 
spending at the government's dlscretfon. The remaining 15% of fund balance ($1.3 million) is reserved 
to indicate that it is not oval/able for new spending because it has already been committed or 
restricted In use for other purposes. 

Fund Balance - $9.04 million 
Emergency and 

Parks and other reserves 
5% 

2% 
Street Improvements 

4% 

Marketing 
--..,;~ 

2% 

Vehide Replacement 

Reserve 

2% 
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Reserved fund balances of $1.3 million decreased by $25% from the prior year. The key element 
of ihls decrease is the elimination 
of ihe reserve for a note 
receivable which was paid off in General Fund Revenu •• and Expense. 
2008. 

General Fund. The General Fund 
is the primary operating fund of 
the City. All activities which are 
not required to be accounted for 
in separate funds either by state 
or local ordinance, or by a desire 
to maintain a matching of 
revenues and expenses, are 
accounted for In this fund. 

The unreserved fund balance of 
the General Fund was $7.4 
million while the total fund 

2008 

2007 

o 2 .( 

MilUons 
6 8 10 

balance was $8.2 million. Total 
fund balance increased 1 8% 
($1.24 million) from the prior 

EJ Revenues • Expenses 0 Increase in fund balance 

year. The unreserved fund 
balance represents 98% of actual expenses far 2008. 

Revenues exceeded expenses in the General Fund by $1.24 million. General Fund revenues 
increased 12% ($906,853) from $7.86 in 2007 to $8.77 million in 2008. Taxes continue to be the 

2008 General Fund Revenues - $8.77 million 

14 

Intergovernmental 

21% 

4% 
Miscellaneous 

IntereJ~ents 



largest sources of revenue in the General Fund and represent 67% of the total revenues in the 
General Fund. 

General Fund Tax Rrayenuet 

2,500,000 ....---------------------------, 

2,000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

o 
County sales Oty sales tax Property tax 

tax 
Use tax on 

vehicles 

·El2007 

'.2008 

Use tax on 
bldg materials 

Tax revenues increased 4% ($231 ,105) over the prior year. The following graph shows the changes 
in tax revenues. 

City sales tax revenues increased 15.2% over the prior year. 
2.3%. Property tax revenues 

County sales tax revenues increased 

increased 45%. Use tax 
revenues on building materials 
decreased by 57.3% and motor 

Building Permit. for New Residential Construdion 

vehicle use tax decreased 2.60/0. 2008 
The increase in sale and 
property tax revenues Is a result 2007 
of the continued growth in 

population of the City. The 2006 
decrease In use tax revenues 
reflects a significant slow down 
in the construction of new homes 

2005 

and commercial properties as 
well as reduction in consumer 2004 
spending on big ticket Items such -I-----1----+----+---_---~ 
as motor vehicles. In the 5 year 100 200 300 400 500 
period from 2004 through 2008, 
the City of Fruita Issued 1,383 
permits for new residential construction which represents a 32% increase in housing units, or an 
average annual growth rate of 6%. 
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Intergovernmental revenues represent 21 % of General Fund revenue. These revenues increased by 
67% ($745,009) in 2008. This Increase is primarily due to an increase of 128% ($835,661) in 
severance tax and mineral lease revenues received by the City In 2008. These revenues account for 
the 80010 of the total intergovernmental revenues in the General Fund. Severance tax and mineral 
lease revenues are distributed by the State of Colorado based on formulas which take into account 
the number of residents employed in the energy field and the amount of public lands In the County 
leased for mineral extraction. The legislature has amended the formulas for distribution of these 
revenues which may have an adverse impact on the City in future years. Due to the unpredictability 
of the mineral lease and severance tax revenues, the City of Fruita has informally designated these 
revenues for use on one time expenditures such as capital projects in order to reduce reliance on this 
revenue source for operational costs. Intergovernmental revenues also include funds received from 
the State Highway Users Tax Fund. These revenues Increased by 2% and are distributed by the 
State based on the number of miles of streets maintained by the City. Annual reports are filed for 
changes in miles of streets maintained by the City as well as financial reports showing road and 
bridge expenditures for the year. A copy of the Local Highway Finance Report is included in the 
financial statements on pages 86 and 87. 

2008 General Fund Expense. by Department- $7.5 million 

Non 

Departmental 

Administration 

7% 
General 

5% 
Eng ineering 

4% 
Recreation 

7% 

Transfers 

20% 

Development 

5% 

24% 

Expenses. General Fund expenses increased 19.5% ($1.23 million) from $6.3 million in 2007 to 
$7.53 million In 2008. As the following graph shows, Police and Public Works are the two largest 
areas of expense In the General Fund at 25% and 24%, respectively, of the total General Fund 
expenses. The third largest area of expense (20%) is transfers to other funds. 

The following chart shows changes in departmental expenses from 2007 to 2008. Highlights of the 
increase In expenses include: 

• Transfers to other funds Increased 41.7% ($444,884). This was primarily due to an increase 
in the transfer to the Capital Projects Fund for various capital projects. 
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General Fund Expenses by Depgrtment E)2007 .2008 

Transfers iiiiiiii!iii!!iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiil----l 
Non Departmental 

Administration 

General Government 

Engineering 

Culture and Recreation 

CoFm1Unlty Development ~1I.1I!lJJ 

Public Works .II!!I!I.~! 

Police ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~J 
o 1,000,000 2,000, 

• Public Works expenses increased 22% ($328,184). 

• Public Safety expenses Increased 1 8.5% ($292,478). 

The next chart shows the same expenses noted above but categorized by type of expense. 

General fund Expense Comparison by Category 

Debt 

Capital 

Supplies 

Purchased servkes 

Special projects 

Personnel services 

F~~~~~il.JI 

o 1,000,000 2,000,000 

17 

I 82007 • 2008 1 

3,000,000 4,000,000 



• Personnel services are the largest expense category at 46% of the total General Fund 
expenses. Personnel services increased 15% ($447,519) over the prior year. This increase 
reflects the addition of two full time employees (one maintenance worker and one recreation 
program coordinator), three part time employees (two maintenance workers and a pollee 
records clerk), as well as pay plan adjustments including an additional mid year adjustment 
to police officer salaries. Health insurance costs increased by 20%. To help offset this 
increase, employees began contributing 5% of the cost of health Insurance for dependents 
and family members. 

• Capital expenses represent the second largest expense category at 26% of the total 
General Fund expenses ond increased 34% over 2007 expenses. Capital expenses include 
the purchase of capital equipment and transfers to the Capital Profects Fund for capital 
projects. 

• Purchased services represent the third largest area of expense at 17% of the total General 
Fund expenses and reflect an Increase of 19% ($171,891) over the prior year. Two of the 
most significant increases In this area include increased expenses for road maintenance and 
911 dispatch center charges. 

Capital Proiects Fynd. The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for malor capital projects of the 
City of a governmental nature. The Capital Projects Fund had a fund balance of $593,761 at the 
end of 2008. Of this amount, 56% is unrestricted and the remaining 44% represents interest 
earnings on development impact fees and is reserved for street and open space profects. 

Revenues of the Capital Profects Funds are tied to specific projects and fluctuate from year to year 
based on grant revenues and the nature of capital projects completed. Capital Profect Fund revenues 
were $6.14 million in 2008. Grants and other intergovernmental revenues represent 45% 

~ 
.2008 

[) 2007 

Capital Proied Revenues 

Transfers 
I 

" , 
i 

Sale of assets 

Invement earnings L 

I I 
Development Impact Fees 

Donations 

Grants I" ::': ',"': "*'I 

2 3 

Millions 
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($2.7 million) of the total revenues •. Transfers from other funds were 24.9% ($1.52 million) of the 
total revenues. In 2008 another significant revenue source was the proceeds from the sale of 
property owned by the City at 14.3% of the total revenues. 

Expenses of the Capital Projects Fund were $5.79 million. The following graph illustrates some of 
the major projects undertaken in 2008. 

Capital Proiect Expenses - $5.79 million 

Mise. Projects ~ 
SH 6 Pedestrian Path 

Building Improvements 

J.3 Road Imp. 

Reservoir #1 Engineering s.~ 
Sycamore/Ottley Drainage 

Community Center Road Imp 

Overlay and Sidewalks 

Ottley Avenue Road Imp. J:. ••• 
16 & L Road Land Acquisition j ••••••••• 

GYT Transfer Station I 

Uttle Salt Wash Park -!!~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-----l 

3 I 2 

Millions 
~ ________________________________________ J 

The single largest project of $2.3 million was for the development of the 18 acre Little Salt Wash 
Park located off of Pine Street north of Ottley Avenue. This a multi year project. The second largest 
project of $1.17 million for the Grand Valley Transit transfer station is a cooperative project for the 
construction of a new transfer station located in Grand Junction. The project Is funded with grant 
funds and the City of Fruita acts as the financial conduit for the payment of Invoices and receipt of 
grant funds. The third largest project was the purchase of 40 acres located at 16 and l Road for 
the future development of parks and open space and schools. This project was funded through a 
cooperative effort by the City of Fruita, Mesa County and School District #51. An agreement 
between the City and School District specifies that the City owns 27 acres and the School District owns 
the remaining 1 3 acres of the 40 acre parcel. 

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds of the City include the Devils Canyon Center Fund, Irrigation 
Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Trash Fund. Net assets for all proprietary funds at the end of the year 
was $17.58 million. This is an increase of $2.1 million from the prior year. Of this amount, $11.5 
million is invested in capital assets and not available for spending and $6.0 million is unrestricted. 

Sewer FUM. The Sewer Fund accounts for 87% of the total amount invested in capital assets and 
95% of the unrestricted net assets of proprietary funds. The following shows the increases in Net 
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Sewer Fund - Chang .. in Net Ass.t. 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 
• Unrestricted 

2004 
E!J Invested In capital assets 

o 5 10 15 20 
Million. 

Assets of the Sewer Fund. Unrestricted net assets are purposely being accumulated in order to offset 
costs of the new wastewater treatment plant which is expected to cost approximately $30 million. 

Revenues. Sewer revenues for 
2008 were $3.0 million. The 
largest source of revenues in 2008 
was from monthly charges for 
service which accounted for 43% of 
the total revenues of the Sewer 
Fund. Revenues from sewer tap 
fees was the second largest source 
of revenue at 24% of the total 
revenue. Tap fee revenues fluctuate 
on an annual basis depending on 
the amount of new residential and 
commercial construction. Other 
sources of revenue include 
developer constructed sewer system 
improvements (16% ), an Energy 
Impact Grant for final engineering 
and design of a new wastewater 

Sewer Fund Revenues $3.0 millon 

Tap Fees 
24% 

Developer 
Interest/MI 

contribution 
sc 

s 
5% 

Monthly 

charges 
43% 

treatment facility (12%) and miscellaneous revenues including interest on investments (5%). 

A comparison of revenues from 2007 to 2008 shows a decrease in revenue of 17% ($521,052). This 
decrease Is to due to fewer sewer taps for new construction sold in 2008 versus 2007 which reflects 
the a slow down in new construction in 2008. The 117% ($849,495) decrease in sewer tap revenues 
offset by a 23% ($306,957) increase in revenue from monthly charges. The Increase in monthly 
charges is due to a 25% rate increase and larger customer base. 
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The City conducted a rate study for sewer services to determine the monthly charge that would be 
needed to operate and pay debt on the new wastewater treatment facility. The study was updated 
in 2008 and Indicates that 1he monthly charge for a single family residence will need to be 
approximately $50 per month. In an effort to Implement this rate increase in an incremental manner, 
the sewer rates are scheduled to increase annually untll2011 when the treatment plant is scheduled 
to be in full operation. The monthly charge for sewer increased by 14% ($2) in 2007, 25% ($4) 
in 2008 and 25% ($5) in 2009. Plant Investment fees (tap fees) for a single family residence have 
also Increased from $4,000 in 2007 to $6,200 in 2008 and $6,400 In 2009. 

Expenses. Sewer Fund expenditures (GAAP Basis) of $948,044 reflect an Increase of 9% from 2007 
expenses of $871,915. This increase was primarily in 1he cost of sales and services (18%) and 
personnel services (13%). 

i 

! Sewer Fund Expenses - GAAP Basis 

Interest Expense J ! 

Transfers 

l •• _._iiiiilii Depreciation ~ 
\ 

Cost of sales and services i 
. 

i62oo7 

1.2008 

Personnel Services !~~~~!~~~~~!~~~~~!------J 
100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

General Fund revenues exceeded budget I 
by 14% ($1.09 million) and General Fund , General Fund Revenues and Expenses 
expenses were under budget by 1 9% i Budget vs Actual 
($1.78 million) resulting in a positive 
variance of $2.87 million between 
budgeted and actual revenues and 

expenses. Expenses 

During the year the General Fund budget 
was amended from on original budget 
appropriation of $9.29 million to $9.31 
million. These additional appropriations of 
$28,143 were approved by the City 
Council by resolution and after public 
hearing as required by the City Charter. 
Intra-departmental budget changes that 
modify line items within departments 
within the some fund are permitted with 
approval of the City Manager. 

Revenues 
F'"""""-

2 

[JOriginal Budget 

.4 6 8 10 
MtlJlon8 

r!JFinal Budget 

Actual expenses were $7.5 million, a positive variance of $1.78 million with the final approved 
budget of $9.31 million. Significant reasons for the variances between actual and budgeted 
expenses include the following: 

General Fund Expen.e •• Budget to Actual 

-----, 
Non-departmental 

Community Development ~. iiiiiiil 
General government 

Administration ~ 

Engineering 

Reaeatlon 

, 

; OActual 

I!l Final Budget 

;\ • Original Budget 

Public Works .iiiiiiiiiiiiiiii~~ ____ L ___ J 
500 1,000 1,500 

Thousands 
2,000 2,500 3,0001 

I 
I 
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Transfers to the Capital Project Fund were 41 % ($1.03 million) less than budget. This is primarily due 
to timing of various capital profects. A number of capital projects originally included in the 2008 
budget were re-appropriated in 'the 2009 budget. 

Public Safety expenses were 10% ($203,476) lower than budget. 

Non-departmental expenses were 42% lower than budget primarily due to unspent contingency funds 
of $88,892 as well as the funds budgeted for vehicle replacements reserves of $53,000. The vehicle 
replacement reserve is a budgeted addition to the reserved fund balance but is not an actual 
expense of funds until the reserve is used for the purpose Intended. 

Recreation expenses were 15% ($93,232) under budget primarily due to a significant portion of the 
Parks, Open Space and Trails Master Plan initially budgeted for completion in 2008 being carried 
forward to the 2009 Budget for completion. 

Public Worles expenses were 5% ($99,240) under budget primarily in the personnel services area 
due to capitalization of personnel expenses for traffic control on road improvement projects and 
labor on the shop building improvements. 

Actual revenues were $8.77 million, a positive variance of $1.09 million with the final approved 
budget of $7.68 million. Significant reasons for the variances between actual and budgeted revenues 
include the following: 

!li8neral Fund Relt.nu •• - Budll'" 10 Actual 
Transfers 

j Use tax - 8M 

iii ! 
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iiii; I 

! 
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Miscellaneous 

Other taxes 

Use tax - MV 

Property Tax 

City sales tax 

Intergovernmental 

County sales tax 
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Intergovernmental revenues for severance and mineral lease taxes were budgeted conservatively at 
$600,000. Actual revenues were $1,486,250, an increase of 248% over budget. These revenues 
can fluctuate dramatically from one year to the next and are informally designated for funding of 
one time capital projects to reduce the City's reliance on this revenue source for operating expenses. 

City sales tax revenues of $1.38 million were 14% ($174,355) over budget. This was due to a 
continued growth in the local economy and development in both the commercial and residential 
sectors of Fruita through the first half of 2008. Fruita has experienc:ed robust growth rates In the past 
several years due to the attractiveness of the area In climate, geography and proximity to services 
as well as a significant amount of energy related ec:onomic: growth and development. 

Other taxes whic:h consist primarily of franchise taxes were $546,493, 28% ($120,993) higher than 
budgeted. 

Use tax revenues on building materials were under budget by 28% ($110,141) as the pace of new 
construction slowed significantly in the last half of 2008 as the local economic conditions began to 
feel the effects of the c:onstruction and housing market slow down being experienced in the rest of 
the nation. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The City of Fruita's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of 
December 31, 2008, was $41.7 million. Total additions to fixed assets in 2008 net of accumuloted 
depreciation of $1.06 million was $10.47 million. This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and 
bridges. 

Capital assets of aovernmental adivities. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year for governmental activities included the 
addition of $7.64 million in assets net of accumulated depreciation. 

20QB 2QQZ ~bs;!lJg~ 

Land 5,643,420 4,103,909 1,539,511 

Buildings 2,396,667 2,414,275 (17,608) 

Machinery and equipment 5,479,932 2,822,135 2,657,797 

Hospital equipment 452,846 495,660 (42,814) 

Infrastructure 14,799,879 12,587,511 2,212,368 

Construction in progress 1.222.2.55 Q ] .222.2.55 
$30,065,699 $22,423,49 $7,642,209 

Major capital additions during 2008 include capital projects of $5.79 million as shown in the chart on 
page 19, $591,732 in capital equipment, and $1.96 million in development related construction of 
infrastructure assets as outlined on page 27. Depreciation expenses on capital expenses for 
governmental activities in 2008 was $710,973. 

Capital assets of business-type adivities: 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year for business-type activities included the 
addition of $2.83 million in assets net of accumulated depreciation. This includes the addition of 
$474,887 in development related construction of system related assets as outlined on page 27. 

2008 2007 Change 

Land 989,687 308,256 681,431 

Source of Supply 14,712 14,712 0 

Buildings 1,051,520 1,091,628 (40,108) 

Machinery and equipment 420,686 500,863 (80,177) 

Distribution and collection system 7,474,590 6,533,224 941,366 

Construction in progress ].~2Q..50B 36.5.226 1.325.2] 2 
$11,641,703 $8,813,979 $2,827,724 
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Major capital additions during 2008 include capital projects of $2.7 million as shown below, $8,603 
in capital equipment, and $474,887 in development related construction of infrastructure assets as 
outlined on page 27. Depreciation expenses on capital expenses for governmental activities in 2008 
was $351,761. 

2008 Capital Proiects • Business-type activities 
$2.7 million 

N. Mulberry Sewer Replacement 

Coulson Sewer Replacement 

Ottley Sewer Improvements 

Land for WWTP 

Treatment System Engineering 

o 500,000 1,000,000 1,500,000 

Long term debt. The total debt outstanding for 1he City of Fruita at 1he end of 2008 was $142,990. 
Of this amount, $95,962 is long term debt and $47,028 Is for capital leases on equipment. 

The net reduction In the City of Fruita's debt obligations in 2008 was $701,726. This decrease was 
due to scheduled payments on notes and leases and early payoff of a note payable to the Colorado 
Water Conservation Board. No new debt was issued in 2008. Pursuant to 1he Fruita City Charter, 
there is no limit on the amount of general obligation debt that can be issued except that said issuance 
must be approved by the voters. Additional information on the City of Fruita's capital leases can be 
found on pages 66 and 67 in the notes to the financial statements and long-term debt obligation on 
pages 67 thru 69 in the notes to the financial statements. 

Governmental BUSiness-type Total 
Activities Activities 

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 

Notes and loans payable 621,557 95,962 113;796 95,962 735,353 

Capital leases 23,51.4 3.4,.480 23,51.4 7.4,883 .47,028 109,363 

Total 23,51.4 656,037 119,.476 188,679 1.42,990 844,716 
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DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL ASSET ADDITIONS - 2008 

Governm!nts!l Activiti!! Business-

!XI!!! 
Activitie! 

-" E 
Grand ""i .. .; ! 

~ ! .! c -a ... ,. 
Total Go 1 D .2' c ..c II) 

lit 31 ..§ :I .. .!! .... .. ..!l! .. 0 .e': ..III ..III E 

l~ I j .... i SUBD/VISION .. ID di .. .. 0 :J D a .,; .,; II) 
A. A. II) 

Family Health West 0 0 0 35,000 0 0 115,000 150,000 0 150,000 

Home Loan 13,524 0 0 33,645 15,700 0 90,956 1~:3,fl25 0 153,825 

, 

River Glen 36,810 0 0 22,080 500 29,050 70,690 159,130 36,200 195,330 

Santa Ana 69,675. Cl 0 30,371 0 153,382 ~37,~89 491,4.17 57,292 548,709 

Steele 3,480 0 0 0 0 0 12,848 16,328 8,939 25,267 

Vintner's 194,458 0 0 60,108 29,000 234,506 474,902 99?/!74 372,456 1,365,430 

Grand Total 317,947 0 0 181,204 45,200 416,938 1,002,385 1,963,674 474,887 2,438,561 
---
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The City of Fruita has seen significant growth in recent years. The City offers a small town atmosphere 
which attracts a variety of demographic groups looking for easy access to recreational opportunities, 
a safe environment to raise a family, availability of medical services, geographical diversity, and 

a sense of community brought together through a variety of special events. Fruita is located just 
minutes away from Grand Junction, the largest city between Salt Lake City and Denver. While this 
proximity provides challenges in the sales tax base for Fruita it also provides more services and job 
opportunities than would typically be found in a City the size of Fruita. 

The City of Fruita continues to be in a strong financial position. City-wide reserves are in excess of 
levels required in the City's Budget Policy. As of December 31, 2008 unrestricted assets of 
governmental funds were 60% of the 2008 total expenses and unrestricted assets of business-type 
activities were at 373% of 2008 expenses including interest and transfers. These reserves are the 
result of a fiscally conservative polley in which unpredictable or one time revenues are matched with 
expenses of a similar nature such as capital expenses or special projects and predictable and on­
going revenues are allocated towards ongoing operational expenses. This policy has served the City 
well by providing funds to take advantage of opportunities that may arise and also buffering the City 
from some of the more severe effects of swings in economic conditions. 

The effects of the national economic downturn began to manifest itself more strongly in Fruita during 
the first half of 2009. City sales tax revenues are down 8%, county sales tax revenues are down 
1 8%, use tax revenues on building materials are down 77%, and use tax revenues on motor vehicles 
are down 46%. Fruita properties on the foreclosure list in June 2008 were 1 .3% of the total number 
of homes in Fruita. The percentage of utility accounts 90 days past due has remained constant over 
the last year at approximately 2% of the total receivables. 

The City of Fruita has two significant projects it will be undertaking in 2009 and 2010. The first 
project Includes the construction of a community recreation center. The voters approved a 1 % increase 
in the sales and use tax rate and the issuance of up to $15 million in bonds to fund the construction 
of the center. The City anticipates issuing bonds for this project in September of 2009 and will 
continue to monitor sales and use tax revenues to evaluate the effects of the decline in these revenues 
on the amount of debt that the City can incur for this project and still provide for both debt service 
payments and an operational subsidy for the facility. The second project includes the construction of 
a new wastewater treatment facility and collection line. This project is estimated to cost 
approximately $30 million and will be paid for through revenues of the Sewer Fund. The City began 
increasing sewer tap fees and monthly sewer charges several years ago in order to accumulate funds 
to help offset the cost of this project. In 2009 the monthly sewer rate increased from $20 to $25 for 
a single family residence. Annual increases in the sewer rates will continue to be required to make 
payments on the debt incurred for this project. The City has obtained approval for a loan through 
the Colorado Water and Power Development Authority at 2% apr and it is anticipated that this 
project will begin construction in September of 2009. 

Requests for Information 
this financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Fruita's finances. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, 325 E. Aspen, Ste 155, City 
of Fruita, Colorado, 81521. 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

December 31, 2008 

Prima!! Government 
Governmental Buline'I-Type 

Activltie. Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 7,756,134 $ 5,982,971 $ 13,739,105 
Receivables 1,201,511 353,394 1,554,905 
Inventories 11,623 11,623 
Restricted assets: 

Due from other governments 1,414,251 100,333 1,514,584 
Restricted cash 1,882,301 2,225 1,884,526 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 
land 5,643,420 989,687 6,633,107 
Source of supply 14,712 14,712 
Construction in progress 1,292,955 1,690,508 2,983,463 
Buildings, net 2,396,667 1,051,520 3,448,187 
Systems, net 14,799,879 7,474,590 22,274,469 
Machinery and equipment, net 5,932,777 420,686 6,353,463 

Total Assets 42,331,518 18,080,626 60,412,144 

LIABILITIES 
Aa:ounts payable and other current liabilities 327,375 362,392 689,767 
Accrued interest payable 303 1,739 2,042 
Accrued compensation payable 90,981 8,596 99,577 
Deferred revenue 2,870,738 2,870,738 
liabilities payable from restricted assets 2,225 2,225 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Bonds and notes 21,903 21,903 
Capital leases 11,485 11,485 22,970 

Due In more than one year 
Bonds and notes 74,059 74,059 
Capital leases 12,029 12,029 24,058 
Totol liabilities 3,312,911 494,428 3,807,339 

NET ASSETS 
Invested In capital assets, net of related debt 30,042,184 11,522,227 41,564,411 
Restricted fon 

Culture and recreation 200,656 200,656 
Marketing and promotion 157,530 157,530 
Streets 322,717 322,717 
Vehicle replacement 168,000 168,000 
Other purposes 49,635 49,635 
Emergency reserves 400,000 400,000 

Unrestricted 7,677£885 6,063,972 13,741,857 
Total Net Assets $ 39,018,607 $ 17,586,199 $ 56,604,806 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expen5e5 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
General government 1,900,694 
Marketing and promotion 102,212 
Parks and recreation 915,094 
Public works 1,582,689 
Public safety 1,851,213 
Interest on long-term debt 20,182 

Total govemmental activities 6,372,084 

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES: 
Devils Canyon Center -42,493 
Irrigation water 89,989 
Sewer 83-4,644 
Trash 497,505 

Total business-type activities 1,464,631 
Total government l7,816,7}5 

City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

for the year ended December 31, 2008 

Proflram Revenue. 
Operating 

Charge. for Grant. and 
Services Contributions 

792,041 6,538 

200,259 10,738 
46,879 79,924 
23,273 5,284 
20,495 

1,082,947 102,-484 

57,600 
93,614 

1,331,500 
539,658 

2,022,372 
$ 3,105,319 $ 102,-484 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Severance tax 
Lodging tax 
Highway users tax 
Franchise fees 
Other shared taxes 
Unrestricted Investment earnings 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Transfers 

Capital 
Grant. and 

Contributions 

1,187,136 

1,720,038 
2,324,772 

5,231,946 

1,577,784 

1,577l84 
$6,809,730 

Total general revenues and transfers 
Change In net assets 

Net Assets - beginning 
Net Assets - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are on integral part of this statement. 

Net (Ex!!n.e) Revenue and Chanle. In Net Allet. 

Governmental 

$ 

Activitie. 

85,021 
(102,212) 

1,015,941 
868,886 

( 1,822,656) 
313 

45,293 

45,293 

1,066,736 
4,475,370 
1,486,250 

128,270 
280,647 
348,056 
216,401 
239,938 
888,344 
162,400 

9,292,412 
9,337,705 

29,680,902 
$ 39,018.607 

Bu.ln.sHype 

$ 

Activltle. 

15,107 
3,625 

2,07-4,640 
42,153 

2,135,525 
2,135,525 

141,701 
1,193 

(162,400) 
l!9,.5()~) 

2,116,019 
15,470,180 

$ 17,586,199 

$ 

Total 

85,021 
(102,212) 

1,015,941 
868,886 

( 1,822,656) 
313 

45,293 

15,107 
3,625 

2,074,640 
42,153 

2,135,525 
2,180,818 

1,066,736 
4,475,370 
1,486,250 

128,270 
280,647 
348,056 
216,401 
381,639 
889,537 

9,272,906 
11,453,724 
45,151,082 

$ 56,604,806 



City of Fruita, Colorado 
&ALANeE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 200. 

Non-Maior Funds 
Capital Debt Other 

<Nneral Projects Service Governmental Total 
ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 7,488,338 $ $ $ 233,219 $ 7,721,557 
Accounts receivable 5,338 5,338 
Notes receivable 
Taxes receivable 1,024,750 7,422 1,032,172 
Special assessments receivable 
Due from other funds 34,582 34,582 
Due from other governments 688,589 889,662 1,578,251 
Inventories 11,623 11,623 
Cash - restricted 673,257 1,209,044 1,882,301 

Total Assets 9,926,477 2,098,706 240,641 12,265,824 

LlABlUTIES AND FUND BALANCES 
liabilities! 

Accounts payable 84,921 87,320 12,963 185,204 
Due to other funds 34,582 34,582 
Deposits payable 135,650 135,650 
Deferred revenue 1,487,695 11383,043 2,870,738 

Total Liabilities 1,708,266 1,504,945 12,963 3,226,174 

Fund Balances. 
Reserved for. 

Marketing 157,530 157,530 
Notes receivable 
Community center 87,710 87,710 
Parks and open space 42,798 70,148 112,946 
War memorial maintenance 11,848 11,848 
Streets 102,234 220,483 322,717 
Vehicle Replacement 168,000 168,000 
Inventories 11,623 11,623 
Emergency reserve 400,000 400,000 

Unreserved, designated for 
subsequent years expenditures 26,164 26,164 

Unreserved, undeslgnated 7,410,632 330,480 7l41,112 
Total fund balances 8,218,211 593161 227,678 9,039,650 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9,926,477 $ 2,098,706 $ $ 240,641 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore 

are not reported In the funds. 30,065,698 
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet maintenance 

to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are Included 
in governmental activities In the stotement of net assets. 28,057 

lang term liabilities, including bands payable, are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. P 14,798) 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 39,018,607 

The notes to the financial statements are an integrol port of this statement. 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the year ended December 31,2008 

Non-Major Funds 
Capital Debt Other 

General Projects Service Govemmenlal Tolal 
REVENUES 

Taxes: 
Property $ 949,023 $ $117,712 $ $ 1,066,735 
City sales 1,384,355 1,384,355 
County sales 2,246,799 2,246,799 
Use tax 844,216 844,216 
Other 546,493 128,270 674,763 

Licenses and permits 34,675 34,675 
Intergovernmental revenues 1,852,812 2,782,435 106,225 4,741,472 
Charges for services 363,616 363,616 
Fines and forfeitures, assessments 63,476 63,476 
Development Impact fees 79,924 369,613 449,537 
Investment earnings 189,287 48,170 20,495 2,480 260,432 
Rents and royalties 31,085 31,085 
Donations 11,469 530,245 541,714 
Miscellaneous 7,740 7,740 

Total revenues 8,604,970 3,730,463 138,207 236,975 12,710,615 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 351,338 351,338 
Administration 497,440 497,440 
Engineering 313,372 313,372 
Community development 406,033 406,033 
Marketing and promotion 102,212 102,212 
Public safety 1,748,015 1,748,015 
Public works 1,490,319 1,490,319 
Recreation 526,218 14,000 540,218 
Stormwater 
Non-departmental 204,718 204,718 

Debt service 
Principal retirement 632,523 632,523 
Interest and fiscal charges 27,963 27,963 

Capital outlay 483224 5,793l'0 108,208 6,385,442 
Total expenditures 6,0201977 5,793l10 660,486 224,420 12,699,593 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 2,583,993 (2,063,247) (522,279) 12,555 11,022 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 162,400 1,528,585 44,286 1,735,271 
Transfers (out) (1,511,870) (61,000) (1,572,870) 
Sale of capitol assets 5,512 882,832 888,344 

Total other financing sources (uses) P,343,958} 2,411,417 44,286 !61,000} '1°50,745 
Net change in fund balances 1,240,035 348,170 1477,9931 148,4451 1,061,767 

Fund balances - beginning 61978,176 245,591 4771993 276,123 7,977,883 
Fund balances - ending $ 8,218,211 $ 593,761 $ $ 227,678 $ 9,039,650 

The notes to the financial statements ore an integral part of this statement. 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended December 31,2001 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are differenet becau5et 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,061,767 

Governmental funds report copitol outlays os expenditures. However, In the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets Is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depredation 
in the current period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capitol assets (construction and 
donation of infrastructure by developers) is to Increase net assets. 

The issuance of long-term debt (leases) provides ament financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial 
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. 
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do nat require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental 
activities 

Change in net assets of governrnental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

3S 

5,674,469 

1,973,673 

632,523 

(15,767) 

11,040 

$ 9,337,705 



City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
12/31/2008 (With comparative total. for 2007) 

Businels-type Activltle •• Ente!!rise Fund. 
Sewer Trash 

2008 2007 2008 2007 
ASSETS: 

Current assetSJ 
Cash and Investments $ 5,738,155 $ 6,409,958 $ 13,627 $ 13,913 
Interest receivable 64 47 
Accounts receivable 201,547 155,193 78,901 74,985 
Special assessments receivable 5,291 6,032 
Notes receivable 9,593 11,419 
Due from other governments 100,333 135,561 

Total current assets 6,054,983 6,718,210 92,528 88,898 

Non-current assetSJ 
Restricted cash: 

Customer deposits 2,225 5,400 
Special assessments receivable 32,042 40,760 
Capitol assets 

land 707,524 26,093 
Source of supply 
Construction in progress 1,690,507 
Buildings, net 52,513 54,489 
Systems, net 7,311,794 6,723,804 
EquIpment, net 419,305 498,881 1,383 1,982 

Total capitol ossests, net 10,181,643 7,303,267 1,383 1,982 
Total nan-current assets 10,215,910 7,349,427 1,383 1,982 

Total assets 16,270,893 14,0671637 93,911 90,880 
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Non-Major Funds 
BusinesHyI!! Adivities - Ente!Erise Funds Govemmental Adivities 

Devils CanIon Center Irrigation Water Total. Fleet Maintenance 
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund 

$ 202,978 $ 147,845 $ 28,211 $ 6,371 $ 5,982,971 $ 34,578 
200 291 264 

4,800 4,800 2,965 2,995 288,213 
17,991 29,309 23,282 

9,593 
100,333 

207,778 152,645 49~367 38,966 6,404,656 34,578 

2,225 
32,042 

225,514 225,514 56,649 56,649 989,687 
14,712 14,712 14,712 

1,690,507 
986,044 1,023,089 12,963 14,050 1,051,520 

162,795 174,716 7,474,589 
420,688 6,008 

1,211,558 1,2481603 247,119 260,127 11,641,703 6,008 
1,211,558 1,248,603 247,119 260,127 11,675,970 6,008 
1,419,336 1,401,248 296,486 299,093 18,080,626 40,586 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
12/31/2008 (With comparative totals for 20(7) 

Buslnes.....,!!! Activitle. - En'!!!ri .. Fund. 
Sewer Trash 

2008 2007 2008 2007 
LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 321,513 142,974 40,879 38,076 
Compensated absences 7,665 7,593 
Accrued interest payable 1,739 3,599 
Notes payable • current maturity 21,903 17,835 
Capitol leases payable· current maturity 11,485 51,369 
Bond payable - current maturity (net of 
restricted cash) 

Total current liabilities 364,305 223,370 40,879 38,076 

Current liabllites payable from restricted assets: 
Customer deposits payable 2,225 5,400 
Accrued interest payable from restricted cosh 
Bonds payable from restricted cash 

Total current liabilities payable from 
restricted assets 2,225 5,400 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Notes payable 74,059 95,961 
Capital leases poyable 12,029 23,514 
Bonds payable (net of unamortized discounts) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 86,088 119,475 
Total Liabilities 452,618 348,245 40,879 38,076 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,062,167 7,114,589 1,383 1,982 
Unrestricted 5l56,108 6,604,803 51,649 50,822 

Total net assets 15,8181275 13,719,392 53,032 52,804 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral port of this statement. 
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Non-Major Fund. 

Buline'Hype Activities· Enterprise Fund. 
Devils Canyon Center Irrigation Wafer 
2008 2007 2008 2007 

931 

931 

931 

1,211,558 1,248,603 247,119 
207,778 152,645 48,437 

$1,419,336 $ 1,401,248 $ 295,556 $ 

39 

1,454 
903 

2,357 

2,357 

260,127 
36,609 

296,736 $ 

Total. 
2008 

362,392 
8,596 
1,739 

21,903 
11,485 

406,115 

2,225 

2,225 

74,059 
12,029 

86,088 
494,428 

11,522,227 
6,063,972 

17,586,199 

Governmental Activities 
Fleet Maintenance 

Internal Service Fund 

$ 

6,521 
3,505 

10,026 

10,026 

6,008 
241552 
30,560 



City of Frulto. Colorado 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the year ended December 31, 2008 (With comparative totals for 2007) 

Buslness-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Sewer Trash 

2008 2007 2008 2007 
OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charges for services $ 1,326,883 $ 1,016,483 $ 539,658 $ 488,513 
Other revenues 4,617 31443 

Total operating revenues 1,331 1500 1,019,926 539,658 488,513 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel services 308,547 268,083 
Cost of sales and services 224,136 183,129 496,905 446,632 
Depredation ond amortization 295,363 297,894 600 600 

Totol operating expenses 8281°46 7491'°6 497,505 447,232 
Operating Income (loss) 503,454 270,820 42,153 41,281 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Intergoverrmental 380,176 274,.480 
Investment income 136,945 257,682 75 684 
System development charges and contributions 474,888 443,676 
Sales of equipment 698 
Interest expense 16,5981 {9,4091 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 986,109 966,.429 75 684 

INCOME (lOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND 
TRANSFERS 1,489,563 1,237,249 42,228 41,965 

Capitol contributions - tap fees 722,720 1,572,215 
Transfers in 
Transfers out p 13,4001 II 13,.4001 !42,0001 {39,8oo} 

Changes in net assets 2,098,883 2,696,064 228 2,165 

Total net assets - beginning 132:'9,392 11,023,328 52,804 50,639 
Total net assets - ending $ 15,8181275 $13,719,392 $ 53,032 $ 52,804 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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Non-Maior Funds 
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental Activities 

Devils Canlon Center Irrigation Water Totals Fleet Maintenance 
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Internal Service Fund 

$ 57,600 $ 57,600 $ 93,614 $ 76,008 $ 2,017,755 $ 222,725 
4,617 7,167 

57,600 57,600 93,614 76,008 2,022,372 229,892 

45,464 54,158 354,011 137,107 
5,448 908 26,560 21,849 753,049 80,957 

37,045 36,459 17,965 13,678 350,973 788 
42,493 371367 89,989 891685 1,458,033 218,852 
15,107 20,233 3,625 (13,677) 564,339 11,040 

380,176 
2,981 9;755 1,700 2,992 141,701 

67,600 474,888 
495 1,193 

(6,598) 
2,981 9,755 2,195 70,592 991,360 

18,088 29,988 5,820 56,915 1,555,699 11,040 

1,500 722,720 
13,000 

11 45,0001 17,000} 15,0001 11 62,4001 
18,088 (115,012) (1,180) 66,415 2,116,019 11,040 

1,401 1248 1,516,260 296,736 230,321 151470,180 19,520 
$ 1,419,336 $ 1,401,248 $ 295,556 $ 296?36 $ 17,5861199 $ 30,560 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For lhe year ended December 31,2008 (With comparativelotal5 for 200n 

BusinesHype Activities. Enterfrise Funds 
Sewer Trash 

2008 2007 2008 2007 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers and users $ 1,281,970 $ 987,009 $ 535,742 $ 488,522 
Payments to suppliers (228,660) (176,385) (494,103) (444,613) 
Payments to employees 1308,4741 !265,789} 

Net cash provided by operating activities 744,836 544,835 41,639 43,909 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Operating transfers p 13,4oo} P 13,400} !42,OOOI !39,8oo1 
Net cash used by non-capital financing activities (113,4001 p 13,400} (42,000) (39,800) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital contributions - grants 415,404 200,378 
Capital contributions - plant Investment fees 724,546 1,583,106 
Gain on sale of equipment 698 
Proceeds from special assessments 9,459 5,457 
Transfers from another fund 
Principal paid on capital debt (69,204) (68,662) 
Interest paid on capital debt (8,458) (11,207) 
Purchase of capital assets !2,515,7811 (739,9781 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities {1,443,3421 969,094 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVEmNG ACTIVITIES 
Interest received on investments 136,928 257,654 75 684 

Net cash provided by investing activities 136,928 257,654 75 684 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (674,978) 1,658,183 (286) 4,793 

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 (including 
$39,281 In the Irrigation Water Fund and 
$35,580 In the Sewer Fund reported In 
restricted accounts) 6,415,358 4,757,175 13,913 9,120 

Cash and cash eqUivalents, December 31 (including 
$2,225 in the Sewer Fund reported in 
restricted accounts) $ 5,740,380 $ 6,415,358 $ 13,627 $ 13,913 
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Non-Major Fundi 
lSulinall=fype Activitiel- Enterprise Fundi 

Devill Canlon Center Irrigation Water 
2008 

57,600 $ 
(5,448) 

52,152 

2,981 
2,981 

55,133 

147,845 

2007 

57,600 
(908) 

56,692 

(145,000) 
(145,000) 

9,755 
9,755 

(78,5531 

226,398 

$ 

2008 

93,644 
(28,015) 

145,4361 
20,193 

(7,000) 
(7,000) 

495 
11,318 

(4,956) 

6,857 

1,790 
1,790 

21,840 

6,371 

$ 

2007 

75,803 
(20,405) 

!53,8751 
11523 

(5,000) 
!5,000) 

1,500 

38,291 
13,000 

(93,149) 

(40,358) 

2,701 
2,701 

(41,1341 

47,505 

$ 202,978 $ 147,845 $ 28,211 $ 6,371 

43 

Totall 
2008 

$ 1,968,956 
(756,226) 
!353,9101 
858,820 

(162,400) 
(162,400) 

415,404 
724,546 

1,193 
20,777 

(69,204) 
(8,458) 

(2,520,743) 

! 1 ,436,485) 

141,774 
141,774 

{598,291! 

6,583,487 

$5,985,196 

Governmental Activitl .. 
Fleet Maintenance 

Internal Setvice Fund 

$ 229,892 
(76,932) 

\1 361331} 
16,629 

(3,647) 

(3,647) 

12,982 

21,596 

$ 34,578 



City of Fruita, ColOl'"ado 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the year ended December 31,2008 (With comparative totals for 2007) 

Buslne,s-type Activitie, - Enterprise Fund, 
Sewer Trash 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) 
Adlustments to reconcile operating Income (loss) to 
net cash provided (used) by operating activitleSs 

Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 
payable 
Increase (decrease) In due to other funds 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 

Total adjustments 
Net cosh provided by operating activities 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES: 

Contributions of capitol assets from developers 

$ 

2008 

503,454 

295,363 
(46,355) 

(4,524) 

73 

13,175) 
241,382 
744,836 

474,888 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement 
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2007 2008 

270,820 42,153 

297,894 600 
(15,450) (3,916) 

6,744 2,802 

2,294 

P7,467} 
274,015 (514) 

$ 5441835 $ 41,639 

443,676 

$ 

2007 

41,281 

600 
10 

2,018 

2,628 
43,909 



Non-Major Fundi 

Business-type Activitie. - Enterprise Fundi 
Devil. Canyon Center Irrigation Water 
2008 2007 2008 2007 

15,107 20,233 3,625 (13,677) 

37,045 36,459 17,965 13,678 
30 (205) 

(1,455) 1,444 

28 283 

37,045 36,459 16,568 15,200 
$ 52,152 $ 56,692 $ 20,193 $ 1~23 
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Total. 
2008 

564,339 

350,973 
(50,241) 

(3,177) 

101 

!3,175~ 
294,481 

$ 858,820 

474,888 

Governmental Activities 
Fleet Maintenance 

Internal Service Fund 

11,040 

788 

4,025 

776 

5,589 
$ 16,629 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments at fair value 

Totalossets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for: 

Pension benefits 
Total net assets 

City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSm 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2001 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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$ 

$ 

Agency 
Fund 

171 

171 

171 
171 

$ 

$ 

Retirement 

Trust Fund 

394,742 
394,742 

394,742 
394,742 



ADDITIONS: 
Employer contributions 

Total contributions 
Investment Earnings 

Net investment gain 
Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Benefits 
Administrative expenses 

Total Deductions 

Change In net assets 

Total net assets· beginning 
Total net assets· ending 

City of Fruita, Colorado 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUOARY FUNDS 
For the year ended December 31, 2008 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of !ttls statement 
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Retirement 

Trust Fund 

$ 88,294 
88,294 

1128,386~ 
(40,092) 

34,473 
1,000 

35,473 

(75,565) 

470,307 
$ 394,742 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2008 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNnNG POLICIES 

A. Repomng entity 

The City of Fruita, Colorado was established in 1 884 and operates under a City Council -
Manager Home Rule form of Government with six elected council members, an elected mayor 
and an appointed manager. The City's financial statements include the accounts and 
operations of all City functions. The City's major operations include public safety, street 
construction and maintenance, community development, parks, recreation programs, 
irrigation, trash collection, sewer service, and general administration. The City of Fruita, 
Colorado is the primary government. The City has no component units. 

8. Government-wide and fund financial statement. 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement 
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary 
government. For the most part, the effect of Interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Transfers for financial services 
rendered to proprietary funds by the General Fund are included in the direct expenses of 
proprietary funds. Also included is depreciation on capitol assets associated with specific 
programs. Depreciation on assets which can not be attributed to a specific program is 
included in direct expenses of the General Government function. Program revenues include 
1) charges to customer or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment including transfers for 
financial services and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capitol requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2008 

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is detennined by its 
measurement focus. Basis af accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or 
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement 
focus applied. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cosh flows. Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to 
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales tax, use tax, franchise fees, grant revenues, and interest associated 
with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have 
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special 
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible 
to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The general funcl is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

The capitol projects fund is used to account for the financing and construction of significant 
capital projects. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2008 

The sewer fund accounts for all activities associated with providing sewer collection and 
treatment to customers within the sewer service area. 

The trash fund accounts for all activities associated with providing trash collection services 
to residential customers within the City limits. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

The internal service fund accounts for fleet maintenance services provided to other 
departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The agency fund is used to account for custodial functions for collecting and forwarding 
fees paid on new developments in lieu of dedication of land to the local school district. 

The retirement trust fund is used to account for activities of the City of Fruita Employees 
Retirement Plan which accumulates resources for retirement benefit payments to qualified 
City employees. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December " 
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their bUSiness-type activities and enterprise 
funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private­
sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government­
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rules are payments to the General Fund 
by various enterprise funds for providing administrative and billing services for such funds. 
Elimination of these charges/transfers would distort the direct costs and program revenues 
reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods and services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues. likewise, general revenues include all 
taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating Items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods In connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of all the City's enterprise and internal service funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2008 

internal service funds include cost of sales and services, personal services, and depreciation 
on capitol assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Transfers out are classified separately in the 
statements from operating and non-operating expenses. However, transfers could be 
classified as operating expenses of the business-type activities as the transfer is to 
compensate the General Fund for administrative functions for the proprietary funds. These 
administrative functions Include utility billing, payroll, accounts payable and other financial 
and other management expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy 
to use restricted assets first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Assets. liabilities. and net assets or equity 

1. Cash and investments. 

The City's cash and cosh equivalents are considered to be cosh on hand, demand 
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Colorado State StaMes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States 
or obligations unconditionally guaranteed by the United States, bonds of the State of 
Colorado and its political subdivisions, certain obligations secured by mortgages, 
bankers acceptances, commercial paper, state investment pools, repurchase agreements, 
money market funds and guaranteed investment contracts. 

Assets of the Retirement Trust Fund are investment by the International City Manager's 
Association Retirement Corporation. 

Investments are presented at fair value determined from quoted market prices. The 
state investment pools exist under the lows of the State of Colorado and are registered 
with the Securities Commissioner of the State of Colorado. The investment pools are 
similar to money market funds, with each shore valued at $1. 

2. Interlund receivables and poyables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are classified as "due to/from other funds" 
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loons) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the 
non-current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "internal balances" 
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3. Property taxes 

City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2008 

Property taxes as set by the City Council are collected by the County Treasurer. The 
County Treasurer remits property taxes collected to the City by the 10111 day of the month 
following collection. Property taxes receivable represent 2008 taxes collectible in 
2009 and are also shown as deferred revenue. Property taxes may be paid in 
installments with one-half of the total amount due payable on February 28 and the 
second half payable on June 1 5, or they may be paid in full by April 30. 

4. Special assessments receivable 

Special assessments receivable are recorded for the property owners' share of the cost 
of street or utility improvements within special improvement districts. Corresponding 
deferred revenue is recorded until the assessments meet the revenue recognition 
availability criteria. Special assessments receivable for projects which were initially 
financed with existing governmental resources are recorded together with corresponding 
deferred revenue in the fund which provided the resources. 

5. Inventories and prepaid items. 

The inventory in the General Fund consists of fuel to be consumed by the City's 
departments and is valued at cost which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out 
(FIFO) method. The costs of inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed 
rather than when purchased. 

6. Restricted assets 

Certain resources are set aside for specific purposes and classified as restricted because 
of donor restrictions on use of the resources or legal restrictions on their use. 

7. Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bridges, alleys, traffic lights and stonn drainage), are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns In the 
govemment-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as 
equipment purchases with an initial, individual cost of more than $1 ,000 and on 
estimated useful life in excess of three years, and construction projects which have a cost 
of more than $1 0,000 and a useful life of more than five years. Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2008 

or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Gains or losses on dispositions of 
property and equipment are included in income. 

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 
Distribution and collection system 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

8. Compensated absences 

Years 
5 - 50 years 
10 - 50 years 
3 to 25 years 
20 to 40 years 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and 
sick leave benefits. An employee may accumulate and carry forward one years 
accumulation of vacation leave. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 2080 hours. The 
City pays a terminating employee for all accumulated vacation time. The City does not 
pay any amounts for accumulated sick leave when employees separate from service with 
the City. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the 
governmental funds balance sheet only if they have matured, for example, as a result 
of employee resignations and retirements. 

9. Long-term liabilities 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straightline method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium 
or discount. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of 
the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reparted as debt service expenditures. 
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10. Fund Equity 

City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2008 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balances 
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside 
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative 
management plans for future use of financial resources that are subject to change. 

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet Includes a reconciliation between funcl balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government­
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explaim that "long term 
liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in 
the funds." The details of this $114,798 difference are as follows: 

Capital leases payable 

Accrued interest payable 

Compensated absences 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to 

arrive at net assets - governmental activities. 

$ 23,514 

303 

90,981 

$ 114.798 

Another element of that reconciliation explalm that "Internal service funds are used by 
management to charge the casts of fleet maintenance to individual funds. The assets and 
liabilities of the internal service funds are included In governmental activities in the statement 
of net assets." The details of this $28,057 difference are as follows: 

Net assets of the Internal servke funds 

less: Capital assets of the Internal service fund 

Plus: Compensated absences payable 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance· total governmental funds to 
arrive at net assets - governmental activities. 

$ 

$ 

30,560 

(6,008) 

3,505 

28.057 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expendi1ures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities. 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes In fund balances 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31 , 2008 

includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and 
changes in net assets of governmenlal activities as reported in the government-wide statement 
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report 
capitol outlays as expenditures. However, in the stotement of activities the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." 
The details of this $5,674,469 difference are as follows: 

Capitol outlay reported in capitol projects 

Capitol equipment Included in expenses of General Fund functional 
activities 

Capitol equipment and improvements in expenses of the 
Conservation Trust Fund activities 

Depreciation expense, net of internal service fund 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - tola/ 
governmenlal funds to arrive at changes in net assets of govemmenlal 
activities 

$ 5,793,710 

483,524 

108,208 

(710,973) 

$5,674,469 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The net effect of various miscellaneous 
transactions involving capitol assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and donations) is to Increase net 
assets." The details of this $1,973,673 difference are as follows: 

Donations of capitol assets increase net assets in the statement of 
activities, but do not appear in the governmental funds because they 
are not financial resources. $1,973,673 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "issuance of long-term debt (leases) 
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets." The details of this $632,523 
difference are as follows: 

Principal repayments 

lease payments 

Note payments 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - tolal 
governmenlal funds to arrive at changes in net assets of 
governmental activities 
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City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2008 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement 
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds." The details of this ($15,767) difference 
are as follows: 

Compensated absences, net of internal service fund 

loss on disposal of assets 

Accrued interest 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of 
governmental activities 

NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary information 

$ (14,757) 

(8,792) 

7,782 

$ (15,767l 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles for all governmental funds, proprietary funds and internal service funds, Fiduciary 
funds for the employees retirement plan and the agency trust fund for school land dedication 
fees are not budgeted. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 

On or before the last day of August of each year, all departments of the City submit 
requests for appropriations to the City Manager so that a budget may be prepared. On 
or before the 1 It day of October, the proposed budget is presented to the City Council for 
review. The Council holds public hearings and a final budget must be prepared and 
adopted not later than December 15 in order to meet the staMory deadline for certification 
of the mill levy to the County. 

On or before December 31, the City Council enacts a resolution appropriating the budgets 
for the ensuing fiscal year. The City Council may amend the appropriation resolution upon 
notice of a public hearing at any time during the year and increase appropriations upon 
certification by the City Manager that excess revenues are available. The Council may also 
make emergency appropriations by emergency ordinance, and in the event there are 
insufficient revenues for the emergency appropriation, the Council may authorize, by 
emergency ordinance, the issuance of short-term notes. 

The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed 
the appropriated amount) is established at the individual fund level. Even though the budget 
enacted by the City Council is at the fund level, the City prepares a line item budget by 
department and program for control at the line item level. The City Manager has the 
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authority to reallocate the distribution of budgeted amounts at the department level. 

Transfers of appropriations between departments require approval of the City Council 
through adoption of a resolution amending the budget. 

The City Council made several supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the year 
as follows: 

Fund 

Governmental Activities 

General Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Conservation Trust Fund 

Business-Type Activities 

Proprietary Funds: 
Irrigation 

Sewer 

Trash 

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

Orisinal Amount Amended Amount 

$ 9,291,290 $ 
8,881,070 

96,500 

87,875 
3,275,475 

511,000 

9,319,432 
11,423,838 

197,500 

92,875 
4,301,750 

542,000 

For the year ended December 31, 2008, there were no expenditures which exceeded 
appropriations. 

C. Deficit fund equity 

For the year ended December 31, 2008, there were no funds that had a deficit fund equity. 

NOTE 4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Cash and investments 

The composition of all cash and investments held by the City at December 31, 2008 and 
2007 is as follows: 
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Cosh on hand $ 

Cosh in checking account(s) 

Certificates of deposit 

Investment pools 

Money Market Funds 

Federal Agency securities: 

Federal Notional Mortgage Association 

Federal Home Loon Bank 

Denver City/County Airport Bonds 

Repurchase agreement 

2008 2007 

950 $ 1,360 

517,529 (50,711 ) 

2.731,820 2,571,042 

6,371,824 3,625,823 

406,390 180,199 

627,622 

298,170 

492,778 

5,102,340 8,119,336 

15,623,631 15,372,841 

The captions on the statement of net assets of the City related to cash and investments are 
as follows: 

Cash and investments 

Restricted cash 

Credit risk. 

2008 

13,739,105 

1,884,526 

15,623,631 

2007 

13,329,226 

2,043,615 

15,372,841 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation. 

Custodial credit risk 
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City 
will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that 
are in possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, 
in the event of the failure of the counter party to a transaction, a government will not be 
able to recover the value of investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party. The City's deposits are either covered by depository insurance or are 
collateralized under the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act and are therefore not 
deemed to be exposed to the custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2008, $3,002,163 
of the City's deposits were covered by FDIC insurance and $5,178,190 were collateralized 
under the Public Deposit Protection Act. The City's investments are not deemed to be 
exposed to custodial credit risk because they are held by the City or the City's custody agent 
in the City's name. 
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Concentration of credit risk. 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's 
investment in a single issuer. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any 
one issuer. More than five percent of the City's investments are in public entity investment 
pools. These investments are 41 % of the City's total investments at December 31 , 2008. 

Interest rate risk. 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits Investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. Colorado statutes do not allow investment maturities to exceed five years 
unless longer maturities are specifically authorized by the governing body. 

Deposits. 
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The City's deposits are governed by Colorado Statute. 
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government 
deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulators. 
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible 
collateral is maintained by another institution or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits 
as a group. The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the 
aggregate uninsured deposits. All deposits of the City are insured or collateralized with 
securities held by or for the entity. The Colorado Divisions of Banking and Financial Services 
are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the 
uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools. 

Investments 
Colorado statutes specify investments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which local 
government may invest which include: 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities 
Local government investment pools 
Certain international agency securities 
General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities 
Guaranteed investment contracts 
Commercial paper 
Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities 
Banker's acceptances of certain banks 
Certain money market funds 

As of December 31, 2008, the City had $6,371,824 in governmental and business type 
funds in several local government investment pools established for local governments in 
Colorado to pool surplus funds (CSAFE and Colotrust). These pools operate similarly to a 
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money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1 .00. Investments of these pools 
consist of U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, the highest rated commercial paper and 
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury and agency securities. Each pool is 
rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's. To obtain financial statements for CSAFE you may 
visit their website at www.csafe.org. Colotrust's financial statements are available on their 
website at www.colotrust.com. 

In September 2008, the securities and holdings of the Colorado Diversified Trust (COT) 
investment pool were adjusted to market value due to the Lehman Brothers bankruptcy and 
the fund's resulting inability to maintain a net asset value of $0.995. The per shar; value 
in the Colorado Diversified Trust investment pool decreased to $0.9819 and the investment 
pool was dissolved due to its' inability to maintain the $1.00 per share value. All assets of 
COT were transferred to the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLO Trust) 
investment pool. Any recovery of the lehman assets will be allocated to participants of the 
pool based on their September 1 4, 2008 balances. The City of Fruita had $21 2,663 
invested in the pool and incurred a loss, pending any future recovery, of $3,850. 

Investments in general obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities at 
December 31, 2008 were as follows: 

Security Maturity Face Amount 

490,000 Denver City/County Airport Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, A 1 Moody's Rating, AA S & P Rattng 

November 15, 
2009 

B. Deferred revenues 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. 
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have 
been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various 
components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds 
were as follows: 

Property taxes assessed for 2008 but not receivable 
until 2009 (general fund) 

Impact fees for chlpseal which have been received but 
not yet earned (general fund) 

Impact fees for open space, road and drainage 
improvements which have been received but not 
yet earned (capital projects fund) 

Grant revenue for infrastructure (capital projects funds) 

Unallocated utility billing receipts (general fund) 

Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds 
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Ungvailable 

$ 1,024,750 

~ 1,024,750 

Unearned 

$ 

445,301 

945,763 

437,280 

17,644 

~ 1.845,988 



C. Capital assets 
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December 31, 2008 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows. 

Begiming Ending 
Balance Increase Decrease Balance 

Governmental activities: 

CaBital assets. not !2~ing deBr~cicted 

Land $ 4,103,909 $1,539,511 $ - $ 5,643,420 

Construction in progress 1,292,955 1,292,955 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 4,103,909 2,832,466 6,936,375 

CaBital assets. being deBreciated 

Buildings and other structures 3,440,472 74,131 3,514,603 

Machinery and equipment 3,820,607 2,907,931 (72,998) 6,655,540 

Hospital equipment 500,000 500,000 

Infrastructure 13,095,971 2,547,171 15,643,142 

Total capital assets being depreciated 20,857,050 5,529,233 (72,998) 26,313,285 

less aCQJmulated del2reciation for: 

Buildings and other structures ( 1 ,026,1 97) (91,739) (1,117,936) 

Machinery and equipment (998,472) (242,405) 65,268 (1,175,609) 

Hospital equipment (4,340) (42,814) (47,154) 

Infrastructure (508,460) (334,803) (843,263) 

Total accumulated depreciation (2,537,469) (711,761) 65,268 (3,183,962) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 18.319,581 418171472 {7,l301 23,129.323 

Governmental activities capital assets, 
net $ 22,423,490 ~ 716491938 $ 17 ,l30) ~ 3010651698 
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Business-tvll!e activities: 

Cal,2itgl gS:i~t:i. n2t b~ing g~l:2r~dated 

land 

Source of supply 

Construction in progress 

Total capitol assets not being 
depreciated 

Cal,21tgl g:i~!l. !2~ing del,2redateg 

Buildings 

Distribution and collection system 

Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

less gC9.!m!.!lat~g d~l,2r~iation for: 

Buildings 

Distribution and collection system 

Machinery and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

$ 

Beginning 
Balance 

308,256 

14,712 

365,296 

688,264 

1,643,978 

10,441,675 

1,065,059 

13,150,712 

(552,350) 

(3,908,451) 

(564,196) 

(5,024,997) 

Total capital assets being depredated, net 8,125,715 

Increase 

$ 681,431 

1,325,212 

2,006,643 

1,172,054 

1,172,054 

(40,108) 

(230,688) 

(80,177) 

(350,973) 

821,081 

Decrease 

$ 

(13,585) 

(13,585) 

13,585 

13,585 

Business-type activities capital assets, net ~8.813.979 ~ 2,827,724 ~ 

$ 

Ending 
Balance 

989,687 

14,712 

1,690,508 

2,694,907 

1,643,978 

11,613,729 

1,051,474 

-14,309,181 

(592,458) 

(4,139,139) 

(630,788) 

(5,362,385) 

8,946,796 

~ 11,641,703 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental actlvitle:i 

General government 

Park and recreation 

Public works 

Public safety 

Capital assets held by the government's internal service fund are charged 
to various functions based on their usage of assets 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 
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$ 

$ 

124,737 

70,798 

421,044 

94,393 

789 

711,761 



Business-type activities 

Devils Canyon Center 

Irrigation Water 

Sewer 

Trash 

City of Fruita, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2008 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 

$ 

$ 

37,045 

17,965 

295,363 

600 

350,973 

D. Inferfund transfers 

E. 

General 
Transfers oub Fund 

General Fund $ $ 

Nonmaior governmental funds 

Irrigation Water 7,000 

Sewer 113,400 

Trash 42,000 

Total transfers out $162,400 $ 

Capital leas8s 

Transfers In: 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

44,285 $ 

44,285 $ 

Capital 
Prolects 

Fund 

1,467,585 

61,000 

1,528,585 

Total 

$1,511,870 

61,000 

7,000 

113,400 

42,000 

$1,735,270 

During 2003, the City entered into a lease agreement for a vactor truck financed through 
the Municipal Services Group, Inc. for the amount of $230,343 at 3.59%. The final lease 
payment was made in February 2008. 

During 2006, the City entered into a lease agreement for a dump truck financed through 
Bank of the West for 1he amount of $115,100 at 4.73% with a current balance of $68,962. 
The City is obligated under this agreement to make annual payments of $25,197 every June 
1 through 201 O. 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 
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Asset: 

Machinery and equipment 

less: Accumulated depredation 

Total 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 57,675 

(8,659) 

49,016 

Sewer 
Fund 

$ 57,675 
(8,659) 

49,016 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the minimum lease 
payments as of December 31, 2008, were as follows: 

Governmental 
Year Ending Decemb~r ~1 Activities Sewer Fund 

2009 12,598 12,598 

2010 12,598 12,598 

Total minimum lease payments 25,196 25,196 

less: amount representing Interest (1,682) (1,682) 

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 23,514 $ 23,514 

Interest expense on capital leases for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $1,450 in 
the Sewer Fund and $1,632 in the Debt Service Fund. 

F. Long-term debt 

1. Notes and loans payable 

The Debt Service has historically been used to account for long term debt and lease 
payments for governmental funds. The City was obligated under two notes payable to 
the Colorado Water Conservancy Board which required 40 annual payments of 
$12,233 on May 1, beginning May 1, 1984, and 40 annual payments of $30,709 on 
December 1, beginning December 1, 1984. These loons were paid off early in 2008. 

During 1995 the City entered into a loan agreement with the Colorado Water Resources 
and Power Development Authority in the amount of $155,435. This loan was for the 
construction of the Kingsview sewer line extension. The City Is obligated under the 
agreement to make an initial payment of $8,962 on March " 1996, and quarterly 
payments of $2,980 each March " June 1, September 1 and December 1 beginning 
June " 1996 and ending March 1,2015. The loan agreement requires compliance with 
specified covenants and obligations. In compliance with the requirements, the City has 
maintained a three-month operations and maintenance reserve, and has complied with 
the rate covenant. A surcharge on plant investment fees and monthly sewer charges is 
assessed on all properties in the basin served by the extension of the sewer line to cover 
the costs of aMual debt service. Additional revenues collected above the amount owed 
is applied on an annual basis to the balance of the note. The outstanding balance on this 
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note at December 31, 2008 was $39,478 and is included in the Sewer Fund. 

During 2002 the City entered into a loan agreement with the Colorado Department of 
local Affairs for a loan from the local Government Severance Tax Fund in the amount 
of $1 23,000 for construction of the Greenway Business Pane sewer line and sewer 
facility improvements. The City is obligated under the agreement to make an initial 
payment of $15,929 on September 1,2003, and annual payments of $15,929 each 
September thereafter ending September 1,2012. Revenues of the sewer fund are used 
to make these payments and additional charges will be assessed to properties 
benefiHing from the extension of the sewer line at the time they connect to the City sewer 
system. The outstanding amount on this note at December 31, 2008 was $56,484 and 
is included in the Sewer Fund .. 

Notes and loans currently outstanding are as follows: 

Purpose 

Business type activities 
sewer line extensions 

Interest Rates 

4.50 - 5.00% 95,962 

$ 95,962 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes and loans are as follows: 

Year ended Business-type Activities 

December 31 Prindeal Interest 
2009 21,903 4,390 
2010 19,062 3,461 
2011 19,993 2,530 
2012 20,969 1,554 
2013 6,064 530 

2014 6,341 253 

2015 1,630 18 

$ 95,962 $ 12,736 

Interest expense on notes and loans payable for the year ended December 31 , 2008 
was $5,148 in the Sewer Fund and $26,331 in the Debt Service Fund. 

2. Changes in long-term liabilities 
long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2008, was as follows: 
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Due 
Beginning Ending Within 
Balance AddiHons Reductions Balance One Year 

Qgv~rnm~ntgl gctivlti~l: 

Notes payable $ 621,557 $ $(621,557) $ $ 
Capital leases 34,480 (10,966) 23,514 11,485 
Compensated absences 75,448 15,533 90,981 

Governmental activity 
long-term liabilities $ 731 d85 $15,533 $(632,523) $ 114,495 $ 11 .485 

Buslnes~-!:XR~ activitieSl 

Notes and loans 113,796 (17,834) 95,962 21,903 
Capital leases 74,883 (51,369) 23,514 11,485 

Compensated absences 8,496 100 8,596 
Business-type 

long-term liabilities ~ 197,175 ~ 100 ~ (69,2031 ~ 128,072 ~ 33.388 

The internal service fund predominately serves the governmental funds. Accordingly, 
long-term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for governmental 
activities. At year end, $3,505 of internal service funds compensated absences are 
included in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated 
absences are generally liquidated by the general fund. 

G. Reserved funds 

Fund balance is reserved to indicate that assets of corresponding amounts are not available 
for appropriation. The following balances have been reserved on the balance sheet for 
governmental funds. 

1. General Fund. The reserved fund balance of $781 ,415 consists of $11 ,623 reserved 
for gas inventory, $11,848 for maintenance on the Vietnam War Memorial, $87,710 
reserved for a community center, $102,234 Is reserved for chip seal on streets, 
$168,000 is reserved for vehicle/equipment replacement and $400,000 is reserved 
for emergencies as required by Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution. 
Unreserved designations for subsequent years expenditures of $26,164 include amounts 
designated by the City Council for swimming pool improvements of $5,320 and the 
employee supplemental health insurence program of $20,844. 

2. Capital Projects Fund. The reserved fund balance of $263,281 represents interest 
earnings on development impact fees of which $42,798 is reserved for parks and open 
space and $220,483 is reserved for street and drainage improvements. 
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3. Other Governmental Funds. The reserved fund balance of $227,678 represents the 
fund balance of the Marketing and Promotion Fund of $157,530 which is restricted for 
use in marketing and promotion of the City and $70,148 which represents the fund 
balance of the Conservation Trust Fund which is restricted in used for parks, open space 
and recreational facilities pursuant to C.R.S. 29-21-101. 

NOTE 5. BUDGET TO ACTUAL PRESENTATION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

The City's enterprise funds' budgets are prepared on a basis other than accrual. Modifications to 
the budgetary basis consist of adding capital expenditures and debt service principal payments 
and deducting depreciation and amortization expense from GMP basis expenses. A comparison 
of budget and actual expenditures with adiustments to convert the expenses at the end of the year 
on the generally accepted accounting principles (GMP) basis to the budgetary basis follows. 

Expenses reported in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP): 

Operating expenses, deductions 
Transfers 
loss on disposal of equipment 
Interest 

Total expenses GAAP basis 

Modifications to GAAP expenses: 
Add capital expenditures 
Add debt service payments 
Deduct depreciation and amortization 

Expenditures on budgetary basis 

Original Budget 

Final Amended Budget 

Variance - positive (negative) 

NOTE 6. REnREMENT PLANS 

Sewer 

$ 828,046 $ 
113,400 

6,598 
948,044 

2,698,851 
69,204 

(295,363) 
3,420,736 

3,275,475 

4,301,750 

$ 881,014 $ 

Trash 

497,505 
42,000 

539,505 

(600) 
538,905 

511,000 

542,000 

$ 

3,095 $ 

Devils 
Canyon 
Center 

42,493 

42,493 

Irrigation 
Water 

89,989 
7,000 

96,989 

4,956 

(37,045) (17,965) 
5,448 83,980 

17,750 87,875 

17,750 92,875 

1 2,302 =$ ======8=,8=9::.5 

Effective January " 1 974, the City of Fruita adopted a defined contribution retirement plan ("City 
of Fruita Employee's Retirement Plan) for full time employees with six months continuous service, 
excluding elected officials. The statement of fiduciary net assets and statement of changes in 
fiduciary net assets for the Retirement Trust Fund are the financial statements of the retirement plan. 
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The City contributes 3 V2 % of the amount of the employee's compensation as defined by the plan. 

Vesting of the City's contribution is 50% at the completion of three years of service, 75% at the 
completion of four years of service and 1 00% at the completion of five years. ICMA Retirement 
Corporation Is the trustee for the plan and the City Manager is the plan administrator. The total 
contribution to allocate for this plan year of 2008 is $87,294. No employee contributions were 
made to this plan in 2008. The City's total payroll for all employees In 2008 was $2,825,264 of 
which $2,494,103 was subject to this plan. The plan uses the accrual method of accounting similar 
to the method used for the proprietary funds. Fair value of the plan investments at December 31, 
2008 was $394,742. The Investments consist of various funds offered by ICMA Retirement 
Corporation. 

The Colorado legislature established a statewide benefit plan for all policemen hired after April 
7, 1 978 and for those hired on or before April 7, 1978 who choose to participate. All of the City's 
police employees were covered by the plan administered by the State until January 1, 1989, when 
the funds were transferred to another administrator. These funds are now administered in a private 
money purchase defined contribution pension plan (Fruita Police Department Money Purchase 
Pension Plan). Employees are eligible to participate from the date of employment. The employee 
makes a contribution of 10010 and the City makes a contribution of 8% of the employee's base 
salary. The employees cannot make any additional contributions. The City's contribution for each 
employee (and interest allocated to the employee's account) becomes 20% vested at the 
completion of two years of service, 40010 at the completion of furee years of service, 60% at the 
completion of four years of service and 100% vested at the completion of five years of service. 
Any non-vested Oty contributions forfeited by an employee who leaves the City'S employment are 
held in an investment account for the City. The City's policy is to use these forfeited contributions 
to reduce future contributions to the plan. 

The total payroll covered by the plan in 2008 was $785,115. Total contributions for the year 
ended December 31, 2008, were $78,511 by the employees and $62,809 by the City. These 
expenses are recorded In the General Fund. 

NOTE 7. PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL 

The City Is a member of the Colorado Intergovemnental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA). CIRSA 
provides workers compensation, property and casualty insurance coverages to the Ctty. The 
coverages are provided through joint self-insurance, Insurance and reinsurance, or any combination 
thereof. CIRSA's rate setting policies are established by the Board of Directors, in consuhatlon with 
independent actuaries. The City is subject to a supplemental assessment In the event of deficiencies, 
and may receive credit on future contributions in the event of a surplus. 

CIRSA has entered into various excess insurance contracts to limit large losses and minimize 
exposure on large risks. Excess of loss contracts in effect during 2008 limit CIRSA's per occurrence 
exposure to $500,000 for property coverages, $1,000,000 for liability coverages and $1 50,000 
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for crime coverages, and provide coverage to specified upper limits. 

NOTE 8. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A. Risk Management 

The City is self-insured for property and liability insurance. As discussed in Note VII, the 
City is a member of the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA). CIRSA 
has a legal obligation for claims against its members to the extent that funds are available 
in its annually established loss fund and amounts are available from insurance providers 
under excess specific and aggregate insurance contracts. Losses incurred in excess of loss 
funds and amounts recoverable from excess insurance are direct liabilities of the 
participating members. CIRSA has indicated that the amount of any excess losses would be 
billed to members in proportion to their contributions in the year such excess occurs, although 
it is not legally required to do so. 

The ultimate liability to the City resulting from claims not covered by CIRSA is not presently 
determinable. Management and the City's attorney are of the opinion that the final 
outcome of such claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the City's financial 
statements. 

B. Pending litigation 

The City is contingently liable in respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the 
ordinary course of its operations. The City Attorney estimates that the potential claims 
against the City not covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially 
affect the financial statements of the City. 

~ Contract Commitments 

The City has several signed commitments for engineering and construction projects in 
progress. At year end, the major commitment Was for engineering services for the 
wastewater treatment plant with an outstanding contract balance in the amount of 
$648,403. Expenses for this commitment are included in the 2009 Budget. 

NOTE 9. OPERATING LEASE 

The City entered into a ten-year operating lease with a nonprofit corporation for the use of a 
building, grounds and equipment to be used as a quality science/learning center. According to the 
lease terms, the City will receive escalating amounts of bose rents from $4,200 per month to 
$4,800 per month. In addition to the bose rent, if 10% of admissions receipts exceeds the base 
rent, then the larger amount will be received. The percentage rent shall be increased to 1 2.5% 
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following any year in which the total attendance exceeds 100,000 visitors and 15% following any 
year in which total attendance exceeds 150,000 visitors. The lease is renewable by lessee for four 
additional five-year periods at bose rents as stipulated in the lease agreement. At the fifth 
anniversary dote of the initial term, the date of expiration of the initial term or the dote of 
expiration of each renewal term the lessee has on option to purchase. The commencement dote of 
the lease was July 1, 2000. The total bose rent for the Initial ten-year period is $540,000. 

NOTE 10. TAX, SPENDING AND DEBT LIMIT A nONS 

Colorado voters passed on amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, commonly 
known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR) which has several limitations Including revenue 
raising, spending abilities, debt limitations and other specific requirements of state and local 
governments. 

Future spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year's "Fiscal Yeor 
Spending" adlusted for allowable increases based upon information and local growth. An election 
was held in April 2006 and voters approved a measure to allow the City to keep and retain all 
revenues, including grants, in excess of the fiscal year spending limit for the purpose of 
implementing the City's capital Improvement plan, Including the maintenance of capitol 
improvements until December 31, 201 2. 

TABOR requires the establishment of on emergency reserve of at leost 3% of fiscal year spending 
(excluding bonded debt service). These emergency reserves are restricted in use. This reserve is 
noted as port of the reserved net assets of the City. 

The amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The City believes it is in 
compliance with the requirements of the amendment. However, the City has mode certain 
interpretations for the amendment's language in order to determine its compliance. 
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APPENDIXC 

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 

The following information is provided to give prospective investors general information 
concerning selected economic and demographic conditions existing in the area within which the City of 
Fruita (the "City") is located in Mesa County (the "County"), Colorado. The statistics presented below 
have been obtained from the referenced sources and represent the most current information available from 
such sources; however, certain of the information is released only after a significant amount of time has 
passed since the most recent date of the reported data and therefore, such information may not be 
indicative of economic and demographic conditions as they currently exist or conditions which may be 
experienced in the near future. Further, the reported data has not been adjusted to reflect economic 
trends, notably inflation. Finally, other economic and demographic information not presented herein may 
be available concerning the area in which the City is located and prospective investors may want to 
review such information prior to making their investment decision. The following information is not to be 
relied upon as a representation or guarantee of the City of its officers, employees, or advisors. 

Population 

The following table sets forth population statistics for the City, the County, and the State. 

Population 

City of Fruita Mesa County State of Colorado 
Percent Percent Percent 

Year Population Change Population Change Population Change 

1960 1,830 50,715 1,753,947 
1970 1,822 (0.4)% 54,374 7.2% 2,207,259 25.9% 
1980 2,810 54.2 81,530 49.9 2,889,964 30.9 
1990 4,045 44.0 93,145 14.3 3,294,394 14.0 
2000 6,478 60.2 116,255 24.8 4,301,261 30.6 
2008 1 11,535 78.1 144,440 24.2 5,011,390 16.5 

1 Estimate. 
Sources: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, and Colorado Division of Local Government 

The 2000 median age of the County was 38.1 years, as compared with 34.7 years in 1990. The 
State's median age for the same period increased from 32.5 in 1990 to 34.3 years in 2000, with the 
median age ofthe United States being 32.9 and 35.3 years in 1990 and 2000, respectively. 

Income 

The following tables set forth historical median household effective buying income and the 
percentage of households by classification of effective buying income ("EBI") levels for the County, the 
State and the United States. 



Median Household Effective Buying Income 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Mesa County $33,198 $34,156 $34,980 $35,567 $36,354 
Colorado 43,544 44,489 45,594 45,477 44,711 
United States 38,201 39,324 40,529 41,255 41,792 

Source: Total Dimensions International, Inc.-Demographics USA 2004-2008 

Percent of Households by Effective Buying Income Groups-2008 

Less Than $15,000- $25,000- $50,000- $75,000- $100,000- $150,000 
$15,000 $24,999 $49,999 $74,999 $99,999 $149,999 or more 

Mesa County 14.3% 15.7% 39.2% 17.2% 8.1% 3.4% 2.1% 
Colorado 10.7 11.6 34.5 20.7 12.3 6.7 3.5 
United States l3.6 l3.1 33.3 19.8 11.0 6.0 3.2 

Source: Total Dimensions International, Inc.-Demographics USA 2008 

Per Capita Personal Income 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Mesa County $25,811 $27,131 $28,872 $30,576 $32,422 
Colorado 34,041 35,594 37,611 39,612 41,192 
United States 31,530 33,157 34,690 36,794 38,615 

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economic Accounts 

School Enrollment 

The following table presents a five-year history of school enrollment for the Mesa County Valley 
School District 51, the school district serving the City. 

School Year 

2004/2005 
2005/2006 
2006/2007 
2007/2008 
200812009 
2009/2010 

School Enrollment 

Number of Pupils 

20,130 
20,578 
21,173 
21,308 
22,159 
22,165 1 

Percent Change 

2.2% 
2.9 
0.6 
4.0 
0.0 

I Preliminary as of September 30, 2009; subject to change prior to submission of 
the October headcount to the Colorado Department of Education. 
Source: Colorado Department of Education and the Mesa County Valley School 
District 51 
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Housing Stock 

According to the 2000 Census, there were 48,427 housing units in the County and 2,610 housing 
units in the City in 2000, compared to a total of 59,924 housing units in the County and 4,569 housing 
units in the City in 2007. There was a 23.7% and 75.1 % increase, respectively. 

Building Activity 

The following table sets forth historical building permit activity for the City and the County. The 
County includes incorporated municipalities and unincorporated areas. 

Year 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 1 

Year 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 1 

History of Estimated Building Activity 
in the City of Fruita 

Residential Permits Commercial Permits 

432 
377 
228 
242 
104 
47 

10 
20 

8 
20 
13 
2 

Valuation all 
Construction * 

$31,934,310 
50,573,100 
50,056,919 
48,534,370 
56,553,890 
11,463,034 

'Mesa County Assessor's Office valuation of additions to taxable real property due to construction. 
I Building pennits issued through September 30,2009. 
Source: City of Fruita and Mesa County Building Department 

History of Estimated Building Permits Issued 
for New Structures in Mesa County 

Single Famill: Multi-Famill: Commercial/Industrial 
Permits Valuation Permits Valuation Permits Valuation 

1,381 $199,436,592 36 $11,723,738 70 $ 30,560,842 
1,525 258,047,120 13 3,827,361 80 66,756,203 
1,427 267,061,232 27 16,032,577 125 102,725,899 
1,308 264,642,448 19 3,724,322 104 83,457,728 

223 44,150,306 2 725279 26 6,933,774 
309 58,728,943 50 29,984,594 

I Building Pennits issues through September 30, 2009 and includes incorporated municipalities and unincorporated areas. 
Source: Mesa County Building Department 
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Foreclosure Activity 

The following table sets forth historical foreclosure activity in the County. 

Retail Sales 

History of Foreclosures in Mesa County 

Percent 
Year Foreclosures Filed Change 

2004 392 
2005 384 (2.0)% 
2006 352 (8.3) 
2007 393 11.7 
2008 469 19.3 
2009 1 915 

I Foreclosures filed through October 14,2009. The large 
increase in foreclosures is due in primarily to softening in 
the housing market in the Grand Junction area in response 
to the diminished oil and gas development in the region. 
Source: Mesa County Public Trustee's Office 

The retail trade sector employs a large portion of the county'S work force and is important to the 
area's economy. The following table sets forth recent retail sales figures for the City, the County and the 
State as reported by the Colorado Department of Revenue. 

Retail Sales 1 

City of Percent City as Percent State of 
Year Fruita Change Mesa County of County Colorado 

2004 $ 99,637,716 $3,215,831,708 3.1% $114,280,780,304 
2005 119,495,118 19.9% 3,777,368,959 3.1 122,907,090,008 
2006 136,585,123 14.3 4,448,537,027 3.1 133,531,307,352 
2007 184,166,163 34.8 5,083,618,277 3.6 148,673,215,731 
2008 226,083,022 22.8 5,418,766,800 4.2 152,747,684,188 
2009 2 40,435,822 1,005,263,644 4.0 31,421,789,409 

I Retail sales differ significantly from taxable sales due to the exemption of various classes of tangible personal property 
and sales transactions from taxation. 
2 Retail sales through March 2009. 
Sources: State of Colorado, Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Statistics 
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Employment 

The following tables set forth the most recent employment statistics by industry for the County 
and historical labor force estimates for the Grand Junction Metropolitan Statistical Area ("MSA") and the 
State. 

Total Business Establishments and Employment-Mesa County 

First Quarter 2008 First Quarter 2009 Annual Change 
Average Average Average 

Industry 1 Units Employment Units Employment Units Employment 

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting 39 317 47 363 8 46 
Mining 168 3,552 215 4,158 47 606 
Utilities 14 224 13 234 (1) 10 
Construction 854 5,545 822 5,314 (32) (231) 
Manufacturing 201 3,168 199 2,784 (2) (384) 
Wholesale trade 290 2,392 305 2,549 15 157 
Retail trade 636 8,510 630 8,118 (6) (392) 
Transportation and warehousing 221 2,223 233 2,384 12 161 
Information 66 987 61 913 (5) (74) 
Finance and insurance 277 2,193 268 2,152 (9) (41) 
Real estate and rental and leasing 340 1,219 318 1,158 (22) (61) 
Professional and technical services 598 2,317 643 2,426 45 109 
Management of companies and enterprises 21 83 23 190 2 107 
Administrative and waste services 283 3,153 291 2,877 (8) (276) 
Educational services 32 235 35 264 3 29 
Health care and social assistance 388 8,441 414 8,570 26 129 
Arts, entertainment, and recreation 70 1,119 64 1,106 (6) (13) 
Accommodation and food services 280 6,244 290 6,151 10 (93) 
Other services, except public administration 342 1,722 344 1,829 2 107 
Non-classifiable 6 7 4 2 (2) (5) 
Government ---.ill 8,762 -1lQ ~ ..ill 354 

Total 5.237 62,413 5.329 62.658 92 245 

1 Information provided herein reflects those employers who are subject to state unemployment insurance law. 
Source: Colorado Department of Labor and Employment, Labor Market Information, Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages 
("QCEW") Colorado 

Labor Force Estimates 

Grand Junction MSA Colorado 

Year Labor Force Percent Unemployed Labor Force Percent Unemployed 

2004 69,472 5.5% 2,536,946 5.6% 
2005 71,417 5.0 2,585,986 5.1 
2006 74,978 4.0 2,651,378 4.3 
2007 78,896 3.2 2,705,557 3.8 
2008 82,111 3.9 2,730,447 4.9 
2009 1 85,224 8.0 2,714,661 7.6 

1 Labor force estimates averaged through July 31, 2009. 
Source: State of Colorado, Division of Employment and Training, Labor Market Information, Colorado Labor Force Review 
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The following table sets forth selected major employers in the City and County. No independent 
investigation has been made of and no representation is made herein as to the stability or financial 
condition of the listed entities, or the likelihood that they will maintain their status as major employers in 
the area. 

Selected Major Employers in the Area I 

St. Mary's Hospital 
State Government 

Firm 

Mesa County School District 
Family Health West 
City Market 
Fruita (City of) 
Craftmasters Custom Building Systems, LLC. 
Fruita Coop 
Cudd Pumping Services 
Industrial Insulation Group, LLC 

I As of June 2009. 
2 Employee count includes the entire County. 
Source: City of Fruita 

Product or Service 

Health Care Services 
Government Services 
Public Education 
Elder Care 
Grocery 
Government Services 
Manufactured Home Production 
Farm and Ranch Cooperative 
Oil Field Services and Equipment 
Insulation Products 
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2,235 2 

1,259 2 

398 
386 
123 
101 
80 
75 
60 
60 



APPENDIXD 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM 

The information in this section concerning The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") New York, 
New York and DTC's book-entry-only system has been obtained from DTC, and the City and the 
Underwriter take no responsibility for the accuracy thereof 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered 
securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for 
the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity of the Bonds and will be deposited 
with DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized 
under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York 
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of 
the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 17 A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money 
market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with 
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other 
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company 
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which 
are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the 
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & 
Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and 
www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their 
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of 
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant 
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership 
interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration 



in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. 
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity 
of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which mayor may not be the 
Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants remain responsible for keeping accounts of their 
holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain 
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such 
as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their 
benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial 
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices 
be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being 
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The 
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose 
accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & 
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative ofDTC. DTC's practice 
is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC' s receipt of funds and corresponding detail 
information from the City or Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings 
shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing 
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in 
bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of 
DTC, Paying Agent, or City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of 
City or Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of 
DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct 
and Indirect Participants. 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, through its 
Participant, to Tender or Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the 
Direct Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the Bonds, on DTC's records, to Tender or 
Remarketing Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Bonds in connection with an optional 
tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are 
transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered 
Bonds to Tender or Remarketing Agent's DTC account. 
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DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to City or Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC 
(or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to 
DTC. 
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APPENDIXE 

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

City of Fruita 
Fruita, Colorado 

George K. Baum & Company 
Denver, Colorado 

$2,440,000 
City of Fruita, Colorado 

Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds 
Series 2009A 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

$10,125,000 

Assured Guaranty Corp. 
New York, New York 

City of Fruita, Colorado 
Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds 

(Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds) 
Series 2009B 

We have been engaged by the City of Fruita, Colorado (the "City"), as bond counsel in 
connection with the issuance of its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A, in the aggregate 
principal amount of $2,440,000 (the "Series 2009A Bonds") and its Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds 
(Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds), Series 2009B, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $10,125,000 (the "Taxable Series 2009B Bonds" and together with the Series 2009A Bonds, 
the "Bonds"). 

The Bonds mature on the dates, bear interest at the rates, and are transferable and payable in the 
manner and subject to the conditions and limitations provided in the ordinances authorizing the issuance 
of the Bonds (collectively, the "Bond Ordinance") adopted by the governing body of the City (capitalized 
terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned them in the 
Bond Ordinance). 

We have examined the Constitution and laws of the State of Colorado, the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and the regulations, rulings and judicial decisions relevant to the 
opinion set forth in paragraph 3 below; the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the 
regulations, rulings and judicial decisions relevant to the opinion set forth in paragraph 5 below; and such 
certified proceedings, certificates, documents, opinions and other papers as we deem necessary to render 
this opinion. As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the representations of 
the City contained in the Bond Ordinance and in the certified proceedings and other certifications of 
public officials furnished to us without undertaking to verifY the same by independent investigation. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion, under existing law and as of the date hereof, 
that: 

1. The Bonds in the principal amount stated above are valid and binding revenue obligations 
of the City, legally enforceable in accordance with their terms, and the Bond Ordinance and the ordinance 
authorizing the imposition of the City's Sales and Use Tax (which ordinance is identified in the Bond 
Ordinance) have been duly authorized, are in full force and effect, and are valid and enforceable in 
accordance with their respective terms. 

2. The City irrevocably pledges for payment of the Bonds, and grants a first lien (but not 
necessarily an exclusive first lien) for such purpose on the Pledged Revenues. 



3. Under the statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions existing on the date hereof, 
interest on the Series 2009A Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and 
is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. Also, because 
the City has properly designated the Series 2009A Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the 
meaning of Section 265(b )(3) of the Tax Code, any bank, thrift institution or other financial institution 
owning the Series 2009A Bonds may be able to avoid the loss of 80% of any otherwise available interest 
deduction attributable to its tax-exempt holdings. The opinions set forth in the preceding sentences 
assume compliance by the City with certain requirements of the Tax Code that must be met subsequent to 
the issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds. Failure to comply with such requirements could cause such 
interest to be includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes or could otherwise adversely 
affect such opinions, retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds. The City has 
covenanted in the Bond Ordinance and in the Tax Compliance Certificate executed and delivered in 
connection with the issuance of the Series 2009A Bonds to comply with such requirements. We express 
no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 

4. Interest on the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds is includable in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, although there is no legal precedent regarding characterization for federal income 
tax purposes of instruments with the same terms as the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds, we are of the 
opinion that the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds will be characterized as indebtedness for federal income tax 
purposes. We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the 
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds. 

5. Under State of Colorado existing statutes, the Series 2009A Bonds and the Taxable Series 
2009B Bonds and the income therefrom are exempt from taxation in the State of Colorado, except 
inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. 

6. The Bonds are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the Bond 
Ordinance may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights generally and by equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity. 

This opinion is given as of the date hereof and we assume no obligation to update, revise or 
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or 
any changes in law that may hereafter occur. 

Any federal tax advice contained in this opinion and in the Official Statement was written to 
support the marketing of the Bonds and is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by a 
taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any penalties that may be imposed under the Code. All taxpayers 
should seek advice based on such taxpayer's particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor. 

The City is our sole client in this transaction and we have not been engaged by, nor have we 
undertaken to advise any other party or to opine as to matters not specifically covered herein. This 
opinion letter is solely for the benefit of the addressees hereof and· may not be circulated, quoted or relied 
upon by any party other than the addressees without our prior written consent, except that a copy may be 
included in the closing transcripts for the Bonds. The inclusion of George K. Baum (the "Underwriter") 
and Assured Guaranty Corp. (the "Bond Insurer") as an addressee to this opinion does not create or imply 
an attorney-client relationship between Kutak Rock LLP and the Underwriter or the Bond Insurer in 
connection with the Bonds. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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APPENDIXF 

SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY 

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



f\SSURED 
GUARANTY

0 

Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy 

<"'" " , Issuer: PoIi<:yNo,: 

Premium: /~,~ ''', '" 

""'" '" '" / '" ~" E7 Date> '" '" / ,,~ " 
Obligations: 

.... o~,' ",,< , Assured Guaranty Corp,. a Maryland corporatIOn rAssu e<t Guara",!,:"),. c sideratlol\?" e pay nl of the PremIUm 
and on the terms and subject 10 the condtt.ons of t'US Pol1cy (. md\ld~ eac r1do~neil~Jer~~~ncond,tona&y and 
IfIevocably agrees 10 pay to the trustee (the 'Trustee,,) or the agerl tt~ "Paying ~eof) for·Jl1e Obl!gallons {as set forth In the 
documentation providing for tfte issuance of and securing ~ .' benent of !f)e'id~'we~hat portion of the Insured 
Payments which shaH become Due fa Payment but shaUAie un npa)'l,')lIlf ~),''\: 

" "\ " 
Assured Guaranty w.1 make such Insure(}'~~~l$ tO~ 'r, , ~,g Ag~ti'n the later to occur of (i) the date 

applicable principal or ~ltereS! becomes Due for 'Raymet\t 'en (i,y,t1Je BV 'h~yt6!!Owing the day on which Assured 
Guaranty shall have Received a completed No~ ~onpail<;ert, If'a'::N :[I100t by Assured Guaranty is incomplete or 
does not in any instance conform 10 the teuTls and cOf\!lilions O!'-l,his,~olte¥> ot Received, and Assured Guaranty 
shall promptly gIve not.ce to the Tr f the Paying Ag~nt. Up~n~!=C e, the Trustee or the Paying Agent may 
subm.t an amended Notrce of No Thr{frli'siee or ttf~PaYiTl9 Ager the Insured Payments to the Holders only 
upon receipt by the Trustee or the '11\ ~l form reasdo"bly Sqtis'!acto~· to it of <i) evidence of the Holder's right to receive 
such paymerns. and Iii) eviden ,inc! hoot Iimita~ny,app~rl1I~ instruments of assignment that all of the HOlder's 
rights 10 payment of such pripCipa! ex 'JJ i~'fayn~nt s~u'tQ.ere\lPon vest fI1 Assured Guaranty, Upon and to the extent cf 
such disbursement Assurect~uara(11y sh~ebQme 'tile Holder I,lf thVObfigations. any appurtenant coupon thereto and right 10 
receipt of payment of 9>inC~I1iJeredf,~terest ~eoO':atfd sha~ be fully subrogated to aU of Ule Holder's rigllt title and interest 
thereunder, includin9~.vill1oU! hrQ,'fa;ion the righ~ rec'e<)(e pay men)!; in respect of the Obligations. Payment by Assured Guaranty to 
the Trustee or the'aying A~t Tt;r'the bene1( of the 1ol0tae<s.Sbatl discharge the obligation of Assured Guaranty under this Policy to " .,,, \. /'~~-
tfJe extent cf such ~ym61L \ ",. "/' ", 

~" "',_ ") " '0", V ) 

(TIlis Pol~ i~n.Mncelatlle by '"Assured C".franty for any reason. The Premium on this Poky is not refundable for any 
reason, [rhis [?O!ic~does \01 insure/against ~s of?llY prepayment premium or other acceleration payment which at any t~ne may 
become U,ue ~, '~e.cl?f ~y obligation, ottilltAhan at the sole option of Assured Guaranty, nor against any risk other than 
Nonpaymer~, ~ ""'0. '" "< 

, "" '. ExcepWQJhe-eJ(~t rb,prssslyb,odified by any endorsement herelo, the following terms shall have the meanings specified 
for aU purp:>ses 01 thisJ'ori~, ".l\voRledPaymenr means any amount previously distributed to a Holder in respect of any Insured 
Payment by or on Fleha~df the! Issuer. wi:lich amount has l-een recovered from such Helder pursuant 10 the United States 
Bankruptcy Code in"ll1:cordancejwith a final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction that such payment 
constitutes an avoidabl~'PI~el1?nCe with respect to such HoldeL "Business Day" meanS any day other than lil a Saturday Or 
Sunday. (ii) any day on which the cffices of the Trustee, 1l1e Paying Agent or Assured Guaranty are closed, a (iii) any day on which 
banking institutions are authonzed or required by law, executive order or governmental decree to be closed in the City of New Yak 
or in the State of Maryland, "Due for Payment' means Ii) when referring 10 tfJe prinCipal of an Obligation, the stated maturitf date 
thereof. or the date on which such Obligation shall have beer. dury' caHed for mandalory Sinking fund redemption, and does not refer 
to any earlier date on which payment is due by reason of a call for redemption (other than by mandalory sinking fund redemption), 
acceleration or other advancement cf maturity (unless Assured Guaranty in its sole discretion elects to make any principal payment, 
in \>Alole a in part on such earlier date) and (iii when referring to interest on an Obligal[on. the stated date for payment of such 
interest "Holder" means, in respect of any Obligation. the person or entity who. at the lime cf Nonpayment is entitled under the 
terms cf such Obligation to payment cf prindpal or interest thereunder. except tilat Holder shall not include tile Issuer or any person 
or entity whose direct or ind~ect obligation constitutes the underlying security for the Obtiga1ions, "Insured Payments" means that 
portion of the principal of and interest on the Obligations that sha& become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of 
Nonpa),'rnent Insured Paymen1S shaH not include any additional amounts owmg by the Issuer solely as a resuti cf the faiure by the 
Trustee or tile Paying Agent to pay such amount when due and payable, including without ,mitation any such additional amounts as 
may be attributable to penalties or to interest accruing at a default rate, 10 amounts payable in respect of indemruiication. or 10 any 
other additional amounts payable by the Trustee or the Paying Agem by reason of such Ja,me, "Nonpayment" means, in respect cf 
an Obligation. the failure of the Issuer to have provided sufficient funds 10 the Trustee or the Paying Agent for payment in fun of all 
principal and interest Due for Payment on such Obligation, It is funl1er understood that the term "Nonpaymerlt" in respect of an 
Ob_galion includes any Avoided Payment "Receipt" or "Receive<f "Jeans actual receipt or notice of or. if notice is given by 
overnight or olher delivery service, or by certified or registered United States ma~, by a deliver y receipt signed by a person 
authorized to accept delivery on behalf cf the person to whom the nolice was given, Notices 10 Assured Guaranty may be mailed by 
registered mail or personaKy delivered or telecopied to it at 1325 Avenue of the Americas. New York, New York 10019, TeleprlOne 
Number: (212) 974·0100, Facsmtle Number: (212) 581·3268, I\tten!ion: Risk Management Departrnerll Public Finance 
Surveillance, with a copy 10 the General Counsel, or 10 such other address as shall be spedfied by Assured Guaranty to the Trustee 
or HIe Paying Agent in writing. A Notice of Nonpayment will be deemed 10 be Received by /,ssured Guaranty on a given Business 
Day if it is Received prior to 12:00 noon (New Ycxk City time) on such Business Day: oIherwise it will be deemed Received on the 
next Business Day, "Term" means the period from and incruding the Effective Date unl!! the earlier of <il the maturity date for the 
Obfigations, or (,i) the dale on which t1te Issuer has made a. payments required to be made on the Ob&gations, 

{OSlO?} 
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tIt any time during the Term of this Policy, Assured Guaranty may appoint a fiscal agent (the "Fiscal Agent') lor purposes 
of thIs Policy by written notice 10 Ille Trustee or !he Paying Agent specifying !he name and notice address of such Fiscal Agent 
From and after the date of Receipt of such notice by the Trustee or tile Paying Agent copies of all nonces snp documents required 
to be delivered to Assured Gua,aniy pursuant 10 this Policy shall be deivered simultaneously to the Fisqil Agent and 10 f,ssured 
Guaranty. All payments required to be made by Assured Guaranty under this Policy may be made d"ectly ~ ASl;\!,ed Guaranty or 
by the Fiscal Agent on behalf of Assured Guaranty, The Fiscal Agent is the agent of Assured Gu~an1Nmly:',!nd ~e Fiscal Agent 
shalf in no event be Hable 10 the Trustee or 1I1e Paying Agent lor any acts of 1I1e Fiscal Agent C( arly,failu~t;:~re~Guaranty to 
deposit, or oause to be deposited, suffident funds 10 make payments due under this Policy, /', '." '~~" '" 

To tile fullest extent permitted by applicable law, t,ssured Guaranty hereby v,afYes, in slIch 'ease ~the beneilt,pf 1I1e 
Holders only, al rights and defenses of any kind (including, ,,,,,thoUl limitation, 1I1e defensl(offraup'{, 1I17.'Qd'llcem~nl' in factoh;31lY 
other circumstance that would have 1I1e etlect of discharging a surety, guarantC( or an}~t~ pers;pn jn la," or'l<\ ay 
available to Assured Guaranty 10 deny C( avord payment of its obigations u'{der tills PQlicy III accor nc~', ess 
provisions hereot Nothing in this paragraph ~,;11 be construed ii) to waive, limit or cl1l!erwise' , ir, and ured Gllllranty,exp.-essly 
reserves, fIssured Guaranty's rights and remedies, including, without limi~its r C' im C( to)ll~e/(!COVeries 
(based on contractual rights, securities faw violations, fraud or otiler causes of ntit}"Jir each case, 
whe!her directly or acquired as a subrogee, assignee or otherwise, su~q~t Trustee or tile Paying 
Agent in accexdance with the express provisions hereoL andlC( (ii)<!o rEl'Q.uir1l., oV<iny amounts that 
have been previously paid C( !hal are not otherwise due in accC(dance''',<!th ih\ex~ ~ til sp~~/ 

This POlicy (which includes each endorsement h~)~~~h"in fililth'e-",n ~alting \(A'SS~d Guaranty with respect 
to 1I1e subject matter hereof, and may not be modified, altefed er affect!,!d b}<~any'othet~g~tn~t '" irt~trumenl inciuding, without 
limitation, any modification thereto or amendment th~eof.\ TIiI!f1>0lICY IS,~01'VO\l~Rl5Q 'B.'!YTHE PROPERTY/CASUALTY 
INSURANCE SECURITY FUND SPECIFIED IN ARTJCI!{ 7~OF tHE NEW YORK INS\,JRA~CE'::l-AV"', This Poley 'mil be governed 
by, and sham be construed in accmdancewith, 1I1e4llWSOflhe'State\;fNeWY~:\:" '" V 

/ / '\ '. \ " ) 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assured (;uarant)vtlas c\u~ thls.,Poic~ to "affixed with its corporate seal. to be signed by 

its duly aut'lOrized officer, and to become effective anc}~incjmg !lRorc(l,ssUrecti'karallty byvirtue of such signature, 
/?"--"', '., V ) '.'" ) 

/ '" /' "~./ '" \ ", \, /A:$~URED GUARANTY CORP, 

(SEAL) /-~ " \, V ) 
f " )', / 

l C~_" <: ,/BY:[I~se;t~\~thO~i;;;ds;g';aiorYN-ame] 
\\ "-"- ''"' ~ '" [Insert )'Iuthorized Signalery Title] , '\'" ", 

~'~----~~-~ \ '.'0 ) 
(~ \1 V , Signature attested lO by: 

~/ 

Counsel 
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